
   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
Date:   6/28/2022 
Time:  6:00 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom.us/join – ID# 831 3316 9409 

 
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, COVID-19, EMERGENCY ADVISORY NOTICE  
Consistent with Government Code section 54953(e), and in light of the declared state of emergency, and 
maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public can 
listen to the meeting and participate using the following methods. 

How to participate in the meeting 

• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time: 
city.council@menlopark.org  
Please include the agenda item number you are commenting on. 

• Access the meeting real-time online at:  
Zoom.us/join – Meeting ID 831 3316 9409 

• Access the meeting real-time via telephone at: 
(669) 900-6833  
Meeting ID 831 3316 9409 
Press *9 to raise hand to speak 
 

• Watch meeting: 
• Cable television subscriber in Menlo Park, East Palo Alto, Atherton, and Palo Alto: 

Channel 26 
 
Note: City Council closed sessions are not broadcast online or on television and public participation is 
limited to the beginning of closed session.   
 
Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
county and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You 
may check on the status of the meeting by visiting the City’s website www.menlopark.org.  The instructions 
for logging on to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty accessing 
the webinar, please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.org/agenda). 
 
According to City Council policy, all meetings of the City Council are to end by midnight unless there is a 
super majority vote taken by 11:00 p.m. to extend the meeting and identify the items to be considered after 
11:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

https://zoom.us/join
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org?subject=20220125%20public%20comment%20on%20item%20
https://zoom.us/join
https://beta.menlopark.org/Home
https://beta.menlopark.org/Home
http://menlopark.org/agenda


City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2022 
Page 2 
Regular Session (Zoom.us/join – ID# 831 3316 9409) 

A. Call To Order

B. Roll Call

C. Agenda Review

D. Public Comment

Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the City Council on any subject not listed on the
agenda. Each speaker may address the City Council once under public comment for a limit of three
minutes. Please clearly state your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live. The
City Council cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the City Council cannot
respond to non-agenda issues brought up under public comment other than to provide general
information.

E. Consent Calendar

E1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for June 6, 13, 14, and 17, 2022 (Attachment) 

E2. Adopt a resolution to continue conducting the City’s Council and advisory body meetings remotely 
due to health and safety concerns for the public and to authorize the use of hybrid meetings 
(Staff Report #22-116-CC) 

E3. Amend the agreement with APTIM Environmental and Infrastructure, LLC for the operation, 
maintenance and reporting of the Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill leachate and gas collection and 
control systems (Staff Report #22-117-CC) 

E4. Adopt resolutions authorizing staff to submit applications to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission for the One Bay Area Grant Program (Staff Report #22-118-CC) 

E5. Adopt a resolution of intention to abandon public service easements within the properties at 141 
Jefferson Drive, 180 Constitution Drive and 186 Constitution Drive (Menlo Uptown) associated with 
the proposed redevelopment of the project site (Staff Report #22-119-CC) 

E6. Adopt a resolution approving the fiscal year 2022-23 investment policy for the City and the former 
Community Development Agency of Menlo Park (Staff Report #22-122-CC) 

F. Public Hearing

F1. Adopt a resolution overruling protests, ordering the improvements, confirming the diagram/area of 
assessment and ordering the levy and collection of assessments for Landscaping Assessment 
District for fiscal year 2022-23 (Staff Report #22-120-CC) (Presentation)

F2. Certificate of sufficiency of the petition for the proposed initiative measure entitled "A Citizen-
Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to Prohibit the 
City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or Re-Zoning Certain Properties 
Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached Homes” (Staff Report #22-121-CC) 

https://zoom.us/join


City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2022 
Page 3 
F3. Determination of action, pursuant to Elections Code Section 9215, regarding the proposed initiative 

measure entitled “A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the 
General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or Re-
Zoning Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached Homes”  
(Staff Report #22-129-CC) 

G. Regular Business

G1. Adopt resolutions for fiscal year 2022-23: budget and capital improvement plan; establish 
appropriations limit; establish a consecutive 1 percent utility users’ tax rate through June 2023; 
establish the salary schedule effective July 3, 2022; extend rate assistance program through June 
2023; establish direction for administration of American Rescue Plan Act funds; and accept award 
authority and bid requirement through June 2023 (Staff Report #22-123-CC)  

G2. Direction on the Burgess Pool aquatics operator agreement negotiation (Staff Report #22-124-CC) 

H. Informational Items

H1. City Council agenda topics: July 2022 (Staff Report #22-125-CC) 

H2. Re-Imagining Public Safety Ad Hoc Subcommittee update (Staff Report #22-126-CC) 

H3. Receive and file an update on the solid waste and water rate assistance program 
(Staff Report #22-127-CC) 

H4. ConnectMenlo Community Amenities Ad Hoc Subcommittee update (Staff Report #22-128-CC) 

I. City Manager's Report

J. City Councilmember Reports

K. Closed Session

K1. Closed session pursuant to Government Code 54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiator Agency 
Designated Representative: Mayor, Nira Doherty, Genevieve Ng 
Unrepresented Employee: City Manager 

L. Report from Closed Session

M. Adjournment

At every regular meeting of the City Council, in addition to the public comment period where the public shall have the right
to address the City Council on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right
to directly address the Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during
the City Council’s consideration of the item.

At every special meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during consideration of the item.
For appeal hearings, appellant and applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.

If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of
Menlo Park at, or prior to, the public hearing.

(Presentation)

(Presentation)



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2022 
Page 4 

 

 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public 
record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available by request by emailing the city clerk at 
jaherren@menlopark.org. Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in 
City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620.  
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956. Members of the public 
can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at menlopark.org/agenda and can receive 
email notification of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Notify Me” service at menlopark.org/notifyme. 
Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 06/23/2022) 

mailto:jaherren@menlopark.org
http://menlopark.org/agenda
http://www.menlopark.org/notifyme


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 

 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT  
Date:   6/6/2022 
Time:  6:00 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom 

 
Special Session 

A. Call To Order 
 
Mayor Nash called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call 
 
Present: Combs, Mueller, Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: Interim City Manager Justin I.C. Murphy, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty, City Clerk Judi 

A. Herren 
 

C. Study Session 
 

C1. Review and provide feedback on the draft City of Menlo Park Sixth Cycle 2023-2031 Housing 
Element (Staff Report #22-108-CC) 

 
 Assistant Community Development Director Deanna Chow introduced the item. 
 
 M-Group representative Asher Kohn made the presentation (Attachment). 
 

• Francesca Segre spoke in support of the school district and City partnering in housing 
development and amenities for educators and requested clarification on additional sites on El 
Camino Real. 

• Katherine Dumont spoke in support of increasing density near services, increasing fees in line 
with neighboring jurisdictions, and adding the civic center as feasible development sites, and 
noted that removal of the Flood School site would be short-sighted.  

• Verle Aebi requested information about the Guild Theatre (site #51) being on the list and the 
Cornerstone building not on the list and expressed support for reducing the City’s accessory 
dwelling unit (ADU) fees.  

• Menlo Park City School District Superintendent Erik Burmeister spoke in support of expanding 
housing supply and equity, encouraged cooperation between the district and the City to foster 
quality schools, and opposed the removal of references to school impacts in the public review 
draft of the Housing Element.  

• Lauren Bigelow spoke in support of housing staff, densification of housing near transit, and 
establishing metrics and milestones to track progress. 

• Housing Choices representative Kalisha Webster spoke in support of affordable housing and 
provided clarification and expanded upon the types of developmental disabilities described in the 
draft Housing Element, and encouraged outreach to other agencies that support individuals with 
the different types of disabilities described.  

• Adina Levin provided comments on the transportation programs, in support of the civic center as 
a site, and in opposition on reduce density of the Flood School site. 

• Mid-Pen Housing representative Andrew Bielak spoke in favor of the proposed incentives for 

AGENDA ITEM E-1

Page E-1.1



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 6, 2022 
Page 2 

 

affordable housing, requested clarification on the proposed affordable housing overlay 
modifications and applicability of fee waivers, and encouraged review of the proposed 
implementation measures and timelines to ensure the Housing Element will produce affordable 
housing. 

• Karen Grove spoke in support of increased density of 100 dwelling units/acre at the Sharon 
Heights shopping center as a housing site and in opposition of lower density at the Flood School 
site, and asked for enhanced tenant protections as quickly as possible in the upcoming Housing 
Element cycle. 

• Nicole Chessari expressed concerns about the density, access and affirmatively further fair 
housing of the Flood School and questioned the acreage identified for housing on Site No. 12.  

• William Eger spoke in support for educator housing and a partnership with the school district and 
City. 

• Katie Behroozi spoke in support of the Flood School site, working with the Ravenswood school 
district, concerns on the viability of proposed sites, review of additional potential sites not 
currently on the housing opportunity sites list, development of a rental registry, and reduced 
parking requirements.  

• Pam Jones spoke on assessing other available properties like parking and vacant lots as housing 
sites, and review of the General Plan and Specific Plan to increase density in the downtown area 
and reduce the jobs-housing imbalance. 

• Liz Hove spoke on concerns related to reducing segregation and promoting equity, and 
considering potential environmental impacts in developing new housing across the city, 
specifically in relation to housing opportunity site #38 adjacent to US-101 and a low-density 
residential neighborhood.  

• Misha Silin spoke in support of the removal of unrealistic sites, strengthening feasible sites, and 
increased density Downtown.   

• Kathleen Daly spoke in support of development of affordable housing at the Flood School site, 
with consideration for exploring multiple access points to the site and waiting until project plans 
are available to understand the proposed density at the site. 

 
 The City Council received clarification on the number of units to meet and exceed the Regional 

Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) requirements and reasoning behind the 30% buffer, equity 
around the proposed 30% buffer, restricting office building or requiring housing for office projects, 
cycle five housing element, retaining sites on the list even if the property owner is not interested in 
housing development on their site(s), California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) requirements, guidelines, regulations, density impacts to parking, Reference 
(Ref) G, Site #12 (345 Middlefield Road (US Geological Survey)) acreage, auction, and zoning, and 
Ref I, Civic Center campus. 
 

 The City Council discussed site #51 (Guild Theater), Ref A Sites #65 (1000 Marsh Rd.), 66 (3885 
Bohannon Dr.), and 73 (4065 Campbell Dr.), developing affordable housing, staff recommendations 
and considerations, and rezoning office to residential.  

  
 The City Council directed 

Ref A, Sites # 65 (1000 Marsh Rd.), 66 (3885 Bohannon Dr.), and 73 (4065 Campbell Dr.) – 
Remove from opportunity sites list  
Ref B, Sites #4 (2480 Sand Hill Rd.) and 49 (2700 Sand Hill Rd.) – Keep on opportunity sites list 
Ref C, Site #45R (Alpine Rd. at Stowe Ln) – Remove from opportunity sites list 

Page E-1.2



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 6, 2022 
Page 3 

 

Ref D, Site #40(C) (St. Bede’s Church) – Keep on opportunities sites list with Affordable Housing 
Overlay (AHO) bonus  
Ref E, Site #6 (900 Santa Cruz Ave.) – Keep on opportunities sites list with AHO bonus 
Ref F, Site #38 (320 Sheridan Dr.) – Keep on sites list but limit density to 20 du/ac and do not apply 
the AHO bonus 
Ref G, Site #12 (345 Middlefield Rd.) – Keep on opportunity sites list with increased densities on site 
with AHO bonus and reflect acreage for a school 
Ref H, SRI/Parkline – Keep as pipeline project  
Ref I, Civic Center – Reaffirm – do not include in the housing opportunity site inventory; no change 
 

 The City Council took a recess at 9:48 p.m.  
  
 The City Council reconvened at 10:00 p.m. 
 

In addition to clarifying decisions related to the sites discussed earlier in the evening, the City 
Council also discussed utilizing City-owned parking lots for housing and discussed not including the 
Red Cottage Inn on El Camino Real as a potential housing site in order to maintain hotel tax 
revenues. 

  
ACTION: By acclamation, the City Council extended the meeting past 11 p.m. 
 

The City Council received clarification on proposed zoning ordinance amendments related to the 
Housing Element Update, the minimum residential density requirements being evaluated, how 
residential mixed use redevelopment could be implemented on parcels currently designated only for 
office and commercial uses, maintaining a balance of office uses in the community, the planning 
review process for residential projects of different sizes, and the potential for property tax exemption 
changes from development residential uses on religious sites. 

  
The City Council also discussed re-prioritizing implementation items, such as an anti-displacement 
strategy, in the draft Housing Element, and ensuring coordination with the school districts during the 
Housing Element Update process.  

  
D. Closed Session 

 
D1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employment 

Title: City Manager 

 
D2. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employment Evaluation 

Title: Interim City Manager 

 
D3. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employment Evaluation 

Title: City Attorney 

• Pam Jones requested the same information with the previous city attorney firm.  
 
The City Council continued items D1., D2., and D3. to a future meeting. 
 
 

Page E-1.3



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
June 6, 2022 
Page 4 

 

E. Report from Closed Session 
 

None. 
 
F. Adjournment 

 
Mayor Nash adjourned the meeting at 11:23 p.m. 
 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page E-1.4



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 

 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT  
Date:   6/13/2022 
Time:  3:30 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom 

 
Closed Session 

A. Call To Order 
 
Mayor Nash called the meeting to order at 3:35 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call 
 
Present: Combs, Mueller, Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: Interim City Manager Justin I.C. Murphy, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty, Legal Counsel 

Genevieve Ng, City Clerk Judi A. Herren 
 

C. Closed Session 
 

C1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employment 

Title: City Manager 

• Lynne Bramlett spoke in support taking time on the city manager appointment and provided 
suggestions on the recruitment process.  

 
C2. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employment Evaluation 

Title: Interim City Manager 

 
C3. Closed session pursuant to Government Code 54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiator Agency 

Designated Representative: Mayor, Genevieve Ng, Nira Doherty 

Unrepresented Employee: City Manager 

 

D. Report from Closed Session 
 
No reportable actions. 
 
E. Adjournment 

 
Mayor Nash adjourned the meeting at 4:54 p.m. 
 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk  

Page E-1.5



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 

 

 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT  
Date:   6/14/2022 
Time:  3:30 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom 

 
A. Call To Order 

 
Mayor Nash called the meeting to order at 3:38 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call 
 
Present: Combs, Mueller (exited meeting at 6:26 p.m. and re-entered the meeting at 6:37 p.m.), 

Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: Interim City Manager Justin I.C. Murphy, City Attorney Nira F. Doherty, City Clerk Judi 

A. Herren 
 

C. Agenda Review 
 
None. 
 

D. Closed Session 
 
D1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employment Evaluation 

Title: City Attorney 
 
• Drew Combs spoke in favor of increased transparency on this item and in opposition of it being 

on the closed session agenda. 
 

D2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION  
 

Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
 
Name of case: David Fogel et al. v. City of Menlo Park, Case No. 21-CIV-06674 
 

6:00 p.m. Regular Session 
 
 Mayor Nash reconvened the meeting at 6:32 p.m. 
 
E. Report from Closed Session 

 
No reportable actions.  

 
F. Presentations and Proclamations 

 
F1. Proclamation: Recognizing Juneteenth Day (Attachment) 
 
 Mayor Nash read the proclamation (Attachment). 
 
 The City Council discussed displaying the Juneteenth flag year-round. 

Page E-1.6



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2022 
Page 2 

 

 City Councilmember Mueller arrived at 6:37 p.m. 
 
F2. Proclamation: Recognizing June 2022 as Pride Month (Attachment) 
 
 Mayor Nash read the proclamation (Attachment). 
 
 LGBTQ Commission Co-Chair Dana Johnson accepted the proclamation. 
 
G. Public Comment 
 

• Cheryl Schaff spoke on the Climate Team’s findings following their Earth Day festival.  
• Katie Behroozi spoke on the Chamber of Commerce’s business alliance meeting and concerns 

on the lack of bicycle parking at the Guild Theater. 
 
H. Consent Calendar 
 
H1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for May 17 and 24, 2022 (Attachment) 
 
H2. Adopt a resolution to continue conducting the City’s Council and advisory body meetings remotely 

due to health and safety concerns for the public and to authorize the use of hybrid meetings 
(Staff Report #22-111-CC) 

 
H3. Adopt a resolution modifying the City Council’s regular meeting schedule to replace November 8, 

2022 with November 1, 2022 (Staff Report #22-109-CC) 
 
H4. Adopt a resolution calling and giving notice of holding a General Municipal Election for three City 

Council seats in districts 1, 2 and 4, requesting that the City Council consolidate the election with the 
Statewide General Election to be held November 8, 2022, and contracting with the San Mateo 
County Chief Elections Officer and Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder for election services  
(Staff Report #22-110-CC) 

 
H5. Adopt a resolution authorizing the city manager to execute an agreement with Bigbreak, LLC 

(Chefables) in an amount not to exceed $100,000 to continue the delivery of food services at the 
Belle Haven Child Development Center during fiscal year 2022-23 (Staff Report #22-112-CC) 

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Taylor/ Wolosin), to approve the consent calendar, passed unanimously. 
 
I. Public Hearing 
 
I1. Public hearing on proposed fiscal year 2022-23 budget and capital improvement plan  

(Staff Report #22-113-CC) 
 
Interim Finance Director Marvin Davis, Administrative Services Director Mary Morris-Mayorga and 
Public Works Director Nikki Nagaya made the presentation (Attachment). 
 
Mayor Nash opened the public hearing. 
 
• Adina Levin requested clarification on how programs identified in the housing element would be 

funded in the proposed or future budgets and the status of the Caltrain grade separation project 
and in support of traffic safety projects. 

Page E-1.7



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2022 
Page 3 

 

• Lynne Bramlett spoke on concerns that the spending needs to be for City Council goals and 
priorities, services being removed, need for staff program reviews, increasing staff, increased 
American Rescue Plan (ARPA) funds, and requested a high-level budget document.  

• Pam Jones spoke on concerns related to the use of term “Facebook Beat 4” and requested 
clarification on Las Pulgas funds, remaining debt, and Excess Educational Revenue 
Augmentation Fund (ERAF).  

 
Mayor Nash closed the public hearing. 
 
The City Council received clarification on how programs in the housing, environmental justice and 
safety element programs would be funded in the proposed or future budgets, Caltrain grade 
separation status, and confirmation that funding from the Meta (formerly Facebook) development 
agreements is separated into the Bayfront Mitigation fund and is not funding police operations. 
 
The City Council discussed  
1) Service level enhancements (Attachment)  

City Manager’s Office (CMO) –  graphic designer position and contract option – bolstering public 
engagement services  
CMO – management analyst I/II – current and proposed size of the sustainability division – 
comparison cities with similar departments – use of contract services in-lieu of full-time 
equivalent (FTE) or as supplemental  
Police Department (PD) – community service officers – explanation for the need and restoration 
of the positions 
PD – emergency preparedness coordinator – updating this to a full-time position as a resource 
exclusively for the City of Menlo Park organization – current position filled by the Menlo Park Fire 
Protection District (MPFPD) on part time basis – stakeholders involved in the position  
Library and Community Services Department (LCS) – gymnastics – produces revenue and is its 
own revenue source 
Community Development Department (CDD) – housing support – one position split between two 
funds (general fund and below market housing) – BMR funding to fund BMR housing and staff – 
other impact fees that fund other staff positions 
Contract services – PD – parking enforcement – description  
Contract services Public Works Department (PW) – herbicide-free median maintenance – duties  

 
The City Council took a recess at 8:15 p.m. 

 
 The City Council reconvened at 8:24 p.m.  
  
 The City Council discussed 

2) ARPA 
Use to help residents impacted by the pandemic and City programs to improve the quality of life of 
residents (positive to the community), process and staff capacity to pursue how to provide 
funding/programs to those who need it, earmarking funds for future budget cycles, programs for 
seniors and/or teens and/or young adults, and allocating a percentage to programs for those in need.  

 
3) ERAF  
Allocating 100% for fiscal year 2022-23, future updates to 5-year forecast to not include 100% of 
ERAF, and discontinuing ERAF in the future. 

 
4) Utility Users’ Tax (UUT) 

Page E-1.8



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Agenda 
June 14, 2022 
Page 4 

 

Support and uphold finding and retaining UUT at 1%. 
 
5) Capital improvement projects (CIP) 
The City Council directed an update to the project description for the Downtown Parking Structure 
Study in the future to align with the Housing Element and an updated status on the Caltrain grade 
separation project. The City Council also requested that the use of electric pool heating equipment 
not impact the temperature of the pool. 

 
J. Regular Business 
 
J1. Adopt a resolution of support for BlocPower LLC to provide building electrification services for 

building owners (Staff Report #22-114-CC) 
  
 Sustainability Manager Rebecca Lucky introduced the item. 
 

• MenloSpark director spoke in support of the resolution. 
• Nicole Kemeny spoke in support for the resolution. 

  
The City Council discussed the term partnership usage in the staff report.   

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Mueller/ Taylor), to adopt a resolution of support for BlocPower LLC to 
provide building electrification services for building owners that want to voluntarily electrify their natural gas 
equipment to electric, passed unanimously.  
 
K. Informational Items 
 
K1. City Council agenda topics: June 28, 2022–July 12, 2022 (Staff Report #22-115-CC) 
 
L. City Manager's Report 
 

None. 
 
M. City Councilmember Reports 
 

City Councilmember Mueller reported out on a firework that startled West Menlo Park on June 13. 
 
N. Adjournment 
 

Mayor Nash adjourned the meeting at 9:50 p.m. 
 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 

Page E-1.9



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council 

 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 
Date:   6/17/2022 
Time:  2:00 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom 

 
Closed Session 

A. Call To Order 
 
Mayor Nash called the meeting to order at 2:07 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call 
 
Present: Combs, Mueller (arrived at 2:30 p.m.), Nash, Taylor, Wolosin 
Absent: None 
Staff: Legal Counsel Genevieve Ng, City Clerk Judi A. Herren 
 

C. Closed Session 
 

C1.      Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employment 
Title: City Manager 

  
C2.      Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1): Public Employee Appointment 

Title: City Manager 
  
C3.      Closed session pursuant to Government Code 54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiator Agency 

Designated Representative: Mayor, Genevieve Ng 
Unrepresented Employee: City Manager 
 

D. Report from Closed Session 
 
ACTION: The City Council appointed Justin Murphy as the regular city manager, with the contract to be 
agendized at a future meeting, passed unanimously. 
 
E. Adjournment 

 
Mayor Nash adjourned the meeting at 4:27 p.m.  
 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page E-1.10



City Manager's Office 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number: 22-116-CC

Consent Calendar: Adopt a resolution to continue conducting the 
City’s Council and advisory body meetings 
remotely due to health and safety concerns for the 
public and to authorize the use of hybrid meetings 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) to continue conducting the City’s 
Council and advisory body meetings remotely due to health and safety concerns for the public and to 
authorize the use of hybrid meetings. 

Policy Issues 
Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361) was signed into law September 16, 2021 allowing cities to continue holding 
virtual meetings during any emergency proclaimed by the governor. AB 361 sunsets January 1, 2024. The 
City Council would need to declare every 30 days that the City’s legislative bodies must continue to meet 
remotely in order to ensure the health and safety of the public. 

Background 
The California Legislature approved AB 361, which was signed by the governor September 16, 2021 for 
signature. The bill allows local legislative bodies to continue to meet remotely through January 1, 2024. A 
local agency will be allowed to continue to meet remotely when: 
• The local agency holds a meeting during a declared state of emergency
• State or local health officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing
• Legislative bodies declare the need to meet remotely due to present imminent risks to the health or

safety of attendees

The City meets the requirements to continue holding meetings remotely in order to ensure the health and 
safety of the public: 
• The City is still under a local state of emergency
• County Health urges that all individuals in public spaces maintain social distancing and wear masks

Analysis 
The City is still under a local state of emergency and the emergency findings required under AB 361 are still 
in effect.  It is recommended that the use of facial coverings be exercised when not speaking inside the City 
Council Chambers.  The resolution authorizes the use of hybrid meetings, whereby City Councilmembers 
and staff may choose to attend either remotely or in person.  

Although the City has returned to in-person meetings, due to the prevalence of BA strains of the SARS-

AGENDA ITEM E-2

Page E-2.1



Staff Report #: 22-116-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

CoV-2 virus overtaking other variants in San Mateo County, the City Council finds that reducing the number 
of persons present in City Council chambers is necessary to reduce imminent health risks associated with 
large groups and/or members of varying households gathering indoors. 

Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact on City resources. 

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it is an organizational structure change that will not result in any 
direct or indirect physical change in the environment.  

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

Attachments 
A. Resolution

Report prepared by: 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page E-2.2



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK AND 
ON BEHALF OF COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES CREATED BY THE CITY 
COUNCIL PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 
54952(b) AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS IN COMPLIANCE 
WITH AB 361 (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e)) TO CONTINUE TO 
ALLOW MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO SAFELY PARTICIPATE IN LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, the City Council is committed to ensuring public access to observe and participate 
in local government meetings; and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of the City Council and other legislative bodies created pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54952(b) are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown 
Act, so that any member of the public may participate in local government meetings; and  

WHEREAS, the AB 361, codified at Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for 
remote teleconferencing participation in local government meetings, without compliance with the 
requirements of 54953(b)(3), during a Governor-proclaimed state of emergency and if the local 
legislative body determines, by majority vote, that as a result of the emergency, meeting solely 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency due to the 
outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (now known as COVID 
19) and that State of Emergency is still in effect in the State of California; and

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020 the City Council proclaimed the existence of a local state of 
emergency within the City, pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act 
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and  

WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to threaten the health and lives of City residents; and 

WHEREAS, the SARS-CoV-2 Delta and Omicron Variants are highly transmissible in indoor 
settings; and 

WHEREAS, the Omicron subvariants of the SARS-CoV-2 virus is overtaking other variants in 
San Mateo County; and 

WHEREAS, according to data from the County’s Health Administrator and County website, the 
County is averaging approximately 47 new cases per 100,000 of COVID-19 per day; and 

WHEREAS, although the City has returned to in-person meetings, due to the prevalence of BA 
strains of the SARS-CoV-2 virus overtaking other variants in San Mateo County, the City 
Council finds that reducing the number of persons present in City Council chambers is 
necessary to reduce imminent health risks associated with large groups and/or members of 
varying households gathering indoors; and  

WHEREAS, the State of California and the City of Menlo Park continue to follow safety 
measures in response to COVID-19 as ordered or recommended by the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC), California Department of Public Health (DPH), and/or County of 

ATTACHMENT A

Page E-2.3



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 3 

San Mateo, as applicable, including facial coverings when required; and based upon that 
guidance, in-person attendance indoors at public meetings continues to present a health risk for 
certain segments of the population, necessitating the need to reduce the number of in-person 
meeting attendees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, acting as a legislative body pursuant to Government Code section 
54952(a) and for the benefit of the commissions, committees and other bodies that were 
created by the City Council pursuant to Government Code section 54952(b) (collectively 
referred to as “Legislative Bodies”), finds that the current conditions meet the circumstances set 
forth in Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to allow Legislative Bodies to continue to use 
teleconferencing to hold open and public meetings if the Legislative Bodies comply with the 
requirements set forth in Government Code section 54953(e)(2) to ensure the public can safely 
participate in and observe local government meetings. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park that the 
City Council does hereby: 
 
1. Find that current conditions authorize teleconference public meetings of Legislative Bodies.  

Based on the California Governor’s continued declaration of a State of Emergency and 
current conditions, the City Council finds that meeting in person, without the option for 
certain populations and persons to participate remotely, would present imminent risks to the 
health or safety of attendees.  The City Council does therefore find that Legislative Bodies 
and members of Legislative Bodies of the City may elect to use teleconferencing to hold 
public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(2) to ensure 
members of the public have continued access to safely observe and participate in local 
government meetings.  

2. Authorize Legislative Bodies to conduct teleconference meetings. The Legislative Bodies 
are hereby authorized to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of 
this Resolution, including conducting open and public meetings in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e)(2) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

3. Authorize Legislative Bodies to conduct hybrid meetings.  The Legislative Bodies are hereby 
further authorized to conduct meetings in a “hybrid” format, where both members of the 
Body may elect to be present in person, utilizing appropriate distancing and masking 
practices, or participate by teleconferencing technology.  Such meetings of the Legislative 
Bodies that occur using teleconferencing technology will provide an opportunity for any and 
all members of the public who wish to address Legislative Bodies and will otherwise occur in 
a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of parties and the members of 
the public attending the meeting via teleconferencing. 

 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 

Page E-2.4



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 3 of 3 

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:   
  
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page E-2.5



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-117-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Amend the agreement with APTIM Environmental 

and Infrastructure, LLC  for the operation, 
maintenance and reporting of the Bedwell Bayfront 
Park Landfill leachate and gas collection and 
control systems   

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the city manager to amend the agreement (Attachment A) 
with APTIM Environmental and Infrastructure, LLC (APTIM) for the operation, maintenance and reporting of 
the Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill leachate and gas collection system improvements in the amount of 
$275,100 for an additional one-year term.  

 
Policy Issues 
The agreement is consistent with Goal LU-7 (Land Use) of the general plan land use element which is 
intended to “promote the implementation and maintenance of sustainable development, facilities and 
services to meet the needs of Menlo Park's residents, businesses, workers and visitors.” 

 
Background 
Landfill history 
The Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill (Bedwell Landfill) is a Class III non-hazardous solid waste management 
facility located at the north end of the City on San Francisco Bay at Bayfront Expressway and Marsh Road. 
The site is surrounded on three sides by the Don Edwards San Francisco Bay National Wildlife Refuge. 
Originally referred to as the Marsh Road Landfill, San Mateo County first established solid waste operations 
at the site in 1957. In 1968, the City of Menlo Park (City) took over the responsibility of the landfill until its 
closure in 1984. In 1982, the City began the development of Bedwell Bayfront Park on the 160-acre site, of 
which the landfill covers 155 acres.  
 
The critical aspect of maintaining the closed landfill includes managing the gases that are produced as the 
waste decomposes (primarily methane) and the water that infiltrates the refuse (known as leachate.) The 
Bedwell Landfill typically generates about 127 million standard cubic feet of landfill gas a year. About 3.5 
million gallons of leachate are extracted from the landfill and discharged to the sanitary sewer annually 
through the systems and regulatory permitting requirements described below. 
 
Gas collection and control system 
To comply with Bay Area Air Quality Management District (Air District) regulatory requirements and as part 
of the landfill closure plan, the City covered the refuse with clay. A landfill gas wellfield was installed in two 
phases, with the first phase built in 1984 and the second phase in 1987. Currently, the wellfield consists of 
72 gas extraction wells and a network of gas collection pipes embedded just beneath the surface of the 
landfill cap.  

AGENDA ITEM E-3

Page E-3.1



Staff Report #: 22-117-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Leachate collection and treatment system 
The City also has the responsibility to monitor, collect samples and dispose of the leachate generated from 
the landfill in accordance with a permit to operate issued by the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(Water Board.) Leachate is groundwater that has migrated through landfill fill material and requires 
treatment through the sanitary sewer system. The monitoring system consists of seven groundwater 
monitoring wells, two surface water monitoring locations, six leachate wells, five piezometers, the 12 
leachate extraction sumps and one leachate monitoring location at a sanitary sewer manhole.  
 
Operations and maintenance 
The landfill gas collection and control system (gas system) and the leachate system are currently operated 
and maintained by APTIM Environmental and Infrastructure, LLC (formerly CB&I) under a five-year 
agreement authorized by the City Council in April 2017 (Attachment B.) The agreement scope includes 
APTIM’s preparation and submittal of monthly landfill gas system operations and maintenance reports and 
annual Surface Emissions Monitoring (SEM) reports to the Air District as required by the Air District permit.  
 
Upcoming Bedwell Landfill leachate and gas system improvement construction  
In May 2019, staff issued a request for proposals (RFP) to design the landfill gas and leachate collection 
system improvements at the Bedwell Landfill in accordance with all regulatory requirements. The City 
received three proposals for the first phase of the project June 5, 2019. Staff selected Golder Associates, 
Inc. for the work as their proposal was comprehensive and their project team had relevant experience 
working on a similar scope at the Palo Alto Byxbee Park landfill.  
 
On August 14, 2019, the city manager entered into a professional services agreement with Golder to 
conduct the evaluation phase of the project. Golder submitted their evaluation report July 13, 2020. The 
report concluded that the existing leachate collection and gas systems do not require major replacement or 
expansion of extraction capacity to meet current regulatory requirements since they have continued to 
comply with the current Water Board and Air District permits. However, both systems are in need of 
maintenance repairs and upgrades to improve long-term operability and park safety, particularly on the 
public access trail system. 
 
On January 12, 2021 City Council approved an amendment to the agreement with Golder to proceed with 
the design of the Bedwell Landfill leachate and gas system improvements. The plans and specifications to 
procure a contract for construction of the improvements will be ready for bid advertisement in July 2022. 
Staff plans to put the construction plans and specifications out to bid by the end of July 2022 with a bid 
opening planned in August 2022. It is expected that the lowest responsive bid for construction of the 
Bedwell Landfill improvements will be brought to the City Council in September 2022 for award of a 
construction contract. The construction of the landfill improvements will take about four months, during 
which time the existing leachate and gas systems will be undergoing extensive modifications and 
occasional shutdowns requiring changes in the monthly monitoring and reporting to the regulatory agencies 
(Air District and Water Board.)  

 
Analysis 
The APTIM agreement for the Bedwell Landfill operation and maintenance services expires June 30, 2022. 
Because the landfill improvement construction activities will be ongoing through early 2023, it will be 
necessary to have an operation and maintenance contractor available to work with Golder and the 
construction contractor throughout completion and final acceptance of the leachate and gas systems 
upgrades. Over the past two years, APTIM has been working with the Golder design team and the 
regulatory agencies as the plans for the construction of the landfill improvements were developed and 
completed for bidding. APTIM has been an integral part of the design team, and is very familiar with the 

Page E-3.2



Staff Report #: 22-117-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

system and regulatory requirements. For these reasons, staff recommends extending APTIM’s operation 
and maintenance agreement term for one additional year to accommodate the construction activities. This 
will provide consistent support to Golder and the contractor during the improvement construction and 
maintain coordination with the regulatory agencies (Air District and Water Board.)  
 
On May 19, 2022, APTIM submitted a proposal for the recommended one-year extension of the Bedwell 
Landfill operation and maintenance services (Attachment C.) The scope of work includes the tasks listed in 
Table 1.  
 

Table 1: Scope of work tasks 

Task Description  

1 Leachate and gas systems routine monitoring, operating and maintenance 
services 

2 Quarterly groundwater sampling and analysis 

3 Groundwater analysis reports 

4 Gas system reporting 

5 On-call maintenance and repair work 

6 Project management 

7 Wellfield reconstruction support 
 
Tasks 1 through 6 above are also included in the current APTIM agreement and cover the following 
regulatory reporting requirements: 
• Annual surface emissions monitoring (SEM) report 
• Annual leachate flow meter calibration check 
• Semiannual groundwater sampling, laboratory analysis and reporting 
• Semiannual surface water sampling, laboratory analysis and reporting 
• Quarterly leachate sampling, laboratory analysis and reporting 
• Monthly gas system flare operations, inspection and maintenance 
• Gas system weekly, monthly, quarterly monitoring and annual maintenance and reporting 
 
In addition, APTIM has included Task 7 to cover regulatory compliant gas system operation during 
construction of the gas system improvements and upgrades. This will require extensive coordination with 
Golder and the construction contractor including gas system monitoring and ongoing communication with 
the Air District as the gas system undergoes modifications to improve is operations under the Air District 
permit to operate. 
 
APTIM’s proposed routine service fee for the 12-month term extension is $220,100. This is an increase of 
about 25 percent over the previous agreement’s five-year annual fee of $159,200. Since the initial five-year 
agreement has a fixed annual fee with no provision for annual cost escalation, APTIM’s proposed fee 
increase provides for increased labor, material and transportation costs that have been experienced since 
the initial agreement was awarded in 2017 and will cover the one-year extension time period. This increase 
is consistent with the consumer price index increases over the last five years. APTIM has also proposed a 
budget of $50,000 to cover on-call maintenance and repair work (the same annual amount as the current 
agreement for this task) and $25,000 for wellfield reconstruction support over an anticipated six-month 
period of time.  

Page E-3.3



Staff Report #: 22-117-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Staff will issue an RFP for a new five-year operation and maintenance agreement during spring 2023, once 
the Bedwell Landfill leachate and gas system improvements and upgrades are complete. This new 
agreement is anticipated to begin July 1, 2023.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
Landfill post closure funds will be utilized to continue to operate and maintain the Bedwell Bayfront Park 
Landfill leachate and gas collection system. The proposed fiscal year 2022-23 operating budget includes 
sufficient funding for the extension of this agreement.  
 

Environmental Review 
This project is categorically exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines 
Sections 15301(c) and 15301(d) Existing Facilities. 

 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Agreement amendment and original agreement 
B. Hyperlink – April 18, 2017, City Council Staff Report: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/13404/I2---

Bayfront-Park-Maintenance-Agreement?bidId=  
C. APTIM one-year extension proposal 
 
Report prepared by: 
Tanisha Werner, Assistant Public Works Director 
 
Reviewed by: 
Nikki Nagaya, Public Works Director 

Page E-3.4

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/13404/I2---Bayfront-Park-Maintenance-Agreement?bidId
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/13404/I2---Bayfront-Park-Maintenance-Agreement?bidId


CC Rev 20210301 

AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
City Manager’s Office 
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 
tel 650-330-6620  

Amendment #: 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MENLO PARK AND APTIM ENVIRONMENTAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE, LLC 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made and entered into this __________________________, by and 
between the CITY OF MENLO PARK, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “CITY,” and 
APTIM ENVIRONMENTAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE, LLC, hereinafter referred to as “FIRST PARTY.” 

1. Pursuant to Section 4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT of Agreement No. 2117, (“Agreement”),
Section 4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT [amendment to section] to read as follows”

“CITY shall pay FIRST PARTY an all-inclusive fee that shall not exceed $1,321,100 as described in
Exhibit "A", A-1, and A-2 Scope of Services.  This compensation shall be based on the rates
described in Exhibit "A, A-1, And A-2".  All payments, including fixed hourly rates, shall be inclusive
of all indirect and direct charges to the Project incurred by FIRST PARTY. The CITY reserves the
right to withhold payment if the City determines that the quantity or quality of the work performed is
unacceptable.”

2. Pursuant to Section 9. NOTICES of Agreement No. 2117, (“Agreement”), Section 9. NOTICES
[amendment to section] to read as follows”

Nicole H. Nagaya
Public Works
City of Menlo Park
701 Laurel St.
Menlo Park, CA 94025
650-330-6740
PWSupportstaff@menlopark.org

Notices required to be given to FIRST PARTY shall be addressed as follows: 

Christopher M. Richgels  
APTIM ENVIRONMENTAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE, LLC. 
4005 Port 
Chicago HWY, Concord, CA 94520 
916-218-8375
christopher.richgels@aptim.com

3. Pursuant to Section 24. TERM OF AGREEMENT of Agreement No. 2117, (“Agreement”), Section
24. TERM OF AGREEMENT [amendment to section] to read as follows”

“This Agreement shall remain in effect for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2023 unless 
extended, amended, or terminated in writing by CITY.” 

Except as modified by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of Agreement No. number 
remain the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first 
above written. 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

ATTACHMENT A

Page E-3.5

mailto:PWSupportstaff@menlopark.org
mailto:christopher.richgels@aptim.com


2 
 

  CC Rev 20200301 
 

FOR FIRST PARTY: 

 
   
Signature  Date 
 
  
Printed name Title 
 
   
Tax ID# 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 
Nira F. Doherty, City Attorney     Date 
 
FOR CITY OF MENLO PARK: 

 
 
 
Justin I. C. Murphy, Interim City Manager   Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk     Date 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page E-3.6



Page E-3.7



Page E-3.8



Page E-3.9



Page E-3.10



Page E-3.11



Page E-3.12



Page E-3.13



Page E-3.14



Page E-3.15



Page E-3.16



Page E-3.17



Page E-3.18



Page E-3.19



Page E-3.20



Page E-3.21



Page E-3.22



Page E-3.23



Page E-3.24



Page E-3.25



Page E-3.26



Page E-3.27



Page E-3.28



Page E-3.29



Page E-3.30



Page E-3.31



Page E-3.32



Page E-3.33



Page E-3.34



Page E-3.35



Page E-3.36



Page E-3.37



Page E-3.38



Page E-3.39



Page E-3.40



Page E-3.41



Page E-3.42



Page E-3.43



Page E-3.44



Page E-3.45



Page E-3.46



Page E-3.47



Page E-3.48



Page E-3.49



Page E-3.50



Page E-3.51



Page E-3.52



Page E-3.53



Page E-3.54



Page E-3.55



Page E-3.56



Page E-3.57



Page E-3.58



Page E-3.59



Page E-3.60



Page E-3.61



Page E-3.62



Page E-3.63



Page E-3.64



Page E-3.65



Page E-3.66



Page E-3.67



Page E-3.68



Page E-3.69



Page E-3.70



Page E-3.71



Page E-3.72



Page E-3.73



Page E-3.74



Page E-3.75



Page E-3.76



Page E-3.77



Page E-3.78



Page E-3.79



Page E-3.80



Page E-3.81



Page E-3.82



Page E-3.83



Page E-3.84



Page E-3.85



Page E-3.86



Page E-3.87



Page E-3.88



Page E-3.89



Public Works 

 
   

 

 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   4/18/2017 
Staff Report Number:  17-082-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Authorize the City Manager to enter into an 

agreement with CB&I Environmental & 
Infrastructure, Inc. (CB&I) for the Operation and 
Maintenance of the Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill 
Leachate and Gas Collection and Control Systems 
(gas system) for a period of five years in the amount 
of $796,000 with an additional not to exceed 
$250,000 for as-needed maintenance repairs  

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with CB&I for 
the Operation and Maintenance of the Bedwell Bayfront Park leachate and gas collection systems for a 
period of five years in the amount of $159,200 annually (total of $796,000) with an additional not to exceed 
$50,000 annually (total of $250,000) for as-needed maintenance repairs. The contract amount will be 
included in the budget for fiscal year (FY) 2017-18. 

 

Policy Issues 

The contract is consistent with Goal LU (Land Use) of the General Plan Land Use Element which is 
intended to “promote the implementation and maintenance of sustainable development, facilities and 
services to meet the needs of Menlo Park's residents, businesses, workers, and visitors.” 

 

Background 

The Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill is a Class III non-hazardous solid waste management facility located at 
the east end of the City on San Francisco Bay at Bayfront Expressway and Marsh Road. The site is 
surrounded on three sides by the Don Edwards San Francisco Bay National Wildlife Refuge. Originally 
referred to as the Marsh Road Landfill, San Mateo County first established solid waste operations at the site 
in 1957. In 1968, the City of Menlo Park (City) took over the responsibility of the landfill until its closure in 
1984. In 1982, the City began the development of Bedwell Bayfront Park on the 160 acre site, of which the 
landfill covers 155 acres.  

To comply with Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) regulatory requirements and as part 
of the landfill closure plan, the City covered the refuse with clay. A landfill gas wellfield was installed in two 
phases, with the first phase built in 1984 and the second phase in 1987. Currently, the wellfield consists of 
72 gas extraction wells and a network of gas collection pipes embedded just beneath the surface of the 
landfill cap. During that time, the City awarded a Gas Lease to Fortistar, a contract operator, to build, 
maintain and operate a gas to energy plant. Internal combustion engines were used to generate electricity 
from the landfill. The electricity was sold to Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E). The gas to energy plant was 
decommissioned in 2013 when the contract with PG&E expired and due to equipment wear and a decrease 
in landfill gas production. The landfill gas is directed to a flare for combustion near the far end of the park.  A 

Page E-3.90



Staff Report #: 17-082-CC 

 
   

 

 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

new flare was built in 2013 and the landfill gas is combusted in compliance with the BAAQMD permit.  The 
gas system has continued to be operated by Fortistar, with their contract set to expire at the end of this 
fiscal year.  

The leachate system consists of twelve extraction sumps located along the perimeter of the landfill and a 
monitoring network. In 1986 and 1987, seven leachate sumps were first installed, followed by the 
installation of five additional extraction sumps in 1998-99. In 1991, automated submersible pumps were 
installed in the older sumps, which originally consisted of gravel filled trenches with horizontal perforated 
piping at the base. The sumps installed in 1998-99 consist of gravel filled trenches with perforated piping at 
the base that slope toward risers equipped with automated submersible pumps and level control. Once the 
leachate is captured, it is discharged to the sanitary system, operated by the West Bay Sanitary District 
(WBSD), for conveyance to the wastewater treatment plant for treatment, which is operated by Silicon 
Valley Clean Water (SVCW) (formerly the South Bayside System Authority).  

The leachate system is operated and monitored per the requirements of the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB). The City has the responsibility to monitor, collect samples and dispose of the leachate 
generated from the landfill. The monitoring system consists of seven groundwater monitoring wells, two 
surface water monitoring locations, six leachate wells, five piezometers, the twelve leachate extraction 
sumps  and one leachate monitoring location at a sanitary sewer manhole. The operation and maintenance 
of the system has been contracted to CB&I since 1991. Their contract is set to expire at the end of this fiscal 
year.  

The Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill typically generates about 127 million standard cubic feet of landfill gas a 
year. About 3.5 million gallons of leachate are extracted from the landfill and discharged to the sanitary 
sewer annually. 
 
Regulatory Requirements 
The Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill is operated and maintained according to the requirements placed by the 
following permits: 
 
Leachate 

 Waste Discharge Requirements Order 97-073 (WDR): The water quality monitoring and reporting 
requirements for the Bedwell Bayfront Park landfill leachate system are stipulated in Waste Discharge 
Requirements Order 97-073 (WDR), issued by RWQCB in 1997 with no expiration date.    
 

 Mandatory Wastewater Discharge Permit No. WB 120930 (MWDP): Monitoring is required under the 
MWDP, a joint permit issued by the WBSD and SVCW for the conveyance of the leachate to the 
sanitary system operated by WBSD and for treatment at the wastewater treatment facility operated by 
SVCW in Redwood City. The current 5-year permit expires on September 29, 2017. 

 
Gas 

 BAAQMD: The monitoring and reporting requirements for the gas system at the landfill are contained in 
the annual permit issued by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) to regulate 
emission of landfill gas to the atmosphere (Permit to Operate Landfill with gas collection system, Multi-
material Bayfront Park Landfill with Gas Collection System Abated by A3 Flare; Plant No. 3499; 
Expiration date: July 1, 2017). The permit requires regular monitoring of the gas collection system and 
flare station as well as annual reporting. The permit requires compliance with BAAQMD Regulations 8-
34, 2-1, 2-5, 9-1, AB32 and others. 
 

 

Page E-3.91



Staff Report #: 17-082-CC 

 
   

 

 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Other Landfill Permits 

 San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC): Originally issued on 
December 24, 1970, the BCDC Permit No. 18-70 allowed for the development of the landfill by filling 
unfilled areas of the Bay and by allowing for the conversion of the closed landfill to a park. This permit 
was amended on September 19, 2008, to allow wetland mitigation funds to be used for habitat 
restoration instead of land acquisition. There are no monitoring or reporting requirements associated 
with this permit.    
 

 San Mateo County Environmental Health, Solid Waste Program: San Mateo County inspects the 
landfill on a quarterly basis.   

 

Analysis 

In February of this year, staff issued a request for proposals (RFP) for the necessary services to operate 
and maintain the leachate and gas systems at the Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill in accordance with all 
regulatory requirements. The scope of work included in the RFP was as follows: 
 
Task 1 – Routine Monitoring and Operating Services 
The Contractor shall be responsible for operating and conducting routine monitoring of the leachate and gas 
systems. In addition to the monitoring requirements, the Contractor shall be responsible for adjustments to 
the leachate and gas systems in case of system failure and needed repair work. The Contractor shall have 
the availability to arrive at the site and respond to equipment malfunctions and emergencies within 8 hours 
of the call-out service request.  

Task 2 – Sampling and Analysis  

The Contractor shall be responsible for the development of sampling protocols and complying with the 
analytical requirements as stipulated in all of the permits for the landfill. Analysis of constituents shall be 
conducted by certified laboratories. At a minimum, the Contractor shall be responsible for complying with 
the following permits and requirements. 

Task 3 – Monitoring and Analysis Reports and Project Management 

The Contractor shall be responsible for the preparation of all monthly, semiannual and annual reports as 
required by the City and the regulatory requirements outlined in the permits and for submitting these to the 
permit agencies on behalf of the City. All reports shall include a description of the site and landfill systems, 
evaluation criteria, explanation of any calculations, certified analytical results, monitoring and inspection 
summaries, field and laboratory records, maps and figures and any recommendations. All reports shall be 
submitted to the City for review prior their submittal to the permitting agencies.    

Task 4 - Maintenance and Repair Work 

The Contractor shall provide all the necessary labor, equipment and materials to perform maintenance and 
repair work on the leachate and gas systems on an on-call and as-needed basis. The work may be based 
on maintenance and repairs needs identified during routine inspections, system failures, and any other work 
requested by City staff.  
 
Task 5 – Project Management 
The Contractor shall provide project management support, as required, inclusive of the following:  

 Coordination and meetings with City staff and permit agencies; 

 Site visits with City staff; 

 Assistance with and review of permit expiration dates, application renewal processes, monitoring 
and maintenance regulations; and 

Page E-3.92



Staff Report #: 17-082-CC 

 
   

 

 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 Development of recommendations and cost estimates for improving the performance of the landfill 
systems. 

 
The City received five proposals on March 8, 2017. These included CB&I, Geosyntec Consultants, SCS 
Engineers, Blue Flame Crew and Tetra Tech Inc. Staff reviewed the proposals and is recommending that 
CB&I is awarded the contract for the following reasons: 
 

 CB&I provided the lowest bid; and 

 The team has extensive experience operating and managing landfills, including both leachate and 
gas systems.  

 

 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
The total annual cost for the operation and maintenance of the Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill Leachate and 
Gas Collection and Control Systems is $159,200 with an additional not to exceed $50,000 for as-needed 
maintenance repairs. The total five year contract amounts to $1,046,000. On an annual basis, this is an 
increase of $27,085 a year (difference between $159,200 and the current contract of $132,115). However, 
the new scope of work includes regulatory requirements, which were not included in the past contract and 
which have been done by staff. To ensure that the leachate and gas systems are operated according to the 
most up to date regulatory requirements, the reporting requirements have been included as part of the 
scope of work for this contract. Landfill funds will be used to pay for the contract, which currently has a 
balance of over $4M. The contract amount will be included in the budget for FY 2017-18 and would begin 
on July 1, 2017. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Environmental review is not required for this item.  

 

Public Notice 

Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Attachments 

A. None 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Azalea Mitch, Engineering Services Manager / City Engineer 
 
Reviewed by: 
Justin Murphy, Public Works Director 
 

Page E-3.93



MAY 19, 2022 

ATTENTION: Mike Sartor

SUBJECT: Proposed Contract 2117 Extension 

Mr. Sartor: 

Aptim Environmental & Infrastructure, LLC. (APTIM) appreciates this 
opportunity to extend our services to the City of Menlo Park Department 
of Public Works (City) for operation, maintenance (O&M), and reporting 
of the Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill (Landfill) leachate and gas 
collection and control systems, and groundwater monitoring and 
reporting services. We have the utmost confidence in our ability to 
continue to meet your goals and objectives based upon the experience 
of our local senior staff that has been conducting the scope of work for 
the past few years. 

In addition, APTIM is prepared to provide O&M support to the pending 
GCCS reconstruction scheduled for the summer of 2022.  Our project 
manager, Christopher M. Richgels, P.E., has known and worked with 
the Golder GCCS design team (Steve Nguyen and Andy Wang) for just 
a few decades now.  APTIM will work closely with the Golder team and 
contractor to maintain flare operations while the system undergoes 
reconstruction. 

APTIM is highly qualified to provide these services based on our over 
30 years’ experience in environmental landfill consulting, O&M of landfill 
leachate collection and recovery systems (LCRS) and gas collection 
and control systems (GCCS), WDR compliance, and landfill regulations 
for the Landfill.  

As Senior Director of Operations for APTIM, Mr. Devin Moose is 
authorized to sign contracts binding the firm on its behalf.  

Our attached scope description further elaborates on our Team's 
experience and our approach to continuing this project through June 
2023. We look forward to continuing our services to the City. If you have 
any questions, please contact me at (630) 762-3308 or Chris Richgels 
at (916) 218-8375. 

APTIM proposes to continue these services under Contract 2117 dated 
5 April 2017 

Sincerely, 

Aptim Environmental and Infrastructure 

Devin A. Moose Christopher M. Richgels, P.E. 
CSW OPERATIONS DIRECTOR PROJECT MANAGER 

C (630) 762-3308 C (916) 218-8375 
E devin.moose@aptim.com E christopher.richgels@aptim.com 

APTIM 

4005 PORT 
CHICAGO HWY 

CONCORD, CA 
94520 

APTIM.com 

ATTACHMENT C

Page E-3.94



Your Project Team 

APTIM has assigned the following people to this project through 2023: 

Christopher Richgels, PE, will serve as your Project Manager for the project. Mr. Richgels 
started his professional career in 1989 with Emcon Associates in San Jose, California and has 
managed private consultant design projects from conception through construction.  He has over 
33 years’ experience in all aspects of solid waste facility management including GCCS 
development and expansion, groundwater remediation and monitoring. 

Andrew Kowalski, Air Quality Permitting will serve as your Task Manager specializing in air 
quality permitting and compliance. Over  the past year, Mr. Kowalski has assisted with 
preparation of the monthly and annual regulatory reports for the Landfill.  In addition, Mr. 
Kowalski has experience managing data and compliance for landfills throughout the U.S., and 
actively manages data for more than 10 landfills. Mr. Kowalski has also supported clients with 
notice of violation response and follow-up compliance, onsite facility combustion source 
inventory/inspection, preparing environmental plans and reports, continuous emission 
monitoring (CEMS) quarterly data reconciliation reports, and EPA Method 9 visible emissions 
observations. 

Scott Furlong, Regulatory Liaison and Air Quality Specialist serves as a Project 
Manager/Environmental Lead in the Solid Waste group. He is currently involved in project 
management and regulatory support for landfill gas projects and landfill NSPS/NESHAP 
compliance in PA, CA, and LA.  He will provide review and technical oversight of all GCCS 
reporting prepared for the project. 

Cassandra Tremblay, PG, your Project Geologist will continue her responsibilities ensuring the 
groundwater monitoring and reporting work is conducted in accordance with the latest Waste 
Discharge Requirements and will lead the preparation of groundwater monitoring reports for the 
Landfill.  She will prepare the October semi-annual ground water and monthly leachate 
monitoring reports. 

Dan Easter, PG, CEG  will continue his responsibilities providing review and technical oversight 
of the leachate and groundwater monitoring reports.  He is a Professional Geologist and 
Certified Engineering Geologist (California) with over 33 years of experience in project 
management, remedial investigations and removal actions, land-use planning, engineering 
geology, hydrogeology, riparian and coastal processes, geologic hazard assessments, and 
groundwater investigations. He has been responsible for design, implementation, and 
management of numerous site characterization, environmental monitoring, and remediation 
programs 

Scott Bittinger, PG, your non-routine services geologist will prepare additional information 
requests for special analyses requested by the City or by the Regional Board.  He is a 
Professional Geologist (California) with over 22 years in groundwater well design and 
installation, and of soil/soil vapor and groundwater cleanup projects.  He will also provide 
backup for field support for landfill projects, including drilling and development oversight of new 
monitoring wells or other evaluation and investigation programs. 

Sheila Richgels – Laboratory Coordination and Analysis Lead. She will continue 
coordination of environmental field sampling at the landfill. She brings over 30 years of 
experience in coordination environmental monitoring programs for dozens of landfills in northern 

Page E-3.95



 
 

 

 

California.  Her responsibilities include scheduling of all fieldwork, coordinating with the 
analytical laboratory, and reviewing all field paperwork for completeness and accuracy.  Ms. 
Richgels is in charge of APTIM’s field sampling staff for Northern and Central California.   

Paul Weinhardt – Groundwater Monitoring Lead will continue to perform sampling/monitoring 
activities at the Landfill. Mr. Weinhardt has been providing superior field services for geologists 
and engineers for more than 25 years. His experience includes groundwater monitoring, 
operations and maintenance of groundwater and soil vapor extraction systems, soil sampling, 
lysimeter monitoring, leachate monitoring, and well development.  

Pedro Ruiz - GCCS O&M, Monitoring and Leachate System Support Lead will provide 
groundwater monitoring support on this project. He is a Field Technician with 25 years of 
experience in the environmental field. His primary responsibilities include field operation and 
maintenance (O&M) of groundwater treatment systems. He is an experienced field technician 
with skills operating environmental sampling and monitoring instruments for air, soil, and water. 

Michel Hills, Field Services Technician is a field technician with over 10 years of experience 
in the environmental field.  His experience includes landfill GCCS O&M, environmental 
monitoring, sampling, O&M of groundwater treatment systems, installation of innovative 
remedial systems modifications of remedial systems, tank removals, and air, soil, groundwater, 
surface water sampling. Mr. Hills currently works closely with Mr. Richgels and Ruiz to perform 
field monitoring, sampling activities, routine O&M services, and on-call maintenance, repairs as 
needed at the Landfill. 

Subcontractors 

APTIM will continue our working relationship with : 

Pace Analytical Laboratories, Inc. (Formerly BC Laboratories) 

Pace Analytical Laboratories, Inc. (Pace) will continue to provide groundwater, surface water, 
and leachate analytical services to APTIM as the most reasonably priced and best qualified 
provider of such services for this project based on their current working long term relationship 
with APTIM.  The selection of an analytical laboratory is an important consideration. High quality 
analytical data is necessary for compliance with the WDRs. 

Blue Flame Environmental, Inc. 

Blue Flame Environmental, Inc. (Blue Flame) will continue to provide APTIM flare inspection, 
operations and maintenance services through 2023.  Blue Flame utilizes United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), CARB and BAAQMD approved test methods, with the 
goal of reporting accurate and defensible data that surpasses the expectations and 
requirements of our clients and applicable regulatory agencies. Blue Flame offers testing 
services that are extremely competitive by keeping overhead low, while heavily investing in new 
equipment. 

Telstar Instruments, Inc. 

Telstar Instruments, Inc. (Telstar) will provide APTIM annual flow meter calibration verification 
services at the enclosed flare station this fall. Telstar has been providing this service for the last 
9 years.  Telstar Instruments is a state certified instrumentation and controls integrator 
specializing in PLC_SCADA systems, measurement instrumentation, and automated process 

Page E-3.96



 
 

 

 

controls. Telstar provides complete onsite maintenance and calibration services, for all brands 
of PLC's, VFD's, process control instrumentation, radio telemetry, and SCADA systems. 

Field Solutions Inc. 

Field Solutions Inc. (FSI) will provide APTIM with surface emissions monitoring (SEM) on the 
landfill this fall as required by PTO A3499  FSI has been providing this service since 2019.   

Scope of Work 

APTIM provides below a detailed description of the scope of services to be extended and 
construction support. 

Continuing O&M Services 

Continued O&M services must comply with all regulatory and updated permit requirements 
shown below: 

Leachate, Groundwater. and Surface Water: 

 Waste Discharge Requirements Order 97-073 (WDR) 

 Mandatory Wastewater Discharge Permit No. 170930 (MWDP) 

GCCS: 

 BAAQMD Permit to Operate No. A3499 

Other Landfill Permits: 

 San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC). 

 San Mateo County Environmental Health, Solid Waste Program 

Continuing Services Tasks 

APTIM will provide extended services under six tasks as outlined below.  Tasks 1 thru 4 and 
Task 6 will be billed as a lump sum monthly cost as is current practice.  Task 5 will be billed 
separately on a time and expense basis under the contracted hourly and equipment rates.: 

 Task 1 – Leachate & GCCS Routine Monitoring, Operating, and Maintenance Services 

 Task 2 – Quarterly Groundwater Sampling and Analysis 

 Task 3 – Groundwater Analysis Reports 

 Task 4 – GCCS Reporting 

 Task 5 – On-Call Maintenance and Repair Work 

 Task 6 – Project Management 

Page E-3.97



 
 

 

 

Task 1 Leachate & GCCS Routine Monitoring, Operating, and Maintenance 
Services 

During this extended contract period APTIM will be responsible for operating and conducting 
routine monitoring of the leachate system and GCCS as detailed below under Subtasks 1 a and 
1 b. 

Subtask 1a - Leachate 

Under Subtask 1a, APTIM will perform the following tasks on a monthly basis: 

 Monitor and record: 

› Flow at all leachate flow meters, 

› Pump run-times, 

› Piezometer levels, 

› Sump levels, and 

› Other pertinent parameters and activities. 

 Monitor and adjust the leachate system in accordance with the flow requirements set in 
Permit MWDP No. 170930 based on field measurements. 

› Observe and record maintenance and repair needs. 

› Perform routine maintenance on the leachate system to ensure that it is operating 
efficiently. 

› Observe and record major (non-routine) repair needs. 

› Perform other necessary tasks as required to ensure regulatory compliance; and 

› Provide all the monitoring and operating data for the monthly reports as described under 
Task 3. 

Subtask 1b - GCCS 

Under Subtask 1b, APTIM and Blue Flame will perform the following tasks: 

 A minimum of monthly, monitor and adjust the GCCS components to ensure that the system 
is operated efficiently and in accordance with all permit requirements. This will meet permit 
and BAAQMD requirements. 

 A minimum of monthly, adjust GCCS valves to ensure adequate gas flow, to reduce the 
migration of surface gases, and to minimize odors as needed. This will meet permit and 
BAAQMD requirements. 

 A minimum of monthly, monitor gas wells, condensate traps, laterals headers, blowers, flare 
and other GCCS components. This will meet permit and BAAQMD requirements. 

 Typically, on a weekly basis, APTIM and Blue Flame will monitor and record the flare 
operating parameters (temperature and pressure), gas quality (% methane, carbon dioxide, 
oxygen, balance), gas flow and temperature: blower operating parameters (temperature, 
pressure, valve positions, run time hours), condensate system conditions and will confirm 
that the flare operating parameters are being recorded on the continuous data recorder 
(Yokogawa). This will meet permit and BAAQMD requirements. 

 Weekly conduct a general inspection of the flare station operations including: 

› Alarm history. 

Page E-3.98



 
 

 

 

› Current operating conditions. 

› Condensate management system functioning properly. 

› Air compressor system functioning properly. 

› Data recorder functioning properly. 

› Sump pumps functioning properly. 

› Check well field vacuum. 

› Verify the City's SCADA system is receiving data. 

› Check flow and vacuum historical data since previous week to determine if any 
variations or shutdowns occurred; and 

› Other general operational parameters. 

 A minimum of monthly, download and review the data from the continuous data recorded 
(Yokogawa) to ensure flare data is being recorded properly and operations are within the 
requirements of the permit and BAAQMD Rules and Regulations. 

 Measure and record on a monthly basis the static pressures, temperature, and percent 
content (methane, carbon dioxide, oxygen, balance) of the landfill gas at each of the 
wellheads as well as the liquid levels in the wellheads. 

 Calibrate on a monthly basis the analytical equipment. 

 Record / document all GCCS activities. 

 Inspect and maintain the flare in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements. 

 Perform routine maintenance on the GCCS to ensure that it is operating efficiently. 

 Observe and record major (non-routine) repair needs. 

 Ensure that the analytical equipment used is calibrated and certified. 

 Any other necessary tasks as required / as needed to ensure regulatory compliance; and 

 Provide all the monitoring and operating data for the monthly reports as described under 
Task 4. 

APTIM will perform all GCCS sampling and analysis requirements pursuant to the BAAQMD 
through 2022.  Specifically, APTIM will conduct surface emissions monitoring in September 
measuring the methane gas concentrations in parts per million off the surface of the Landfill 
within numbered grids.  Exceedances will be flagged in the field and marked on the grid map. 
Then, prior to leaving the site, APTIM will notify the City of any exceedances such that the City 
may visit to investigate and schedule repairs. Since the site has historically not had emission 
issues, 10 and 30-day re-scans are not included in APTIM's cost proposal. 

The flare gas flowmeter is calibrated on an annual basis.  APTIM will provide this service in the 
fall per the historical schedule. 

Flare source testing was recently conducted in January 2022.  The source test is due every four 
(4) year in accordance with the BAAQMD Permit, thus will not be required again until January 
2026.  Flare source testing is not included in this scope of work. 

In addition to the above monitoring activities, APTIM will perform adjustments to the leachate 
system and GCCS in case of system failure and needed repair work.  APTIM will have the 
availability to arrive at the site and respond to equipment malfunctions and emergencies within 8 
hours of the call-out service request. 

Page E-3.99



 
 

 

 

Task 2 – Groundwater/Leachate Sampling and Analysis 

APTIM will be responsible for the development of sampling protocols and complying with all 
sampling and analytical requirements required by the applicable Landfill permits. Analysis of 
constituents will be conducted by a certified laboratory (Pace Analytical Laboratories – formerly 
Pace). 

APTIM will be responsible for complying with the water quality monitoring and reporting 
requirements required by WDR Order 97-073. These requirements include, but are not limited 
to: 

WDR Order 97-073: 

 Quarterly sampling and analysis of the leachate. 

 Semi-annual sampling and analysis of the groundwater. 

 Semi-annual sampling and analysis of the surface water. 

 Semi-annual site inspections. 

 Preparation and submittal of all monitoring reports to the applicable regulatory agencies on 
behalf of the City (as described under Task 3). 

Further, APTIM will be responsible for complying with the leachate water quality monitoring and 
reporting requirements required by MWDP No. WB 120930. These requirements include, but 
are not limited to: 

MWDP No. 170930: 

 Quarterly sampling and analysis for specific constituents required by MWDP No. 170930; 
and 

 Monthly flow measurements and reporting. 

Task 3 – Groundwater/Leachate Monitoring Reports 

Under Task 3 services, APTIM will prepare all monthly, semiannual, and annual monitoring 
reports as required by the City and in accordance with the regulatory requirements of the 
Landfill permits. APTIM will submit these reports to the applicable permit agencies on behalf of 
the City. All reports will include a description of the site and landfill systems, evaluation criteria, 
explanation of any calculations, certified analytical results, monitoring and inspection 
summaries, field and laboratory records, maps and figures, and any recommendations. All 
reports will be submitted in draft form to the City for review and comment, and subsequently 
finalized with any City comments prior to their submittal to the permitting agencies. 

APTIM will be responsible for the preparation and submittal of all monitoring and analysis 
reports complying with the water quality reporting requirements contained in WDR Order 97- 
073 and MWDP No. WB 120930. Specifically, APTIM will provide the following: 

WDR Order 97-073: 

 Preparation and submittal of semi-annual reports due in April and October of each year 

The October 2022 and April 2023 reports will be prepared under this scope.   

MWDP No. 170930: 

 Preparation and submittal of monthly leachate reports. 

Page E-3.100



 
 

 

 

Task 4 – GCCS Reporting 

APTIM will continue preparation and submittal to the City of all monitoring and analysis reports 
complying with the GCCS reporting requirements of BAAQMD. Specifically, APTIM will be 
responsible for performing the following: 

 Preparation and submittal of monthly reports that include a summary of the GCCS 
monitoring data and maintenance activities; and 

  Maintaining accurate records and access to the records / monitoring data for a period of 5 
years.  Data storage should be duplicated by the City and conducted at the City offices. 

 Preparation of annual compliance reporting in early 2023 

Task 5 - On-Call Maintenance and Repair Work 

APTIM will provide all the necessary labor, equipment, and materials to perform maintenance 
and repair work on the leachate system and GCCS on an on-call and as-needed basis. The 
work may be based on maintenance and repairs needs identified during routine inspections, 
system failures, and any other work requested by City Staff. 

Office level non-routine work scope may include: 

 Preparation of renewal application package for the leachate Mandatory Wastewater 
Discharge Permit with Silicon Valley Clean Water in September 2022.  The last permissible 
automatic extension to permit 170930 occurred last year.  

 Develop recommendations and cost estimates for improving the performance of the landfill 
environmental control systems. 

APTIM will provide an estimated cost of the on-call work and will seek authorization from the 
City prior to proceeding. 

Task 6 - Project Management 

Under Task 6, APTIM will provide project management of the above tasks as required, and will 
include the following: 

 Coordinate and conduct meetings with City staff and permit agencies. 

 Conduct site visits with City staff. 

 Assist with and review permit expiration dates, application renewal processes, monitoring, 
and maintenance regulations 

GCCS Improvements 

The City will be contracting for improvements to the GCCS wellfield and leachate control system 
this summer.  APTIM will provide the services below on an on call, time-and-expense basis. 

Task 7 – Wellfield Reconstruction Support 

The City will be reconstructing the GCCS wellfield this summer.  To maintain compliant GCCS 
operation will require extensive coordination between APTIM, the wellfield engineer (Golder 
Associates), the wellfield contractor, and the City (for flare shutdown notification).   

APTIM will provide GCCS monitoring and new wellfield branch balancing as those installations 
are brought online by the contractor.  APTIM’s project manager will participate in construction 

Page E-3.101



 
 

 

 

status meetings to coordinate and schedule new wellfield branch start up procedures with 
monitoring and extraction well balancing. 

APTIM will maintain communications with the City’s SCADA management team to facilitate flare 
restart after shutdowns due to landfill gas flow impacts from site construction work.  Typically, 
the flare has an auto-start system that will restart the flare in the event of a power failure.  
However, the flare may require some onsite management for restarts during gas flow failures.  
In the event of flare shutdowns due to construction, APTIM will prepare the necessary 
“breakdown” reports for submittal to the BAAQMD.  APTIM will keep the BAAQMD advised as to 
reconstruction project status and wellfield replacement schedule. 

Cost Estimate 

APTIM’s cost estimate for services extending beyond the expiration date of June 30, 2022 is 
presented below.  Costs are presented in three levels: routine, non-routine on-call service, and 
construction support.  This work would be conducted under the current contract as extended by 
the City. 

Please note the twelve-month budget includes: 

 1 ea Surface emissions monitoring (September 2022). 

 1 ea Annual flow meter calibration check (Fall 2022) 

 2 ea Semi-annual groundwater sampling, laboratory analysis, and reporting event 

 2 ea Surface water sampling laboratory analysis and reporting event 

 4 ea Quarterly leachate sampling, laboratory analysis and reporting events  

 12 ea Monthly flare operations inspection and maintenance  

 GCCS Weekly, monthly, quarterly monitoring, annual maintenance, and reporting tasks. 

Also note cost for some of the above events are distributed over a twelve-month extended term. 
These distributed costs include preparation of the annual GCCS permit compliance and both 
semi-annual groundwater monitoring reports (October 2022, and April 2023). 

APTIM's proposed routine service fee on a twelve-month basis from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2023 is $200,100.  On a monthly bill cycle as currently done, this equates to $16,675 billed 
monthly. 

For the Task 5 non-routine services APTIM recommends budgeting $50,000 over the twelve-
month period from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.   APTIM assumes Task 7 construction support 
services will be required from July 1, 2022 to December 32, 2022.  We recommend budgeting 
$25,000 over this six-month period.  These tasks would be billed for labor and expenses per the 
contacted labor hourly rate and equipment rate schedule.  Subcontractor and other direct cost 
would be billed per expense plus a 7.5% markup per the current contract terms. 

Page E-3.102



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-118-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Adopt resolutions authorizing staff to submit 

applications to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission for the One Bay Area Grant Program   

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt two resolutions (Attachments A and B) authorizing staff to 
submit two applications to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for the One Bay Area Grant 
third round (OBAG-3) to request funding for the Middle Avenue Pedestrian and Bicycle Undercrossing 
project (Undercrossing Project) and the El Camino Real Pedestrian Crossing Improvement project 
(Crossing Project.) 

 
Policy Issues 
This Project is consistent with the 2016 General Plan goal and policies. These policies seek to maintain a 
safe, efficient, attractive, user-friendly circulation system that promotes a healthy, safe and active 
community and quality of life throughout Menlo Park. Both the Undercrossing Project and the Crossing 
Project are included in the City’s capital improvement program and the Undercrossing Project is a City 
Council priority. The grant applications require a City Council resolution of support and commitment of 
matching funds.  

 
Background 
MTC is the Bay Area regional planning agency with authority over the distribution of select federal funding 
consistent with federal law. One Bay Area, the name of the regional transportation plan that is required 
under federal law, is in its third cycle. In each plan cycle, MTC, along with partner county congestion 
management authorities, has distributed federal transportation funding from the Federal Highway 
Administration to projects and programs that improve safety, spur economic development and help the Bay 
Area meet climate change and air quality improvement goals. 
 
The OBAG-3 grant program is intended to invest funds in the transportation system at regional and local 
levels that are consistent with regional policies. In San Mateo County, the City/County Association of 
Governments (C/CAG) is the county congestion management agency, which will provide the first review of 
the OBAG-3 applications.  
 
In past rounds of OBAG, the county congestion management authorities selected the local portion of the 
program. For OBAG-3, the county agencies will make recommendations, but MTC will have the sole 
authority to select projects. Federal law does not allow regional agencies like MTC to delegate authority 
over federal funding to other agencies. MTC has established target amounts for each of the nine counties, 
including $32.6 million for San Mateo County. Because the funding will be ultimately distributed by MTC, 
projects in San Mateo County could receive more or less than the target. 
 

AGENDA ITEM E-4

Page E-4.1



Staff Report #: 22-118-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Analysis 
Criteria guiding selection of OBAG-3 projects include: 
• Complement efforts to increase housing near established Priority Development Areas (PDA) 
• Invest in pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure or advance complete streets principles 
• Reduce single occupant vehicle travel and greenhouse gas emissions  
• Reduce fatalities and serious injuries 
 
In Menlo Park, the only designated PDA is the El Camino Real and Downtown Specific Plan area, which 
limits which projects can compete for OBAG-3 funds. In late June, staff submitted an Active Transportation 
Program grant application for improvements to Willow Road from US highway 101 to Bayfront Expressway, 
which does not have the same PDA requirements. 
 
Staff are planning to submit two grant applications in the OBAG-3 cycle: 
• The Undercrossing Project would construct a new grade separated undercrossing of the Caltrain tracks 

near Middle Avenue. This project is an established City Council priority that has a $6.5 million funding 
gap. Recently, Congresswoman Anna Eshoo requested that this project be included as a member 
designated project in the fiscal year 2022-23 Federal budget. Given uncertainty about the Federal budget 
and rising construction costs, staff believes it is prudent to seek additional funding.  

• The Crossing Project would construct intersection improvements at the three remaining El Camino Real 
intersections that do not have a pedestrian crossing on one leg of the intersection – at Roble Avenue, 
Ravenswood Avenue and Encinal Avenue. Adding crosswalks at these intersections requires replacing 
traffic signal equipment and adding or adjusting curb ramps, requiring substantial funding. 

 
The OBAG-3 grant application deadline is July 1. CCAG will review the grant applications and pass 
nominations on to MTC by September 2022. Grant funds must be obligated by January 31, 2027, though 
staff anticipates requesting funding for these projects sooner.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
For the Undercrossing Project, staff is seeking $5,000,000 in OBAG-3 funding (the maximum award.) The 
OBAG-3 grant requires a 20 percent match for projects that are not in a CCAG equity focus area. The City 
has already allocated substantial funding for the project and, in combination with other grant funds received, 
no additional City funding is requested at this time. Staff is currently working toward a construction on the 
Undercrossing Project in fiscal year 2024-25. 
 
For the Crossing Project, staff is seeking $2,000,000 out of a total cost of $2,500,000 to complete the 
crosswalks at all three intersections. The City’s contribution meet the 20% requirement. Currently, this City’s 
capital improvement program includes approximately $307,000 to design and construct the three new 
crossings, including approximately $170,000 in funding for the design phase. The City’s match for the 
project is expected to be funded from different sources including the Transportation Impact Fee and the 
Transportation Project (Minor) project. If successful, staff anticipates that the Crossing Project could be 
implemented in fiscal year 2023-24. 
 
If the City is not successful with this grant opportunity, staff would continue to identify potential grant 
sources for these projects.  
 

Page E-4.2



Staff Report #: 22-118-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment.  

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution – Middle Avenue pedestrian and bicycle undercrossing 
B. Resolution – El Camino Real pedestrian crossings 
C. Map of the project location  

 
 

Report prepared by: 
Hugh Louch, Assistant Public Works Director - Transportation 
 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Nicole Nagaya, Public Works Director 

Page E-4.3



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING ASSIGNED 
TO METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND COMMITTING 
ANY NECESSARY MATCHING FUNDS AND STATING ASSURANCE TO 
COMPLETE THE MIDDLE AVENUE PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE 
UNDERCROSSING PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (APPLICANT) is submitting an application to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for $5,000,000 in funding assigned to MTC for 
programming discretion, which includes federal funding administered by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) and federal or state funding administered by the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) such as Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP) 
funding, Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) funding, 
Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside/Active Transportation Program (ATP) funding, and 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) funding (herein collectively referred to as 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING) for the Middle Avenue Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Undercrossing project (PROJECT) for the STP funding (herein referred to as PROGRAM); and 
 
WHEREAS, the United States Congress from time to time enacts and amends legislation to 
provide funding for various transportation needs and programs, (collectively, the FEDERAL 
TRANSPORTATION ACT) including, but not limited to the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program (STP) (23 U.S.C. § 133), the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
Program (CMAQ) (23 U.S.C. § 149) and the Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside (23 
U.S.C. § 133); and 
 
WHEREAS, state statutes, including California Streets and Highways Code §182.6, §182.7, and 
§2381(a)(1), and California Government Code §14527, provide various funding programs for the 
programming discretion of the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and the Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT, and any regulations 
promulgated thereunder, eligible project sponsors wishing to receive federal or state funds for a 
regionally-significant project shall submit an application first with the appropriate MPO, or RTPA, 
as applicable, for review and inclusion in the federal Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP); and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC is the MPO and RTPA for the nine counties of the San Francisco Bay region; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC has adopted a Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 
3606, revised) that sets out procedures governing the application and use of REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 
 
WHEREAS, APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; 
and 

Page E-4.4

ATTACHMENT A



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS, as part of the application for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING, MTC 
requires a resolution adopted by the responsible implementing agency stating the following: 
 
• The commitment of any required matching funds; and 
• That the sponsor understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING is fixed at 

the programmed amount, and therefore any cost increase cannot be expected to be funded 
with additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

• That the PROJECT will comply with the procedures, delivery milestones and funding 
deadlines specified in the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution 
No. 3606, revised); and 

• The assurance of the sponsor to complete the PROJECT as described in the application, 
subject to environmental clearance, and if approved, as included in MTC's federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

• That the PROJECT will have adequate staffing resources to deliver and complete the 
PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project application; and 

• That the PROJECT will comply with all project-specific requirements as set forth in the 
PROGRAM; and 

• That APPLICANT has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for all FHWA- and 
CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and with the respective 
Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all 
communications, inquires or issues that may arise during the federal programming and 
delivery process for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects 
implemented by APPLICANT; and 

 
WHEREAS, that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for the funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way adversely affect 
the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS, APPLICANT authorizes its City Manager, or designee to execute and file an 
application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT as 
referenced in this resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC requires that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the MTC in 
conjunction with the filing of the application. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Menlo Park City Council, that the APPLICANT 
is authorized to execute and file an application for funding for the PROJECT for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING under the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT or continued 
funding; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT will provide any required matching funds; and  
 

Page E-4.5



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 3 of 4 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands that the REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the project is fixed at the MTC approved programmed amount, 
and that any cost increases must be funded by the APPLICANT from other funds, and that 
APPLICANT does not expect any cost increases to be funded with additional REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands the funding deadlines associated 
with these funds and will comply with the provisions and requirements of the Regional Project 
Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised) and APPLICANT has, and will 
retain the expertise, knowledge and resources necessary to deliver federally-funded 
transportation and transit projects, and has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact 
for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and with 
the respective Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all 
communications, inquires or issues that may arise during the federal programming and delivery 
process for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects implemented by 
APPLICANT; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that PROJECT will be implemented as described in the complete 
application and in this resolution, subject to environmental clearance, and, if approved, for the 
amount approved by MTC and programmed in the federal TIP; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT has reviewed the PROJECT and has adequate 
staffing resources to deliver and complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the 
project application; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that PROJECT will comply with the requirements as set forth in 
MTC programming guidelines and project selection procedures for the PROGRAM; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor of REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING funded projects; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making 
applications for the funds; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any 
way adversely affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such 
PROJECT; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT authorizes its City Manager, or designee to 
execute and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the 
PROJECT as referenced in this resolution; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution will be transmitted to the MTC in 
conjunction with the filing of the application; and  

Page E-4.6



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 4 of 4 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the MTC is requested to support the application for the 
PROJECT described in the resolution, and if approved, to include the PROJECT in MTC's 
federal TIP upon submittal by the project sponsor for TIP programming. 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:   
  
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page E-4.7



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING ASSIGNED 
TO METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND COMMITTING 
ANY NECESSARY MATCHING FUNDS AND STATING ASSURANCE TO 
COMPLETE THE EL CAMINO REAL PEDESTRIAN CROSSING 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (APPLICANT) is submitting an application to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for $2,000,000 in funding assigned to MTC for 
programming discretion, which includes federal funding administered by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) and federal or state funding administered by the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) such as Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP) 
funding, Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) funding, 
Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside/Active Transportation Program (ATP) funding, and 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) funding (herein collectively referred to as 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING) for the El Camino Real Pedestrian Crossing 
Improvement project (PROJECT) for the STP funding (herein referred to as PROGRAM); and 
 
WHEREAS, the United States Congress from time to time enacts and amends legislation to 
provide funding for various transportation needs and programs, (collectively, the FEDERAL 
TRANSPORTATION ACT) including, but not limited to the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program (STP) (23 U.S.C. § 133), the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
Program (CMAQ) (23 U.S.C. § 149) and the Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside (23 
U.S.C. § 133); and 
 
WHEREAS, state statutes, including California Streets and Highways Code §182.6, §182.7, and 
§2381(a)(1), and California Government Code §14527, provide various funding programs for the 
programming discretion of the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and the Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT, and any regulations 
promulgated thereunder, eligible project sponsors wishing to receive federal or state funds for a 
regionally-significant project shall submit an application first with the appropriate MPO, or RTPA, 
as applicable, for review and inclusion in the federal Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP); and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC is the MPO and RTPA for the nine counties of the San Francisco Bay region; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC has adopted a Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 
3606, revised) that sets out procedures governing the application and use of REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 
 
WHEREAS, APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; 
and 

Page E-4.8

ATTACHMENT B



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 4 

 
WHEREAS, as part of the application for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING, MTC 
requires a resolution adopted by the responsible implementing agency stating the following: 
 
• The commitment of any required matching funds; and 
• That the sponsor understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING is fixed at 

the programmed amount, and therefore any cost increase cannot be expected to be funded 
with additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

• That the PROJECT will comply with the procedures, delivery milestones and funding 
deadlines specified in the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution 
No. 3606, revised); and 

• The assurance of the sponsor to complete the PROJECT as described in the application, 
subject to environmental clearance, and if approved, as included in MTC's federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

• That the PROJECT will have adequate staffing resources to deliver and complete the 
PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project application; and 

• That the PROJECT will comply with all project-specific requirements as set forth in the 
PROGRAM; and 

• That APPLICANT has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for all FHWA- and 
CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and with the respective 
Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all 
communications, inquires or issues that may arise during the federal programming and 
delivery process for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects 
implemented by APPLICANT; and 

 
WHEREAS, that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for the funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way adversely affect 
the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such PROJECT; and 
 
WHEREAS, APPLICANT authorizes its City Manager, or designee to execute and file an 
application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT as 
referenced in this resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC requires that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the MTC in 
conjunction with the filing of the application. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Menlo Park City Council, that the APPLICANT 
is authorized to execute and file an application for funding for the PROJECT for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING under the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT or continued 
funding; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT will provide any required matching funds; and  
 

Page E-4.9



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 3 of 4 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands that the REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the project is fixed at the MTC approved programmed amount, 
and that any cost increases must be funded by the APPLICANT from other funds, and that 
APPLICANT does not expect any cost increases to be funded with additional REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands the funding deadlines associated 
with these funds and will comply with the provisions and requirements of the Regional Project 
Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised) and APPLICANT has, and will 
retain the expertise, knowledge and resources necessary to deliver federally-funded 
transportation and transit projects, and has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact 
for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the agency and with 
the respective Congestion Management Agency (CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all 
communications, inquires or issues that may arise during the federal programming and delivery 
process for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects implemented by 
APPLICANT; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that PROJECT will be implemented as described in the complete 
application and in this resolution, subject to environmental clearance, and, if approved, for the 
amount approved by MTC and programmed in the federal TIP; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT has reviewed the PROJECT and has adequate 
staffing resources to deliver and complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the 
project application; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that PROJECT will comply with the requirements as set forth in 
MTC programming guidelines and project selection procedures for the PROGRAM; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor of REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING funded projects; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making 
applications for the funds; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any 
way adversely affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such 
PROJECT; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that APPLICANT authorizes its City Manager, or designee to 
execute and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the 
PROJECT as referenced in this resolution; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution will be transmitted to the MTC in 
conjunction with the filing of the application; and  

Page E-4.10



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 4 of 4 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the MTC is requested to support the application for the 
PROJECT described in the resolution, and if approved, to include the PROJECT in MTC's 
federal TIP upon submittal by the project sponsor for TIP programming. 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:   
  
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page E-4.11



ATTACHMENT C

Page E-4.12



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-119-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Adopt a resolution of intention to abandon public 

service easements within the properties at 141 
Jefferson Drive, 180 Constitution Drive and 186 
Constitution Drive (Menlo Uptown) associated with 
the proposed redevelopment of the project site  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution of intention (Attachment A) to abandon public 
service easements within the properties at 141 Jefferson Drive, 180 Constitution Drive and 186 Constitution 
Drive. The project consists of 483 dwelling units, comprising 441 rental units and 42 for-sale condominium 
townhome units, and approximately 2,940 square feet of commercial space.  

 
Policy Issues 
The City is legally required to go through a multistep process as specified by the State of California Streets 
and Highways Code, Section 8300, in order to abandon public service easements. The resolution of 
intention commences the multistep process for abandonment. 

 
Background 
In September 2021, the City Council certified the final environmental impact report, and approved the use 
permit, architectural control, below market rate housing agreement, community amenities operating 
covenant, and vesting tentative map for the Menlo Uptown project located on three contiguous parcels at 
141 Jefferson Drive, 180 Constitution Drive and 186 Constitution Drive. The project demolished existing 
single-story office and industrial buildings and is currently constructing 441 rental units within two seven-
story buildings and 42 for-sale condominium townhome units within six three-story buildings.  

 
Analysis 
Collectively, all easements proposed for abandonment are considered public service easements within the 
context of the Streets and Highways Code. Each of the easements are described in more detail as follows 
and as illustrated on Exhibit A to Attachment A:  
• Along the southerly property line of the townhome development, there is a five-foot wide public utility 

easement proposed for abandonment. There is also a five-foot wide wire clearance easement (for 
overhead electrical wires) that is proposed for abandonment, which is immediately adjacent and parallel 
to the aforementioned public utility easement. Jointly, the two easements represent 10 feet of total width 
along the southerly property line of the townhome development. 

• Along the easterly property line of the multifamily building B there is a 15-foot wide public utility easement 
proposed for abandonment. 

• Along the shared parcel boundary between the townhome development and multifamily building A, a 

AGENDA ITEM E-5

Page E-5.1



Staff Report #: 22-119-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

total of 10 feet of existing public storm drain easement will remain. 
 
Currently, the existing easements proposed for abandonment contain overhead electric and 
communications facilities. The applicant has obtained “no objection” letters for the easement abandonment 
from all relevant public utility agencies. The existing overhead electric and communication lines will be 
placed underground in a new easement and re-routed accordingly on the subject properties. The applicant 
will be prohibited from placing any permanent structures within the proposed utility easement. 
 
Abandonment procedure 
According to City practice, the applicable abandonment procedure is a three-step process that first involves 
City Council adoption of a resolution of intention to abandon public service easements. The resolution 
forward the abandonment request to the Planning Commission for its consideration and recommendation at 
its July 25, 2022, meeting and sets the time and date for the City Council public hearing for August 23, 2022 
at 6 p.m. The Planning Commission will review the abandonment to determine if it conforms with the City’s 
General Plan and will forward its recommendation to the City Council for approval of the abandonment at a 
public hearing. Staff will advertise notices of the public hearing in the newspaper and at the site in 
accordance with the requirements of the Streets and Highways Code. An affidavit of posting will then be 
filed with the city clerk. Should the utility agencies, affected parties, Planning Commission, and City Council 
consider the abandonment favorably, a resolution ordering the vacation and abandonment of the 
easements at 141 Jefferson Drive, 180 Constitution Drive, and 186 Constitution Drive will be recorded. The 
resolution ordering the vacation and abandonment will only be recorded following the recordation of the new 
easements required for relocation and undergrounding of existing utilities. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
There is no direct impact on City resources associated with the actions in this staff report. The fee for staff 
time to review and process the abandonment has been paid by the applicant. 

 
Environmental Review 
The proposed public service easement abandonment is Categorically Exempt under Class 5, minor 
alterations in land use, of the current State of California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. 
Environmental review of the project was subject to separate action, with the final environmental impact 
report certified by City Council September 14, 2021. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution of intention 
 
Report prepared by: 
Eric Hinkley, Associate Engineer 
 
 
Report reviewed by: 

Page E-5.2



Staff Report #: 22-119-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Theresa Avedian, Senior Civil Engineer 
Tanisha Werner, Assistant Public Works Director - Engineering 

Page E-5.3



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
DECLARING THE INTENTION OF SAID CITY TO ABANDON PUBLIC 
SERVICE EASEMENTS WITHIN THE PROPERTIES AT 141 JEFFERSON 
DRIVE, 180 CONSTITUTION DRIVE AND 186 CONSTITUTION DRIVE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park has considered the abandonment of 
public service easements within the properties at 141 Jefferson Drive, 180 Constitution Drive 
and 186 Constitution Drive shown in Exhibit A, which is attached and made apart thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is scheduled to review the proposed abandonment for 
consistency with the City’s General Plan at its meeting on July 25, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council will hold a Public Hearing on August 23, 2022 at approximately 6:00 
p.m. as required by law to determine whether said public service easements shall be 
abandoned. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a Resolution of Intention of the City Council of the 
City of Menlo Park does hereby propose the abandonment of public service easements within 
the properties at 141 Jefferson Drive, 180 Constitution Drive, and 186 Constitution Drive. 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing City Council resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting of said 
City Council on the fourteenth day of June, 2022, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:  

 
NOES:  

  
ABSENT:  

  
ABSTAIN:  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 

 
 

  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
 
Exhibits: 
A. Abandonment of public service easements within the properties at 141 Jefferson Drive, 180 

Constitution Drive and 186 Constitution Drive 

Page E-5.4

ATTACHMENT A



BK
F E

NG
IN

EE
RS

20
0 

4t
h 

ST
RE

ET
SU

IT
E 

30
0

SA
N

TA
 R

O
SA

, C
A 

95
40

1
(7

07
) 5

83
-8

50
0

w
w

w
.b

kf
.co

m

BKF ENGINEERS
REUEL CHAN
PHONE: 408.467.9100
ADDRESS: 1730 N. FIRST STREET, SAN JOSE, CA, 95112

LOT EXISTING LOT AREA PROPOSED LOT AREA
*141 JEFFERSPN 2.75 AC 1.38 AC
**180 CONSTITUTION 1.38 AC 1.38 AC
**186 CONSTITUTION 0.69 AC 2.06 AC
TOTAL 4.82 AC 4.82 AC

*NAMES OF PROPERTY OWNERS: CLPF GRP UPTOWN MENLO PARK, LLC
**NAMES OF PROPERTY OWNERS: CLPF CRP TH MENLO PARK, LLC

EXHIBIT A

Page E-5.5



Administrative Services 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-122-CC 
 
Consent Calendar:  Adopt a resolution approving the fiscal year 2022-23 

investment policy for the City and the former 
Community Development Agency of Menlo Park  

 
Recommendation 
Receive the Finance and Audit Committee’s (FAC) recommendation and adopt a resolution approving the 
fiscal year 2022-23 investment policy for the City and the former Community Development Agency of Menlo 
Park. 

 
Policy Issues 
The investment policy provides guidelines for investing City and former Community Development Agency 
funds in accordance with State of California Government Code Section 53601 et seq.  

 
Background 
The investment of funds by a California local agency, including the types of securities in which an agency 
may invest, is governed by the California Government Code. The law requires that the legislative body of 
each agency adopt an investment policy, which may add further limitations than those established by the 
State. In addition, an agency’s investment policy must be reviewed annually, and any changes must be 
adopted at a public meeting. The City of Menlo Park has had such a policy in place since 1990. The 
investment policy was last reviewed and updated by the City Council August 17, 2021 by Resolution No. 
6651.  
 
Annual adoption of the City’s investment policy provides an opportunity to regularly review the policy to 
ensure its consistency with the overall objectives of safety, liquidity and yield, as well as its relevance to 
current law and economic trends. Early in each fiscal year, the City’s investment adviser (Insight 
Investment) reviews the policy to ensure it is kept up to date and in compliance with applicable State 
statutes. Insight also makes recommendations for strategic changes to the investment policy to position the 
City’s portfolio to maximize yield while maintaining safety and liquidity. 
  
The annual review of the City’s investment policy provides the opportunity to make modifications to reflect 
changes in the investment environment. The types of modifications will vary but are often focused on 
providing greater diversification to maintain a safe and liquid investment portfolio. Further, the annual review 
is also a good time to clarify certain terms, remove ambiguity in the policy language, and better reflect 
changes in current market trading technologies. 

 
Analysis 
At their June 2, 2022, special meeting, the FAC reviewed the current investment policy and investments as 

AGENDA ITEM E-6

Page E-6.1



Staff Report #: 22-122-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

presented by the City’s investment adviser and staff. The FAC recommended adoption of the policy as 
presented in Attachment A. Since that time there have been minor changes to the current policy that are 
neither substantive nor material.  
 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution 
B. Fiscal year 2022-23 investment policy for the City and the former Community Development Agency of 

Menlo Park 
 
Report prepared by: 
Marvin Davis, Interim Finance Director 
 
 

Page E-6.2



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
  
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
ADOPTING THE INVESTMENT POLICY FOR THE CITY AND FORMER 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO BECOME EFFECTIVE 
IMMEDIATELY 

 
The City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its City Council, having considered and been fully 
advised in the matter and good cause appearing therefore. 
 
BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park that the 
City Council does hereby adopt and approve the Investment Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A. 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing City Council resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting of 
said City Council on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:  

 
NOES:  

  
ABSENT:  

  
ABSTAIN:  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 

 
 

  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
Exhibits: 
A. Investment Policy 

Page E-6.3



CC 20200811 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
City Council Policy #CC-22-020 
Adopted June 28, 2022 
Resolution No. XXXX 

Purpose 
The City of Menlo Park (the “City”), incorporated in 1927, is located between San Francisco and Oakland on the 
North, and San Jose on the South. The city is governed by five members elected by district to City Council. 

The City Council has adopted this Investment Policy (the “Policy”) in order to establish the investment scope, 
objectives, delegation of authority, standards of prudence, reporting requirements, internal controls, eligible 
investments and transactions, diversification requirements, risk tolerance, and safekeeping and custodial procedures 
for the investment of the unexpended funds of the city. All such investments will be made in accordance with the 
Policy and with applicable sections of the California Government Code. 

This Policy was endorsed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on the twenty-eighth of June 2022. 
It replaces any previous investment policy or investment procedures of the city. 
Scope 
The provisions of this Policy shall apply to all financial assets of the city and the former Community 
Development Agency of Menlo Park as accounted for in the city’s comprehensive annual financial report, with 
the exception of bond proceeds, which shall be governed by the provisions of the related bond indentures or 
resolutions. 

All cash shall be pooled for investment purposes. The investment income derived from the pooled investment 
account shall be allocated to the contributing funds based upon the proportion of the respective average 
balances relative to the total pooled balance in the investment portfolio. Investment income shall be distributed 
to the individual funds on a quarterly basis. 

Objectives 
The city’s funds shall be invested in accordance with all applicable municipal codes and resolutions, California 
statutes, and federal regulations, and in a manner designed to accomplish the following objectives, which are listed in 
priority order: 
1. Preservation of capital and protection of investment principal through diversification to mitigate risk.
2. Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated cash flows.
3. Attainment of a market value rate of return.

Delegation of authority 
The management responsibility for the city’s investment program is delegated annually by the City Council to the chief 
financial officer (the “CFO”) pursuant to California Government Code Section 53607. The City’s administrative 
services director or designee serves as the CFO. In the absence of the CFO, the finance and budget manager is 
authorized to conduct investment transactions. The CFO may delegate the authority to conduct investment 
transactions and to manage the operation of the investment portfolio to other specifically authorized staff members. 
The CFO shall maintain a list of persons authorized to transact securities business for the city. No person may engage 
in an investment transaction except as expressly provided under the terms of this Policy. 

The CFO shall develop written administrative procedures and internal controls, consistent with this Policy, for the 
operation of the city's investment program. Such procedures shall be designed to prevent losses of public funds 
arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by employees of the city. 

The city may engage the support services of outside investment advisors in regard to its investment program, so long 
as it can be clearly demonstrated that these services produce a net financial advantage or necessary financial 
protection of the city's financial resources. 

Page E-6.4

ATTACHMENT B



INVESTMENT POLICY 
City Council Policy #CC-22-020  2 
Adopted June 28, 2022 
Resolution No. XXXX 
 

    

Prudence 
The standard of prudence to be used for managing the city's investments shall be California Government Code 
Section 53600.3, the prudent investor standard which states, “When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, 
exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs 
of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the 
conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of 
the agency.” 
 
The city's overall investment program shall be designed and managed with a degree of professionalism that is worthy 
of the public trust. The city recognizes that no investment is totally without risk and that the investment activities of the 
city are a matter of public record. Accordingly, the city recognizes that occasional measured losses may occur in a 
diversified portfolio and shall be considered within the context of the overall portfolio's return, provided that adequate 
diversification has been implemented and that the sale of a security is in the best long-term interest of the city. 
 
The CFO and authorized investment personnel acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due 
diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, 
provided that the deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion to the City Council and appropriate 
action is taken to control adverse developments. 
Ethic and conflicts of interest 
Elected officials and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could 
conflict with proper execution of the investment program or could impair or create the appearance of an impairment of 
their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose to the city manager 
any business interests they have in financial institutions that conduct business with the city and they shall subordinate 
their personal investment transactions to those of the city. In addition, the city manager, the assistant city manager and 
the administrative services director shall file a Statement of Economic Interests each year pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 87203 and regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission. 
Authorized securities and transactions 
All investments and deposits of the city shall be made in accordance with California Government Code Sections 16429.1, 
53600-53609 and 53630-53686, except that, pursuant to California Government Code Section 5903(e), proceeds of 
bonds and any moneys set aside or pledged to secure payment of the bonds may be invested in securities or obligations 
described in the ordinance, resolution, indenture, agreement, or other instrument providing for the issuance of the bonds. 
 
Any revisions or extensions of these code sections will be assumed to be part of this Policy immediately upon being 
enacted. However, in the event that amendments to these sections conflict with this Policy or past city investment 
practices, the city may delay adherence to the new requirements when it is deemed in the best interest of the city to do 
so. In such instances, after consultation with the city’s attorney, the CFO will present a recommended course of action to 
the City Council for approval. 
 
The city has further restricted the eligible types of securities and transactions as follows: 
1. United States treasury bills, notes, bonds, or strips with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of 

trade settlement. 
2. Federal agency debentures, federal agency mortgage-backed securities, and mortgage-backed securities with a 

final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement. 
3. Federal instrumentality (government-sponsored enterprise) debentures, discount notes, callable securities, step- up 

securities, and mortgage-backed securities with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade 
settlement. Subordinated debt may not be purchased. 

4. Medium-term notes issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the United States. Medium-term notes 
shall have a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement and shall be rated at least “A” 
or the equivalent by a nationally recognized statistical ratings organization (NRSRO), at the time of purchase. 

5. Negotiable certificates of deposit with a maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement, in state 
or nationally chartered banks or savings banks that are insured by the FDIC, subject to the limitations of California 
Government Code Section 53638. Certificates of Deposits may be purchased only from financial institutions that 
meet the credit criteria set forth in the section of this Policy, “Selection of Banks and Savings Banks.” 
Depending on their maturity, Negotiable Certificates of Deposit shall have a short-term rating of at least A-1+ or Page E-6.5



INVESTMENT POLICY 
City Council Policy #CC-22-020  3 
Adopted June 28, 2022 
Resolution No. XXXX 
 

    

  

the equivalent by a NRSRO at the time of purchase. 
6. Non-negotiable certificates of deposit and savings deposits with a maturity not exceeding five years from the 

date of trade settlement, in FDIC insured state or nationally chartered banks or savings banks that qualify as a 
depository of public funds in the State of California as defined in California Government Code Section 
53630.5. Deposits exceeding the FDIC insured amount shall be secured pursuant to California Government 
Code Section 53652. 

7. Municipal and State obligations: 
A. Municipal bonds with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement. Such bonds 

include registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the 50 United States and bonds payable solely out of the 
revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, 
board, agency, or authority of any of the states. Such obligations must be rated at least “A”, or the equivalent, 
by a NRSRO at the time of purchase. 

B. In addition, bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness of any local agency in California, 
include bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or 
operated by the local agency, or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency. Such 
obligations must be rated at least “A”, or the equivalent, by a NRSRO at the time of purchase. 

8. Prime commercial paper with a maturity not exceeding 270 days from the date of trade settlement with the 
highest ranking or of the highest letter and number rating as provided for by a NRSRO. The entity that issues 
the commercial paper shall meet all of the following conditions in either sub-paragraph A. or sub-paragraph B. 
below: 
A. The entity shall (1) be organized and operating in the United States as a general corporation, (2) have total 

assets in excess of $500 million, and (3) have debt other than commercial paper, if any, that is rated in at 
least the " A" category or the equivalent by an NRSRO. 

B. The entity shall (1) be organized within the United States as a special purpose corporation, trust, or limited 
liability company, (2) have program-wide credit enhancements, including, but not limited to, over 
collateralization, letters of credit or surety bond, and (3) have commercial paper that is rated at least “A-1” or 
the equivalent or higher by a NRSRO. 

9. Eligible banker’s acceptances with a maturity not exceeding 180 days from the date of trade settlement, issued 
by a national bank with combined capital and surplus of at least $250 million, whose deposits are insured by the 
FDIC, and whose senior long-term debt is rated at least “A” or the equivalent by a NRSRO at the time of 
purchase. 

10. Repurchase agreements with a final termination date not exceeding 30 days collateralized by the U.S. Treasury 
obligations, federal agency securities, or federal instrumentality securities listed in items #1 through #3 above, 
with the maturity of the collateral not exceeding five years. For the purpose of this section, the term collateral 
shall mean purchased securities under the terms of the city’s approved Master Repurchase Agreement. The 
purchased securities shall have a minimum market value including accrued interest of 102% of the dollar value of 
the funds borrowed. Collateral shall be held in the city's custodian bank, as safekeeping agent, and the market 
value of the collateral securities shall be marked-to-the-market daily. 
Repurchase agreements shall be entered into only with banks and with broker/dealers who are recognized as 
Primary Dealers with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or with firms that have a primary dealer within their 
holding company structure. Repurchase agreement counterparties shall execute a city approved Master 
Repurchase Agreement with the city. The CFO shall maintain a copy of the city's approved Master 
Repurchase Agreement along with a list of the banks and broker/dealers who have executed same. 

11. State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), pursuant to California Government Code Section 
16429.1 

12. Money market funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 which (1) are “no-load” (meaning no 
commission or fee shall be charged on purchases or sales of shares); (2) have a constant daily net asset 
value per share of $1.00; (3) invest only in the securities and obligations authorized in this Policy and (4) have 
a rating of at least “AAA” or the equivalent by at least two NRSROs. 

Securities that have been downgraded to a level that is below the minimum ratings described herein may be sold 
or held at the city’s discretion. 

 
It is the intent of the city that the foregoing list of authorized securities and transactions be strictly interpreted. Any 
deviation from this list must be preapproved by resolution of the City Council. 

Page E-6.6



INVESTMENT POLICY 
City Council Policy #CC-22-020  4 
Adopted June 28, 2022 
Resolution No. XXXX 
 

    

Investment diversification 
The city shall diversify its investments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over-investing in specific 
instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities. Nevertheless, the asset allocation in the investment portfolio 
should be flexible depending upon the outlook for the economy, the securities markets, and the city’s anticipated cash 
flow needs. 
 
Securities shall not exceed the following maximum limits as a percentage of the total portfolio: 
 

Type of security Maximum percentage of the total portfolio 
U.S. Treasury obligations  100% 
Federal agency securities  100%† 
Federal instrumentality securities† 100% †  
Repurchase agreements  100% 
Local government investment pools 100% 
Aggregate amount of Certificates of deposit, negotiable 
and non-negotiable  

25% 

Aggregate amount of prime commercial paper* 25% 
Aggregate amount of money market funds * 20% 
Aggregate amount of municipal bonds* 30% 
Aggregate amount of eligible banker’s acceptances* 15% 
Aggregate amount of medium-term notes* 30% 

 
† No more than 20% of the city’s total portfolio shall be invested in mortgage-backed securities. 
 
*No more than 5% of the city’s total portfolio shall be invested in any one issuer/financial institution and/or its 
affiliates. 
Portfolio maturities and liquidity 
To the extent possible, investments shall be matched with anticipated cash flow requirements and known future liabilities. 
The city will not invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of trade settlement unless the City 
Council has, by resolution, granted authority to make such an investment at least three months prior to the date of 
investment. The sole maturity distribution range shall be from zero to five years from the date of trade settlement. 
Selection of broker/dealers 
The CFO shall maintain a list of broker/dealers approved for investment purposes, and it shall be the policy of the city to 
purchase securities only from those authorized firms. To be eligible, a firm must be licensed by the State of California as 
a broker/dealer as defined in Section 25004 of the California Corporations Code. 
 
The city may engage the services of investment advisory firms to assist in the management of the portfolio and 
investment advisors may utilize their own list of approved Broker/Dealers. The list of approved firms shall be provided to 
the city on an annual basis or upon request. 
 
In the event that an external investment advisory firm is not used in the process of recommending a particular transaction, 
each authorized broker/dealer shall be required to submit and annually update a city approved Broker/Dealer Information 
Request form which includes the firm's most recent financial statements. The CFO shall maintain a list of the 
broker/dealers that have been approved by the city, along with each firm's most recent broker/dealer information request 
form. The city may purchase commercial paper from direct issuers even though they are not on the approved 
broker/dealer list as long as they meet the criteria outlined in Item 8 of the authorized securities and transactions section of 
this Policy. 
Competitive transactions 
Each investment transaction shall be competitively transacted with authorized broker/dealers. At least three 
broker/dealers shall be contacted for each transaction and their bid and offering prices shall be recorded. 
 
If the city is offered a security for which there is no other readily available competitive offering, the CFO will then 
document quotations for comparable or alternative securities. Page E-6.7



INVESTMENT POLICY 
City Council Policy #CC-22-020  5 
Adopted June 28, 2022 
Resolution No. XXXX 
 

    

Selection of banks and savings banks 
The CFO shall maintain a list of authorized banks and savings banks that are approved to provide banking services for 
the city. To be eligible to provide banking services, a financial institution shall qualify as a depository of public funds in 
the State of California as defined in California Government Code Section 53630.5 and must be a member of the FDIC. 
The city shall utilize S& P Global Financial ratings to perform credit analyses on banks seeking authorization. The 
analysis shall include a composite rating and individual ratings of liquidity, asset quality, profitability and capital 
adequacy. Annually, the CFO shall review the most recent credit rating analysis reports performed for each approved 
bank. Banks that in the judgment of the CFO no longer offer adequate safety to the city shall be removed from the city’s 
list of authorized banks. Banks failing to meet the criteria outlined above, or in the judgment of the CFO no longer offer 
adequate safety to the city, will be removed from the list. The CFO shall maintain a file of the most recent credit rating 
analysis reports performed for each approved bank. Credit analysis shall be performed on a semi-annual basis. 
Safekeeping and custody 
The CFO shall select one or more financial institutions to provide safekeeping and custodial services for the city, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 53608 of the California Government Code. Custodian banks will be selected 
on the basis of their ability to provide services for the city's account and the competitive pricing of their safekeeping 
related services. The CFO shall maintain a file of the credit rating analysis reports performed semi- annually for each 
approved financial institution. A Safekeeping Agreement approved by the city shall be executed with each custodian 
bank prior to utilizing that bank's safekeeping services. 
 
The purchase and sale of securities and repurchase agreement transactions shall be settled on a delivery versus 
payment basis. All securities shall be perfected in the name of the city. Sufficient evidence to title shall be consistent 
with modern investment, banking and commercial practices. 
 
All investment securities purchased by the city will be delivered by book entry and will be held in third-party safekeeping 
by a city approved custodian bank, or its Depository Trust Company (DTC) participant account. 
Portfolio performance 
The investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, 
taking into account prevailing market conditions, risk constraints for eligible securities, and cash flow requirements. The 
performance of the city’s investments shall be compared to the average yield on the U.S. Treasury security that most 
closely corresponds to the portfolio’s actual weighted average effective maturity. When comparing the performance of the 
city’s portfolio, its rate of return will be computed net of all fees and expenses. 
Portfolio review and reporting 
Credit criteria and maximum percentages listed in this section refer to the credit of the issuing organization and/or 
maturity at the time the security is purchased. The city may, from time to time, be invested in a security whose rating is 
downgraded below the minimum ratings set forth in this Policy. In the event a rating drops below the minimum allowed 
rating category for that given investment type, the administrative services director shall notify the city manager and/or 
designee and recommend a plan of action. Appropriate documentation of such a review, along with the 
recommended action and final decision shall be retained for audit. 

 
Quarterly, the CFO shall submit to the City Council a report of the investment earnings and performance 
results of the city’s investment portfolio. The report shall include the following information: 
1. Investment type, issuer, date of maturity, par value and dollar amount invested in all securities, 

and investments and monies held by the city; 
2. A description of the funds, investments and programs; 
3. A market value as of the date of the report (or the most recent valuation as to assets not valued monthly) and 

the source of the valuation; 
4. A statement of compliance with this Policy or an explanation for non-compliance; and 
5. A statement of the ability to meet expenditure requirements for six months, as well as an explanation of why money 

will not be available if that is the case. 
Policy review 
This Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council annually. It shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure 
its consistency with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity, yield and diversification and its relevance 
to current law and economic trends. Any amendments to the Policy shall be reviewed by the City’s Finance and Audit 
Committee prior to being forwarded to the City Council for approval. Page E-6.8



INVESTMENT POLICY 
City Council Policy #CC-22-020  6 
Adopted June 28, 2022 
Resolution No. XXXX 
 

    

 

Procedure history 

Action Date Notes 

Procedure adoption January 14, 1997 Resolution No. 4784 

Procedure adoption February 17, 1998 Resolution No. 4871 

Procedure adoption February 2, 1999 Resolution No. 5064 

Procedure adoption May 9, 2000 Adopted by minute order 

Procedure adoption February 13, 2001 Resolution No. 5283 

Procedure adoption February 5, 2002 Resolution No. 5362 

Procedure adoption June 24, 2003 Resolution No. 5457 

Procedure adoption June 20, 2004 Resolution No. 5545 

Procedure adoption August 15, 2005 Resolution No. 5616 

Procedure adoption July 25, 2006 Resolution No. 5960 

Procedure adoption July 31, 2007 Resolution No. 5759 

Procedure adoption September 23, 2008 Resolution No. 5825 

Procedure adoption September 1, 2009 Resolution No. 5886 

Procedure adoption August 31, 2010 Resolution No. 5957 

Procedure adoption September 27, 2011 Resolution No. 6028 

Procedure adoption September 18, 2012 Resolution No. 6103 

Procedure adoption October  15, 2013 Resolution No. 6171 

Procedure adoption August 19, 2014 Resolution No. 6221 

Procedure adoption August 25, 2015 Resolution No. 6286 

Procedure adoption September 13, 2016 Resolution No. 6343 

Procedure adoption August 20, 2019 Adopted by minute order 

Procedure adoption August 11, 2020 Adopted by minute order 

Procedure adoption August 17, 2021 Resolution No. 6651 

Procedure adoption  June 28, 2022 Resolution No. XXXX 

Page E-6.9



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-120-CC 
 
Public Hearing:  Adopt a resolution overruling protests, ordering the 

improvements, confirming the diagram/area of 
assessment and ordering the levy and collection of 
assessments for Landscaping Assessment District 
for fiscal year 2022-23  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) overruling protests, ordering the 
improvements, confirming the diagram/area of assessment, and ordering the levy and collection of 
assessments and increasing the tree assessment by three percent, which amounts to an increase of $2.57 
per single family equivalent (SFE) per year and the sidewalk assessment by three percent, which amounts 
to an increase of $1.38 per SFE per year for the Landscaping Assessment District (District) for fiscal year 
2022-23. 

 
Policy Issues 
The funds collected through the District are used for the maintenance of the City’s trees and sidewalks. If 
the City Council does not adopt the resolution required for the collection of the assessments, the lack of 
adequate funding would impact the high level of service required for the proper care and maintenance of the 
City’s trees and sidewalks.  

 
Background 
In 1983, the City of Menlo Park established a District for the proper care and maintenance of City street 
trees. In 1990, the City added an assessment for the repair and maintenance of sidewalks and parking 
strips in the public right-of-way that were damaged by City street trees. Funds generated by the District are 
also used for street sweeping services. Each year, the City must act to continue the collection of 
assessments. On May 24, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6733 preliminarily approving the 
engineer’s report and Resolution No. 6739 stating its intention to order the levy and collection of 
assessments for the District for fiscal year 2022-23 (Attachment B.) Attachment B includes a typographical 
correction to the assessment amount increase on Table 5 of the staff report from May 24, 2022, where the 
increases were shown incorrectly by four to six cents.  

 
Analysis 
To cover the tree maintenance program’s budget for fiscal year 2022-23, the engineer’s report proposes an 
assessment of $88.72 per SFE per year. This reflects a three percent increase from last year’s assessment 
of $86.15 (an increase of $2.57.) The increase accounts for additional tree care required due to pests and 
disease, and higher tree-pruning and street sweeping costs.  
 

AGENDA ITEM F-1

Page F-1.1



Staff Report #: 22-120-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

The engineer’s report also proposes a sidewalk assessment of $47.40 per SFE per year. This reflects a 
three percent increase from last year’s assessment of $46.02 (an increase of $1.38.) The increase 
addresses the annual sidewalk replacement needs and the current back log. The assessments are subject 
to an annual adjustment based on the engineering news record construction cost index for the San 
Francisco Bay Area. The three percent increase from last year’s assessment is less than the maximum 
assessment authorized rate of $124.73 per SFE for tree maintenance and $55.69 per SFE for sidewalk 
maintenance. Although staff does not recommended the implementing the maximum rate, if City Council 
chose to implement it, the increase would be legally permissible without additional ballot proceedings.  
 
The action taken by the City Council May 24, 2022, initiated the period in which any property owners can 
protest the amount of their proposed assessments. No protests have been received as of the date of this 
staff report. Before taking any final action, the City Council must conduct the public hearing and give 
direction regarding any protests received. If a majority protest has not been filed, the City Council may 
adopt a resolution confirming the diagram/area of assessment and assessment, as appearing in the 
engineer’s report. If the City Council confirms and approves the assessments by adopting the resolution, the 
levies will be submitted to the county controller for inclusion on the property tax roll for fiscal year 2022-23. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
Funding for the District’s tree maintenance, street sweeping and sidewalk repair programs come from a 
variety of sources, including the carry-over of unspent funds from prior years, annual tax assessment 
revenues, Measure M and contributions from the general fund (described in the following paragraph.) If the 
City Council does not order the rate increase, levy and collection of assessments, the impact on City 
resources would be $1,117,059.38 (the total amount of the proposed tree and sidewalk assessments) or 
result in a corresponding decrease in service levels to maintain street trees, street sweeping and sidewalks.  
 

Table 1: Landscape assessments 
Proposed fiscal year 2022-23 budget 

Projected beginning fund balance $364,341.56 

Estimated revenues:   

Landscape assessment revenue $1,117,059.38 

General fund contribution $591,505.00 

Measure M funds $140,000.00 

Total $1,848,564.38 

Estimated expenses:   

Street tree maintenance $1,039,967.00 

Debris removal (including street sweeping services) $285,669.00 

Sidewalk, curb, gutter parking strip repair/replacement $550,000.00 

Administration and County assessment fees $163,052.00 

Total $2,038,688.00 

Projected ending fund balance $174,217.94 
 

Page F-1.2



Staff Report #: 22-120-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

It is reasonable to assume that a portion of the usage and enjoyment of the improvements is for the greater 
public, since the District results in preservation of the City’s tree canopy, provision of safe walking facilities, 
and debris removal by street sweeping. Therefore, the general fund must contribute a portion of the total 
cost of the program. An estimate of 25 percent contribution by the general fund was established by the City 
and assessment engineer when the assessment was created in 1998 and must occur annually.  For fiscal 
year 2022-23, the minimum general fund contribution requirement is $509,672, which is 25 percent of the 
anticipated program expenses of $2,038,688. The City contributions from the general fund and general 
capital fund for fiscal year 2022-23 will meet this required amount. The entire program budget for fiscal year 
2022-23 is included in Attachment B. In summary, the funding sources and amounts for fiscal year 2022-23 
include $341,505 from the general fund for trees, $250,000 from the general capital fund for the sidewalk 
repair program, and $140,000 from Measure M funds. The program fund balance would be used to backfill 
the shortfall between assessment revenue and total costs. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting a legal notice in The Examiner, a local newspaper, June 17 and 
June 24, 2022, and posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution 
B. Staff report dated May 24, 2022  

  
Report prepared by: 
Esther Jung, Associate Transportation Engineer 
 
Report reviewed by:  
Tanisha Werner, Assistant Public Works Director – Engineering  
Nicole H. Nagaya, Public Works Director 

Page F-1.3



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
OVERRULING PROTESTS, ORDERING THE IMPROVEMENTS, CONFIRMING 
THE DIAGRAM AND ORDERING THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF 
ASSESSMENTS AND INCREASING THE TREE ASSESSMENT AND THE 
SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT BY THE ENGINEERING NEWS RECORD 
CONSTRUCTION COST INDEX FOR THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
LANDSCAPING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

 
WHEREAS, on the eighth day of March, 2022, said City Council adopted Resolution No. 
6714, describing improvements and directing preparation of the engineer’s report for the City 
of Menlo Park Landscaping District for fiscal year 2022-23, pursuant to provisions of Article 
XIIID of the California Constitution and the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; and 

 
WHEREAS, on the twenty-fourth day of May, 2022, said City Council thereupon duly 
considered said report and each and every part thereof and found that it contained all the 
matters and things called for by the provisions of said Act and said Resolution No. 6733 
including (1) plans and specifications of the existing improvements and the proposed new 
improvements; (2) estimate of costs; (3) diagram of the District; and (4) an assessment 
according to benefits; all of which were done in the form and manner required by said Act; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, said City Council found that said report and each and every part thereof was 
sufficient in every particular and determined that it should stand as the report for all 
subsequent proceedings under said Act, whereupon said City Council pursuant to the 
requirements of said Act, appointed Tuesday, the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, at the 
hour of 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, by virtual meeting 
available, at which time and place interested persons may participate and be heard on, and 
the same are hereby appointed and fixed as the time and place for a Public Hearing by this 
City Council on the question of the continuation and collection of the proposed assessment 
for the construction or installation of said improvements, including the maintenance and 
servicing, or both, thereof, and when and where it will consider all oral statements and all 
written protests made or filed by any interested person at or before the conclusion of said 
hearing, against said improvements, the boundaries of the assessment district and any zone 
therein, the proposed diagram or the proposed assessment, to the engineer’s estimate of the 
cost thereof, and when and where it will consider and finally act upon the engineer’s report; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, at the hour of 6:00 p.m., or as soon 
thereafter as the matter may be heard, by virtual meeting available, the Public Hearing was 
duly and regularly held as noticed, and all persons interested and desiring to be heard were 
given an opportunity to speak and be heard, and all matters and things pertaining to the levy 
were fully heard and considered by this City Council, and all oral statements and all written 
protests or communications were duly considered; and 

 
WHEREAS, persons interested, objecting to said improvements, including the maintenance or 
servicing, or both, thereof, or to the extent of the assessment district, or to the proposed 
assessment or diagram or to the engineer’s estimate of costs thereof, filed written protests 
with the City Clerk of said City at or before the conclusion of said hearing, and all persons 
interested desiring to be heard were given an opportunity to be heard, and all matters and 

Page F-1.4

ATTACHMENT A



things pertaining to the continuation and collection of the assessments for said improvements, 
including the maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof, were fully heard and considered by 
said City Council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AND IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND 
ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. That a majority protest, pursuant to the Act, was not filed, and therefore the protests 

against said improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, both, thereof, or to 
the extent of the assessment district, or to the proposed continued assessment or 
diagram, or to the engineer’s estimate of costs thereof, for fiscal year 2022-23 be, and 
each of them are hereby overruled. 

 
2. That the public interest, convenience, and necessity require and said City Council does 

hereby order the continuation and collection of assessments pursuant to said Act, for the 
construction or installation of the improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, 
or both, thereof, more particularly described in said engineer’s report and made a part 
hereof by reference thereto. 

 
3. That the City of Menlo Park Landscaping District and the boundaries thereof benefited 

and to be assessed for said costs for the construction or installation of the 
improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof, are situated in 
Menlo Park, California, and are more particularly described by reference to a map 
thereof on file in the office of the City Clerk of said City. Said map indicates by a 
boundary line the extent of the territory included in said District and the general location 
of said District. 

 
4. That the plans and specifications for the existing improvements and for the proposed 

improvements to be made within the assessment district contained in said report, be, 
and they are hereby, finally adopted and approved. 

 
5. That the engineer’s estimate of the itemized and total costs and expenses of said 

improvements, maintenance and servicing thereof, and of the incidental expenses in 
connection therewith, contained in said report, be, and it is hereby, finally adopted and 
approved. 

 
6. That the public interest and convenience require, and said City Council does hereby 

order the improvements to be made as described in, and in accordance with, said 
engineer’s report, reference to which is hereby made for a more particular description of 
said improvements. 

 
7. That the diagram showing the exterior boundaries of the assessment district referred to 

and described in Resolution No. 6739 therein and the lines and dimensions of each lot 
or parcel of land within said District as such lot or parcel of land is shown on the County 
Assessor’s maps for the fiscal year to which it applies, each of which lot or parcel of land 
has been given a separate number upon said diagram, as contained in said report, be, 
and it is hereby, finally approved and confirmed. 

 
8. That the continued assessment of the total amount of the costs and expenses of the 

said improvements upon the several lots or parcels of land in said District in proportion 
to the estimated benefits to be received by such lots or parcels, respectively, from said 

Page F-1.5



improvements, and the maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof and of the expenses 
incidental thereto contained in said report be, and the same is hereby, finally approved 
and confirmed. 

 
9. Based on the oral and documentary evidence, including the engineer’s report, offered 

and received at the hearing, this City Council expressly finds and determines (a) that 
each of the several lots and parcels of land will be specially benefited by the 
maintenance of the improvements at least in the amount if not more than the amount, of 
the continued assessment apportioned against the lots and parcels of land, respectively, 
and (b) that there is substantial evidence to support, and the weight of the evidence 
preponderates in favor of, the aforesaid finding and determination as to special benefits. 
 

10. That the authorized maximum assessment rates for the District include an annual 
adjustment by an amount equal to the annual change in the Engineering News Record 
Index, not to exceed 3.00 percent per year, plus any uncaptured excesses, and 
therefore, the assessments are not being increased above their authorized maximum 
amounts.   

 
11. That said engineer’s report for fiscal year 2022-23 be, and the same is hereby, finally 

adopted and approved as a whole. 
 

12. That the City Clerk shall forthwith file with the Auditor of San Mateo County the said 
continued assessment, together with said diagram thereto attached and made a part 
thereof, as confirmed by the City Council, with the certificate of such confirmation thereto 
attached and of the date thereof. 

 
13. That the order for the levy and collection of assessment for the improvements and the 

final adoption and approval of the engineer’s report as a whole, and of the plans and 
specifications, estimate of the costs and expenses, the diagram and the continued 
assessment as contained in said report, as hereinabove determined and ordered, is 
intended to and shall refer and apply to said report, or any portion thereof, as amended, 
modified, revised, or corrected by, or pursuant to and in accordance with any resolution 
or order, if any, heretofore duly adopted or made by this City Council. 

 
14. That the San Mateo County Controller and the San Mateo County Tax Collector apply 

the City of Menlo Park Landscaping District assessments to the tax roll and have the San 
Mateo County Tax Collector collect said continued assessments in the manner and form 
as with all other such assessments collected by the San Mateo County Tax Collector. 

 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 

Page F-1.6



I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing City Council resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting of 
said City Council on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twenty-eighth day of June, 2022. 

 
 

_____________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page F-1.7



 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page F-1.8



Public Works 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  5/24/2022 
Staff Report Number: 22-098-CC

Consent Calendar: Adopt a resolution of preliminary approval of the 
engineer’s report for the Menlo Park Landscaping 
Assessment District and adopt a resolution of 
intention to order the levy and collection of 
assessments for the Landscaping Assessment 
District for fiscal year 2022-23   

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
1. Adopt a resolution (Attachment A), the preliminary approval of the engineer’s report for the Landscaping

Assessment District for fiscal year 2022-23, which proposes: an increase to the tree assessment by
approximately three percent, resulting in $88.72 per single family equivalent per year and an increase to
the sidewalk assessment by approximately three percent, resulting in $47.40 per single family
equivalent per year; and

2. Adopt a resolution (Attachment B), the intention to order the levy and collection of assessments for the
Landscaping Assessment District for fiscal year 2022-23 pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act
of 1972 and set the date for the public hearing for June 28, 2022.

Policy Issues 
If the City Council does not order the levy and collection of assessments, the impact on City general fund 
resources would be approximately $1,117,000. This represents the total amount of the proposed tree and 
sidewalk assessments. Without the levy, the programs to repair sidewalks, maintain street trees, and sweep 
streets would be suspended.  

Background 
The Landscaping Assessment District provides funding for the maintenance of street trees, street sweeping 
and sidewalk repairs due to street tree root damage throughout the City. 

Tree maintenance 
Between 1960 and 1982, the City had a three-person tree crew to care for City parks, medians and street 
trees. At that time, the tree crew trimmed street trees as requested by residents. There was no specific 
long-term plan in place to address tree maintenance. As the street trees grew, it took considerably more 
effort per tree to provide proper care and the City did not have the resources to keep up with the required 
maintenance needs. 

The voters approved Measure N in 1982 as an advisory measure to the City Council regarding formation of 
the City Landscaping Assessment District. The Landscaping Assessment District was formalized in 1983 to 
provide proper street-tree maintenance. Programmatic changes have occurred over the past 39 years to 
address new regulations and maintain the existing tree canopy. Proper care of the tree canopy continues to 

AGENDA ITEM G-5

Page G-5.1

ATTACHMENT B

Page F-1.9



Staff Report #: 22-098-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

be identified as a priority by residents, the Environmental Quality Commission and the City Council. 
In 1998, the City expressed concern regarding the declining health of the trees, of which 80 percent were 
classified as mature trees. Due to the lack of City resources to maintain older trees, there was a growing 
concern that most of the street trees would fail around the same time. Consequently, the City moved 
forward in adopting proactive measures to minimize the risk of failure by replacing mature unhealthy trees 
with younger healthier trees.  
 
In 1998, the City went through a Proposition 218 ballot measure to increase landscape assessment fees. 
Proposition 218 requires that property owners be given written notice and the opportunity to protest before 
increasing any property-related fees. The landscape assessment fee increase ballot measure was approved 
by voters. The approval of this ballot measure resulted in an increased assessment and frequency of the 
tree trimming/evaluation schedule, from once every seven years to once every five years. In addition, the 
City implemented a reforestation program with a portion of the Landscaping Assessment District funds in 
fiscal year 2008-09.  
 
Street sweeping 
Street sweeping is performed throughout the City to remove debris for aesthetic purposes, bicycle and 
pedestrian safety, and health reasons, as well as compliance with stormwater regulations to improve water 
quality. Street sweeping work has been performed by contract services since 1992.  
 
City tree-damaged sidewalk repair 
As trees mature, their extensive network of roots inevitably breaks through and uplifts the sidewalk. Without 
a proactive saw cutting and/or sidewalk removal and replacement program, the sidewalks will deteriorate, 
become tripping hazards, and be more costly to repair over time. 
 
Before 1990, property owners and the City split the cost of repairing damaged sidewalks by City street 
trees. Each year, the City entered into individual agreements with approximately 200 property owners to 
conduct these repairs. The annual cost was a financial burden to some residents on fixed incomes and 
burdensome for the City to administer; therefore, the City established an assessment for sidewalk repair in 
1990 to make the program more cost-effective and efficient to operate. Other damage to sidewalks not 
caused by city trees remains the responsibility of the adjacent property owner to repair, per municipal code 
section 13.08.  

 
Analysis 
Each fiscal year, the City Council directs the preparation of an engineer’s report, budget and proposed 
assessments before the assessments can be levied. The engineer’s report establishes the foundation and 
justification for the continued collection of the landscape assessments. On March 8, 2022, the City Council 
adopted resolution No. 6714 directing the preparation of an engineer’s report for the Landscaping 
Assessment District for fiscal year 2022-23. In developing the engineer’s report, staff and the consultant 
reviewed the existing budget and operating needs to maintain street trees and sidewalk repair requirements 
at the current level of service. The proposed budget and findings from the engineer’s report are described 
below. 
 
Approval of engineer’s report 
SCI Consulting Group has completed the preliminary engineer’s report (Attachment C) for the Landscaping 
Assessment District, which includes the proposed fiscal year 2022-23 budget. The budget covers tree 
maintenance, the City’s street sweeping program, and the sidewalk repair program. The report describes in 
detail the method used for apportioning the total assessment among properties within the Landscaping 
Assessment District. This method involves identifying the benefit received by each property in relation to a 

Page G-5.2Page F-1.10



Staff Report #: 22-098-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

single-family residence. 

Tree maintenance assessment 
Staff has contracted with West Coast Arborists since 2004 to perform tree grid trimming, planting and 
removal, and emergency services as necessary. The grid trimming, which consists of the majority of work 
performed by West Coast Arborists, involves the pruning of a set number of trees on an annual basis. 
Currently, the City performs tree grid pruning on a five-year cycle. The grid pruning strategy is common 
practice within municipal arboriculture, as it becomes cost effective to maintain the trees on a regular basis. 
When pruning is deferred for longer periods, fast growing trees can become prone to limb failure and 
hazards, requiring more expensive measures in the long run.  

On September 10, 2014, the City Council approved a five-year contract with authorization to extend the 
contract term for up to five additional years with West Coast Arborists for tree maintenance. The contract 
with West Coast Arborists expires June 30, 2024. For fiscal year 2022-23, West Coast Arborists requested 
a five percent increase. This increase is generally consistent with annual engineering news record cost 
escalation in the San Francisco-San Jose Bay Area each year and an increased demand for tree services 
due to maintenance being performed by utility companies in response to wildfire risk near electric lines. The 
Tree Maintenance Program expenditures include the contract for grid tree pruning services, debris removal 
(includes street sweeping), general operating expenses, vehicle and equipment maintenance and the 
salaries and benefits associated with the staff time required to manage the program and work on street 
trees.  

The street sweeping contractor, Contract Sweeping Services Inc., is under a five-year contract expiring in 
June 30, 2023. The contract identifies rates for each fiscal year, and the identified increase for fiscal year 
2022-23 is three percent. Currently, a combination of San Mateo County Measure M funds and the 
landscape assessment fund street sweeping contract services. The Measure M funding, administered by 
the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County, was approved by the voters of San 
Mateo County in 2010. It imposes an annual fee of $10 on registered motor vehicles for congestion and 
water pollution mitigation programs. Based on estimates from City/County Association of Governments, 
Measure M funding is anticipated to decrease by $6,000 in fiscal year 2022-23. 

As shown in Table 1, a fund balance of approximately $288,000 is projected to be carried over from fiscal 
year 2021-22. Per the Landscape and Lighting Act, the assessment is reduced by the projected balance, 
which is less than or equal to the costs necessary to perform maintenance and services until the County 
distributes the first assessment payment. The program revenues and expenditures are usually equivalent. 
However, in the fiscal year 2022-23, the estimated expense for the street tree maintenance includes costs 
for purchase of tree chipper truck and tree forestry truck, approved by the City Council October 26, 2021. 
The estimated costs for tree chipper truck and tree forestry truck are $151,000 and $343,000, respectively, 
and 50 percent of the total costs are budgeted to be addressed by the landscape assessment.  

Page G-5.3Page F-1.11



Staff Report #: 22-098-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Table 1: Tree maintenance assessments 
Proposed fiscal year 2022-23 budget 

Projected beginning fund balance $288,317.99 

Estimated revenues:   

Tree assessment revenue $794,064.41 

General fund contribution $341,505.00 

Measure M funds $140,000.00 

Total $1,275,569.41 

Estimated expenses:   

Street tree maintenance $1,039,967.00 

Debris removal (including street sweeping services) $285,669.00 

Administration and County assessment fees $163,052.00 

Total $1,488,688.00 

Projected ending fund balance $75,199.40 
 
Table 2 summarizes the proposed rates for parcels with and without street trees. The assessment for 
properties without street trees, but in close proximity to parcels with street trees, is 50 percent of the tree 
assessment due to the direct benefit of the nearby trees.  
 

Table 2: Annual tree assessment rates 
Proposed fiscal year 2022-23 (3% increase) 

Property type Properties with trees             Properties without trees 

Single family $88.72 per parcel $44.36 per parcel 

R-2 zone, in use as single family $88.72 per parcel $44.36 per parcel 

Condominium/townhouse $79.85 per unit 
$399.24 max. per project 

$39.92 per unit 
$199.62 max per project 

Other multifamily $70.98 per unit 
$354.88 max per project 

$35.49 per unit 
$177.44 max. per project 

Commercial $88.72 per 1/5 acre 
$443.60 max. per project 

$44.36 per 1/5 acre 
$221.80 max. per project 

Industrial $88.72 per 1/5 acre 
$443.60 max. per project 

$44.36 per 1/5 acre 
$221.80 max. per project 

Parks, educational $88.72 per parcel $44.36 per parcel 
 
Sidewalk assessment  
The sidewalk repair program includes sidewalk, curb, gutter and parking strip repair and replacement due to 
damage cause by street trees. In fiscal year 2022-23, the program has a proposed $550,000 budget. The 
program is comprised of two separate contracts, one for sidewalk saw cutting ($100,000) and the other for 
sidewalk replacement ($450,000.) Significant cost increases in this contract are not expected for fiscal year 
2022-23. Under the saw cutting program, the City retains a contractor to address minor tripping hazards, 
which are fixed by performing horizontal saw cuts rather than removing the entire sidewalk section. Since 

Page G-5.4Page F-1.12



Staff Report #: 22-098-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

the City adopted this approach, it has reduced the need for complete concrete removal, which has resulted 
in significant cost savings and environmental benefits by reducing waste and need for new raw materials for 
concrete over the years. 

For the sidewalk replacement program, the City’s existing contract with Golden Bay Construction will expire 
at the end of next fiscal year. As a result, staff will enter a bidding process in the fiscal year 2022-23 and 
anticipates the contract cost to increase by approximately 10 percent due to the rising materials and labor 
costs in recent years. During the fiscal year 2021-22, approximately 55 to 60 locations were replaced. 
However, despite increased funding and service levels the last two years, the annual sidewalk replacement 
needs continue to exceed the budgeted amount and a backlog of requests still exists. While the program 
has made progress in reducing the number of backlogged locations, approximately 30 locations identified 
from previous years remain. Staff is recommending a three percent increase to the sidewalk repair 
assessment to continue addressing ongoing sidewalk maintenance.  

Table 3: Sidewalk, curb, gutter, parking strip assessment rates 
Proposed fiscal year 2022-23 (3% increase) 

Assessment rate 

Parcels with trees 

Sidewalks, curbs, gutters $47.40 (per parcel) 

Parking strips and gutters $47.40 (per parcel) 

Curbs and/or gutters only $31.76 (per parcel) 

No improvements $15.64 per parcel) 

Parcels without trees 

Parcels with or without improvements $15.64 (per parcel) 

Table 4: Sidewalk assessments 
Proposed fiscal year 2022-23 budget 

Projected beginning fund balance $76,023.57 

Estimated revenues: 

Sidewalk assessment revenue $322,994.98 

General fund contribution $250,000.00 

Total $572,994.98 

Estimated expenses: 

Sidewalk, curb, gutter parking strip repair/replacement $550,000.00 

Total $550,000.00 

Projected ending fund balance $99,018.55 

Page G-5.5Page F-1.13



Staff Report #: 22-098-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Assessment 
The assessments are subject to an annual adjustment based on the engineering news record construction 
cost index (CCI) for the San Francisco Bay Area. The maximum authorized assessment rate for fiscal year 
2022-23, based on current and accumulated unused CCI increases reserved from prior years is 
summarized in Table 5 below. These increases are legally permissible without additional ballot proceedings. 
The comparison assessments for single-family properties with City trees and sidewalks levied in fiscal year 
2022-23 and the proposed rates for fiscal year 2022-23 are shown in Table 5.  
 
While the ongoing cost of maintenance of trees and sidewalks has significantly increased since the 
inception of the Landscaping Assessment District, the City has tried to minimize rate increases. Incremental 
rate increases combined with monies allocated from the general fund ensures the maintenance program 
remains proactive while maintaining a balanced funding approach.  
 

Table 5: Assessment (annual, per SFE) 
Fiscal year 2022-23 

Assessment Fiscal year 
2021-22 rate 

Percent 
increase 

Fiscal year 
2022-23 rate 

Amount 
increase 

Maximum 
allowable 

assessment 
Tree assessment $86.15 3.0% $88.72 $2.51 $124.73 

Sidewalk assessment $46.02 3.0% $47.40 $1.34 $55.69 
 
If the City Council approves the attached resolutions, staff will publish a legal notice of the assessment 
public hearing at least 10 days before the hearing, which is tentatively scheduled for June 28, 2022. Once 
the assessments are confirmed and approved, the levies will be submitted to the County Controller for 
inclusion onto the property tax roll for fiscal year 2022-23. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
Funding for the entire tree maintenance, street sweeping and sidewalk repair programs under the 
Landscaping Assessment District come from a variety of sources, including the carry-over of unspent funds 
from prior years, annual tax assessment revenues, and contributions from the general fund. If the City 
Council does not order the rate increase, levy and collection of assessments, the impact on City general 
fund resources would be $1,117,059.38 (the total amount of the proposed tree and sidewalk assessments) 
or the program to repair sidewalks, maintain street trees, and sweep streets would be suspended. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it has no potential for resulting in any direct or indirect physical 
change in the environment. 
 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours before the meeting. 
 
 

 

Page G-5.6Page F-1.14

EJJung
Line

EJJung
Line

EJJung
Text Box
$2.57

EJJung
Text Box
$1.38



Staff Report #: 22-098-CC 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Attachments 
A. Resolution of preliminary approval of the engineer’s report
B. Resolution of intention to order the levy and collection of assessments
C. Engineer’s report dated May 2022

Report prepared by: 
Esther Jung, Associate Transportation Engineer 

Reviewed by: 
Tanisha Werner, Assistant Public Works Director – Engineering 
Nicole H. Nagaya, Public Works Director 

Page G-5.7Page F-1.15



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER’S REPORT 
FOR THE CITY OF MENLO PARK LANDSCAPING DISTRICT FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2022-23 

WHEREAS, on the eighth day of March, 2022, the Menlo Park City Council did adopt Resolution 
No. 6714, directing preparation of the Engineer’s Report for the City of Menlo Park Landscaping 
District (District) for Fiscal Year 2022-23, pursuant to provisions of Article XIIID of the California 
Constitution and the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, in said City and did refer the 
proposed improvements to SCI Consulting Group and did therein direct SCI Consulting Group 
to prepare and file with the Clerk of said City a report, in writing, all as therein more particularly 
described, under and in accordance with Section 22565, et. seq., of the Streets and Highways 
Code and Article XIIID of the California Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, said SCI Consulting Group prepared and filed with the City Clerk of said City a 
report in writing as called for in Resolution No. 6714 and under and pursuant to said Article and 
Act, which report has been presented to this City Council for consideration; and 

WHEREAS, said City Council has duly considered said report and each and every part thereof, 
and finds that each and every part of said report is sufficient, and that neither said report, nor 
any part thereof, should be modified in any respect. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, and 
ORDERED, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the plans and specifications for the existing improvements and the proposed new
improvements to be made within the District contained in said report, be, and they are
hereby, preliminarily approved;

2. That the Engineer’s estimate of the itemized and total costs and expenses of said
improvements, maintenance, and servicing thereof, and of the incidental expenses in
connection therewith, contained in said report be, and each of them is hereby, preliminarily
approved;

3. That the diagram (Exhibit A) showing the exterior boundaries of the District referred to and
described in said Resolution No. 6714 and the lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel of
land within said District as such lot or parcel of land is shown on the County Assessor’s
maps for the fiscal year to which the report applies, each of which lot or parcel of land has
been given a separate number upon said diagram, as contained in said report be, and it is
hereby, preliminarily approved;

4. That the proposed continued assessment of the total amount of the estimated costs and
expenses of the proposed improvements upon the several lots or parcels of land in said
District in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by such lots or parcels,
respectively, from said improvements including the maintenance or servicing, or both,
thereof, and of the expenses incidental thereto, as contained in said report be, and they are
hereby, preliminarily approved; and

5. That said report shall stand as the Engineer’s Report for the purpose of all subsequent
proceedings to be had pursuant to said Resolution No. 6714.

ATTACHMENT A

Page G-5.8Page F-1.16



I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-fourth of May, 2022, by the following votes:  

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ of May, 2022. 

_____________________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Exhibits: 
A. Exterior boundaries of the District

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 3

Page G-5.9Page F-1.17



MENLO AVE

JUN
IP

E
R

O
SER

R
A

B
LV

D

RAVENSWOOD AVE

GLENWOOD AVE

MARSH RD

SANTA CRUZ AVE

B
A

Y
R

D

B
A

YFRO
N

T
EXPRESSW

AY

RINGWOOD AVE

OAK GROVE AVE

WILLOW RD

M
ID

D
LE

FI
E

LD
R

D

A
LA

M
E

D
A

D
E

LA
S

P
U

LG
A

S

MIDDLE AVE

E
L

C
A

M
IN

O
R

E
A

L

H
W

Y
28

0

A
LP

IN

E
RD

SAND HILL RD

UNIVERSITY AVE

H
W

Y
10

1

VALPARAISO AVE

±City Limits

Landscape Assessment District

Parcels

Landscape Assessment District

Reference is hereby made to the maps and deeds recorded in the
Office of The Assessor of the County of San Mateo for a detailed
description of the lines and dimensions of any parcels shown herein.
Those maps shall govern for all details concerning the lines and
dimensions of such parcels. Each parcel is identified in said maps
by its distinctive parcel number.

0 1 20.5
Miles

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 3 of 3 EXHIBIT A

Page G-5.10Page F-1.18



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK TO ORDER THE CONTINUATION AND COLLECTION OF 
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE CITY OF MENLO PARK LANDSCAPING 
DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 PURSUANT TO THE 
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ACT OF 1972 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 6714 directing the preparation of the Engineer’s Report 
for Fiscal Year 2022-23 for the City of Menlo Park Landscaping District, adopted on March 8, 
2022, by the City Council of Menlo Park; and 

WHEREAS pursuant to provisions of Article XIIID of the California Constitution and the 
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, SCI Consulting Group for said City has prepared and 
filed with the City Clerk of this City the written report called for under and in accordance with 
Section 22565, et. seq., of the Streets and Highways Code and Article XIIID of the California 
Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, by said Resolution No. 6714, which said report has been submitted and 
preliminarily approved by this City Council in accordance with said Article and Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, and 
ORDERED, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. In its opinion, the public interest and convenience require, and it is the intention of this City
Council, to order the continuation and collection of assessments for Fiscal Year 2022-23
pursuant to the provisions of Article XIIID of the California Constitution and the Landscaping
and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2, Division 15 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State
of California, for the construction or installation of the improvements, including the
maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof, more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto
attached and by reference incorporated herein;

2. The cost and expense of said improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, or
both, thereof, are to be made chargeable upon the assessment district designated as “City
of Menlo Park Landscaping District” (District) the exterior boundaries of which District are
the composite and consolidated area as more particularly described on a map thereof on file
in the office of the Clerk of said City, to which reference is hereby made for further
particulars. Said map indicates by a boundary line the extent of the territory included in the
District and the general location of said District;

3. Said Engineer’s Report prepared by SCI Consulting Group, preliminarily approved by this
City Council, and on file with the Clerk of this City, is hereby referred to for a full and detailed
description of the improvements, the boundaries of the assessment district and the
proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of land within the District;

4. The authorized maximum assessment rates for the District include an annual adjustment by
an amount equal to the annual change in the Engineering News Record Index, not to
exceed 3.00 percent per year, plus any uncaptured excesses.  Assessment rates for the
tree portion of the assessments are proposed to increase during Fiscal Year 2022-23 by
3.00 percent. Including the authorized annual adjustment, the maximum authorized
assessment rate for street tree maintenance for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is $124.73 per single
family equivalent benefit unit, and the assessment rate per single family equivalent benefit
unit for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is $88.72 which is less than the maximum authorized rate.
Assessment rates for the sidewalk repairs portion of the assessments are proposed to

ATTACHMENT B

Page G-5.11Page F-1.19



 

increase during Fiscal Year 2022-23 by 3.00 percent. Including the authorized annual 
adjustment, the maximum authorized assessment rate for sidewalk maintenance for Fiscal 
Year 2022-23 is $55.69 per single family equivalent benefit unit, and the assessment rate 
per single family equivalent benefit unit for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is $47.40, which is less than 
the maximum authorized rate; 

5. Notice is hereby given that Tuesday, the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, at the hour of 
6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, by virtual meeting available, at 
which time and place interested persons may participate and be heard on, and the same are 
hereby appointed and fixed as the time and place for a Public Hearing by this City Council 
on the question of the continuation and collection of the proposed assessment for the 
construction or installation of said improvements, including the maintenance and servicing, 
or both, thereof, and when and where it will consider all oral statements and all written 
protests made or filed by any interested person at or before the conclusion of said hearing, 
against said improvements, the boundaries of the assessment district and any zone therein, 
the proposed diagram or the proposed assessment, to the Engineer’s estimate of the cost 
thereof, and when and where it will consider and finally act upon the Engineer’s Report; 

6. The City Clerk of said City is hereby directed to give notice of said Public Hearing by 
causing a copy of this resolution to be published once in The Examiner, a newspaper 
circulated in said City, and by conspicuously posting a copy thereof upon the official bulletin 
board customarily used by the City for the posting of notices, said posting and publication to 
be had and completed at least ten (10) days prior to the date of public hearing specified 
herein; and 

7. The Office of the Public Works Director of said City is hereby designated as the office to 
answer inquiries regarding any protest proceedings to be had herein, and may be contacted 
during regular office hours at the Civic Center, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, California, 
94025, or by calling (650) 330-6740. 

 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-fourth day of May, 2022, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:     
 
NOES:    
  
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ of May, 2022. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
 
Exhibits: 
A. City of Menlo Park Landscaping District 
 

 

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 3

Page G-5.12Page F-1.20



City of Menlo Park Landscaping District 

Maintaining and servicing of street trees, including the cost of repair, removal or replacement of 
all or any part thereof, providing for the life, growth, health, and beauty of landscaping, including 
cultivation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing, or treating for disease or injury, the removal of 
trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid waste, and water for the irrigation thereof, and the 
installation or construction, including the maintenance and servicing thereof, of curbs, gutters, 
sidewalks, and parking strips. 

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 3 of 3 EXHIBIT A

Page G-5.13Page F-1.21



FY 2022-23 ENGINEER’S REPORT 

City of Menlo Park 

Landscaping Assessment District 

June 2022 

ATTACHMENT C

Page G-5.14Page F-1.22



ATTACHMENT C 

Page G-5.15Page F-1.23



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page i 

 

City of Menlo Park 

Menlo Park City Council 

Mayor Betsy Nash 

Vice Mayor Jen Wolosin 

Council Member Drew Combs 

Council Member Ray Mueller 

Council Member Cecilia Taylor 

 

Interim City Manager  

Justin Murphy 

 

City Clerk 

Judi Herren 

 

City Attorney 

Nira Doherty 

 

Engineer of Work 

SCI Consulting Group 

Lead Assessment Engineer, John Bliss, M.Eng., P.E. 

 

  

Page G-5.16Page F-1.24



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page ii 

 

Table of Contents 

Introduction 1 

Assessment Background 1 

Legal Analysis 3 

Plans & Specifications 6 

Method of Assessment 7 

Discussion of Benefit 7 

Benefit Factors 8 

General vs. Special Benefit 10 

Method of Assessment 11 

Assessment Apportionment - Street Trees 12 

Assessment Apportionment - Sidewalk Program 14 

Assessment Apportionment - Other Properties 14 

Appeals and Interpretation 15 

Assessment 17 

Assessment Diagram 22 

Appendix A – Assessment Roll, FY 2022-23 24 

 

Page G-5.17Page F-1.25



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page iii 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 – Residential Assessment Factors ....................................................................... 13 

Figure 2 – Tree Maintenance Assessments ...................................................................... 16 

Figure 3 – Sidewalk, Curb, Gutter, Parking Strip Assessments ......................................... 16 

Figure 4 – Summary Cost Estimate ................................................................................... 17 

Figure 5 – Engineer’s Cost Estimate, Fiscal Year 2022-23................................................. 20 

 

 

Page G-5.18Page F-1.26



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 1 

 

Introduction 

Assessment Background 

Between 1960 and 1982, the City of Menlo Park had one three-person crew to care for 

approximately 9,000 City trees.  As the trees grew, it took considerably more time per 

tree to provide proper care.  Consequently, one tree crew was unable to perform the 

necessary work to maintain all of the street trees in proper condition. The Landscape 

Assessment District was originally formed in 1983 for the purpose of levying annual 

special assessments in order to properly maintain street trees in the City of Menlo Park.  

Currently, there are approximately 11,000 street trees that are maintained by the 

assessments.  

 

Prior to 1990, property owners and the City would split the cost of repairing sidewalks 

damaged by City trees. The City would annually enter into an agreement with 

approximately 200 individual property owners.  The one-time cost was a financial burden 

to some residents on fixed incomes.  In order to make the program more cost-effective 

and less of a financial burden for property owners, an assessment for repair of 

sidewalks/parking strips due to City street-tree related damages was established in 1990. 

 

The increased cost of the necessary work made the assessment amounts levied in Fiscal 

Year 1997-98 insufficient for adequately maintaining the City’s street trees, curbs, gutters 

and sidewalks. An increase in the assessments was required to provide funding for 

continued tree maintenance and sidewalk repairs.  However, with the passage of 

Proposition 218 on November 6, 1996, assessments can only be raised after the City 

conducts an assessment ballot proceeding and the ballots submitted in opposition to the 

assessments do not exceed the ballots in favor of the assessments.  (Each ballot is 

weighted by the amount of assessment for the property it represents.)  

Assessment Process 

In 1998, the City conducted an assessment ballot proceeding for increased tree 

maintenance and sidewalk repair assessments pursuant to the requirements of Article 

XIIID of the California Constitution (Proposition 218) and the Landscaping and Lighting Act 

of 1972. The proposed tree maintenance assessments for fiscal year 1998-99 were $64.28 

per single family equivalent unit and the proposed sidewalk repair assessments were 

$28.70 per single family equivalent.  The proposed maximum assessments also included 

an annual assessment cost escalator tied to the annual change in the Engineering News 

Record Construction Cost Index for the San Francisco Bay Area ("ENR Index").  These 

proposed assessments were supported by 73% of assessment ballots received from 

Page G-5.19Page F-1.27



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 2 

 

property owners (with each ballot weighted by the amount of assessments it 

represented).  Therefore, on June 16, 1998 by its Resolution Number 4840-D, the City 

Council levied the new assessments. 

 

Engineer’s Report and Continuation of Assessments  

In each subsequent year for which the assessments will be continued, the City Council 

must direct the preparation of an Engineer's Report, budgets and proposed assessments 

for the upcoming fiscal year.  After the Engineer's Report is completed, the City Council 

may preliminarily approve the Engineer's Report and proposed assessments and establish 

the date for a public hearing on the continuation of the assessments.  This Report was 

prepared pursuant to the direction of the Council.  

The maximum authorized assessment rate, as increased each year by the change in the 

ENR Index, is the maximum assessment rate that can be levied in the given fiscal year 

without approval from property owners in another assessment ballot proceeding.  In 

fiscal year 1998-99, the assessments were levied at the maximum rate for that fiscal year.  

Since this first fiscal year after the ballot proceeding, the assessments for tree 

maintenance have been levied below the maximum authorized rate, and the assessment 

rate for sidewalk repairs has not been increased above the original rate. 

From December 2020 to December 2021, the ENR Index increased 8.05%. The maximum 

amount assessments can be increased annually is the ENR Index plus any uncaptured 

excess reserved from prior years, to a maximum increase to the ENR not to exceed 3%.  

Based on accumulated excess reserves from prior years, the maximum authorized rates 

for fiscal year 2022-23 are $124.73 for trees and $55.69 for sidewalks without another 

ballot proceeding.  (No additional ballot proceeding is required because the maximum 

authorized assessment rates, including the annual adjustments in these rates, were 

approved in the 1998 ballot proceeding.  The actual rate levied in any given fiscal year can 

be revised up, with an annual maximum increase of 3%, or down, by any amount that 

does not cause the actual rates levied to exceed the maximum authorized assessment 

rates.)  

The City reduced the assessment rate for tree maintenance in fiscal year 2000-01 and  

increased the assessment rate in fiscal years 2002-03, 2005-06 through 2009-10, 2014-

15, and  2016-17 through 2021-22.  In other fiscal years it was not necessary to increase 

the rate, due to sufficient reserve funds carried forward from prior fiscal years, combined 

with general benefit contributions.  For fiscal year 2022-23 the proposed assessments for 

tree maintenance are proposed to increase 3.00% from fiscal year 2021-22, and the 

assessments for sidewalk maintenance are proposed to increase 3.00%.  The proposed 

rates are $88.72 per Single Family Equivalent (SFE) for tree maintenance and $47.40 per 

Page G-5.20Page F-1.28



City of Menlo Park 
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 3 

SFE for sidewalk maintenance.  The comparison of actual rates levied in fiscal year 2021-

22 and the proposed rates for fiscal year 2022-23 are shown below. 

Sidewalk Maintenance

FY 2021-22  Rate ENR Increase Applied FY 2022-23 Rate Increase

$46.02 3.00% $47.40 $1.38

Tree Maintenance

FY 2021-22  Rate ENR Increase Applied FY 2022-23 Rate Increase

$86.15 3.00% $88.72 $2.58

If the Council approves this Engineer's Report and the continuation of the assessments by 

resolution, a notice of assessment levies must be published in a local newspaper at least 

10 days prior to the date of the public hearing. The resolution preliminarily approving the 

Engineer's Report and establishing the date for a public hearing is used for this notice.  

Following the minimum 10-day time period after publishing the notice, a public hearing 

is held for the purpose of allowing public testimony about the proposed continuation of 

the assessments.  This hearing is currently scheduled for June 28, 2022.  At this hearing, 

the Council will consider approval of a resolution confirming the continuation of the 

assessments for fiscal year 2022-23.  If so confirmed and approved, the assessments will 

be submitted to the County Controller for inclusion on the property tax roll for Fiscal Year 

2022-23.  

Legal Analysis 

Proposition 218 

This assessment is consistent with Proposition 218, The Right to Vote on Taxes Act, which 

was approved by the voters of California on November 6, 1996 and is now Article XIIIC 

and XIIID of the California Constitution. Proposition 218 provides for benefit assessments 

to be levied to fund the cost of providing services, improvements, as well as maintenance 

and operation expenses to a public improvement which benefits the assessed property.   

Proposition 218 describes a number of important requirements, including a property-

owner balloting, for the formation and continuation of assessments, and these 

requirements are satisfied by the process used to establish this assessment. 

The original assessment existed prior to the passage of Proposition 218.  Although the 

original assessment is also consistent with Proposition 218, the California judiciary has 

generally referred to pre-Proposition 218 assessments as “grandfathered assessments” 

and held them to a lower standard than post Proposition 218 assessments.    

Page G-5.21Page F-1.29



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 4 

 

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v Santa Clara County Open Space 

Authority 

In July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling on the Silicon Valley 

Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (“SVTA vs. 

SCCOSA”).  This ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the 

substantive assessment requirements of Proposition 218.  Several of the most important 

elements of the ruling included further emphasis that: 

▪ Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit 

▪ The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be 

clearly defined 

▪ Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage 

to property in the assessment district 

Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property  

On June 8, 2009, the 4th Court of Appeal amended its original opinion upholding a benefit 

assessment for property in the downtown area of the City of Pomona.  On July 22, 2009, 

the California Supreme Court denied review.  On this date, Dahms became good law and 

binding precedent for assessments.  In Dahms the Court upheld an assessment that was 

100% special benefit (i.e., 0% general benefit) on the rationale that the services and 

improvements funded by the assessments were directly provided to property in the 

assessment district. The Court also upheld discounts and exemptions from the 

assessment for certain properties. 

Bonander v. Town of Tiburon 

On December 31, 2009, the 1st District Court of Appeal overturned a benefit assessment 

approved by property owners to pay for placing overhead utility lines underground in an 

area of the Town of Tiburon. The Court invalidated the assessments on the grounds that 

the assessments had been apportioned to assessed property based in part on relative 

costs within sub-areas of the assessment district instead of proportional special benefits.  

Beutz v. County of Riverside 

On May 26, 2010 the 4th District Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Steven Beutz v. 

County of Riverside (“Beutz”) appeal.  This decision overturned an assessment for park 

maintenance in Wildomar, California, primarily because the general benefits associated 

with improvements and services were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated 

from the special benefits. 

Page G-5.22Page F-1.30



City of Menlo Park 
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 5 

Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego  

On September 22, 2011, the San Diego Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Golden 

Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego appeal. This decision overturned an 

assessment for street and landscaping maintenance in the Greater Golden Hill 

neighborhood of San Diego, California. The court described two primary reasons for its 

decision. First, like in Beutz, the court found the general benefits associated with services 

were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated from the special 

benefits. Second, the court found that the City had failed to record the basis for the 

assessment on its own parcels. 

Compliance with Current Law 

This Engineer’s Report is consistent with the requirements of Article XIIIC and XIIID of the 

California Constitution and with the SVTA decision because the Improvements to be 

funded are clearly defined; the Improvements are directly available to and will directly 

benefit property in the Assessment District; and the Improvements provide a direct 

advantage to property in the Assessment District that would not be received in absence 

of the Assessments.   

This Engineer’s Report is consistent with Beutz, Dahms and Greater Golden Hill because 

the Improvements will directly benefit property in the Assessment District and the 

general benefits have been explicitly calculated and quantified and excluded from the 

Assessments. The Engineer’s Report is consistent with Bonander because the 

Assessments have been apportioned based on the overall cost of the Improvements and 

proportional special benefit to each property.  

Page G-5.23Page F-1.31



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 6 

 

Plans & Specifications 

Following is a description of the Services that are provided for the benefit of property in 

the Assessment District.  Prior to the residential development in Menlo Park, the Level of 

Service on these improvements was effectively zero.   The formula below describes the 

relationship between the final level of improvements, the baseline level of service (pre-

development) had the assessment not been instituted, and the enhanced level of 

improvements funded by the assessment. 

Final Level of 
Service 

= Baseline Level of Service  
(≈zero, pre-development) 

+ Enhanced Level of 
Service 

 

The City of Menlo Park maintains street trees, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, and parking strips 

throughout the City. 

The proposed improvements to be undertaken by the City of Menlo Park and financed by 

the levy of the annual assessment provide special benefit to Assessor Parcels within the 

District as defined in the Method of Assessment herein.  The said improvements consist 

of maintaining, trimming, disease treatment, and replacement of street trees; street 

sweeping to remove debris; and the repair and replacement of damaged sidewalks, curbs, 

gutters, and parking strips damaged by street trees throughout the City of Menlo Park. 

 

  

Page G-5.24Page F-1.32



City of Menlo Park 
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 7 

Method of Assessment 

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived 

from the maintenance, repair, and replacement of street trees, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, 

and parking strips throughout the City, and the methodology used to apportion the total 

assessment to properties within the Landscaping Assessment District. 

The Landscaping Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries 

of the City of Menlo Park as defined by the County of San Mateo tax code areas.  The 

method used for apportioning the assessment is based upon the proportional special 

benefits to be derived by the properties in the Landscaping Assessment District over and 

above general benefits conferred on real property or to the public at large. The 

apportionment of special benefit is a two-step process: the first step is to identify the 

types of special benefit arising from the improvements and the second step is to allocate 

the assessments to property based on the estimated relative special benefit for each type 

of property. 

Discussion of Benefit  

In summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to 

properties.  This benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits and 

such benefit is not based on any one property owner’s use of the amenities or a property 

owner’s specific demographic status.  With reference to the requirements for assessment, 

Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 states: 

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be 
apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount 
among all assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be 
received by each such lot or parcel from the improvements." 

Article XIIID, Section 4 of the California Constitution has confirmed that assessments must 

be based on the special benefit to property: 

"No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost 
of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel." 

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential, 

commercial, industrial and other lots and parcels resulting from the installation, 

maintenance and servicing of landscaping and lighting improvements to be provided with 

the assessment proceeds.  These categories of special benefit are derived from the 

statutes passed by the California Legislature and other studies which describe the types 

Page G-5.25Page F-1.33



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 8 

 

of special benefit received by property from maintenance and improvements such as 

those within by the District.  These types of special benefit are summarized as follows: 

A. Proximity to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District. 

B. Access to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District. 

C. Improved Views within the Assessment District. 

D. Enhanced environment because of the vigorous street tree program for owners 

of property in the Landscaping Assessment District. 

E. Increased safety against tripping and other hazards caused by cracked or 

damaged sidewalks, curbs and gutters. 

F. Enhanced desirability of the property. 

G. Reduced liability for landscape maintenance. 

In this case, the recent the SVTA v. SCCOSA decision provides enhanced clarity to the 

definitions of special benefits to properties in three distinct areas: 

♦   Proximity  ♦  Expanded or Improved Access         ♦  Views  
 

The SVTA v. SCCOSA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or 

improvement that provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or derivative 

advantages resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are 

general benefits.  The SVTA v. SCCOSA decision also provides specific guidance that 

landscaping improvements are a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is 

proximate to landscaping that is improved by an assessment: 

The characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives a 
direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a park) or receives an 
indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the 
improvement (e.g. general enhancement of the district’s property values).  
 

Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed 

above further strengthen the basis of these assessments. 

Benefit Factors 

The special benefits from the Improvements are further detailed below:  

Page G-5.26Page F-1.34



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 9 

 

Proximity to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District  

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the Improvements are included in 

the Assessment District.  Therefore, property in the Assessment District enjoys unique 

and valuable proximity and access to the Improvements that the public at large and 

property outside the Assessment District do not share.   

In absence of the assessments, the Improvements would not be provided and the 

landscaping areas in the Assessment District would be degraded due to insufficient 

funding for maintenance, upkeep and repair. Therefore, the assessments provide 

Improvements that are over and above what otherwise would be provided.  

Improvements that are over and above what otherwise would be provided do not by 

themselves translate into special benefits, but when combined with the unique proximity 

and access enjoyed by parcels in the Assessment District, they provide a direct advantage 

and special benefit to property in the Assessment District.  

Access to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment Di strict 

Since the parcels in the Assessment District are nearly the only parcels that enjoy close 

access to the Improvements, they directly benefit from the unique close access to 

improved landscaping areas that are provided by the Assessments.  This is a direct 

advantage and special benefit to property in the Assessment District. 

Improved views within the Assessment District  

The City, by maintaining these landscaped areas, provides improved views to properties 

in the Assessment District.  The properties in the Assessment District enjoy close and 

unique proximity, access and views of the Improvements; therefore, the improved and 

protected views provided by the Assessments are another direct and tangible advantage 

that is uniquely conferred upon property in the Assessment District. The Landscaping 

Assessment District provides funding to maintain and protect these public resources and 

facilities of the City.  For example, the assessments provide funding to trim and maintain 

the street trees to maintain them in a healthy condition. This benefits properties by 

maintaining and improving the public resources in the community. 

In order to allocate the proposed assessments, the Engineer begins by identifying the 

types of special benefit arising from the maintenance, repair, and replacement of the 

aforementioned facilities and that would be provided to property within the District.  

These types of special benefit are as follows: 

Page G-5.27Page F-1.35



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 10 

 

Enhanced environment because of the vigorous street tree program for 

owners of property in the Landscaping Assessment District  

Residential properties benefit from the enhanced environment provided by a vigorous 

program to install and maintain the street trees at a level beyond that followed by other 

cities throughout the County.  The increased use of street trees provides an atmosphere 

of beauty beyond the norm. The improvements to the trees will be available to residents 

and guests of properties within the District. 

Non-residential properties also will benefit from these improvements in many ways.  The 

use of street trees softens the environment making it more pleasant for employees during 

commute time and at breaks from their work. These improvements, therefore, enhance 

an employer's ability to attract and keep quality employees. The benefits to employers 

ultimately flow to the property because better employees improve the employment 

prospects for companies and enhanced economic conditions benefit the property by 

making it more valuable. 

Increased safety against tripping and other hazards caused by  cracked or 

damaged sidewalks, curbs and gutters  

An aggressive inspection program identifies hazardous conditions in sidewalks, curbs and 

gutters caused by street trees and allows for these conditions to be repaired on a timely 

basis. Timely repair of hazardous conditions greatly improves the overall safety of the 

environment, thereby providing for safer use of property.  

Enhanced desirability of the property 

The assessments will provide funding to improve the City's street tree program, raising 

the quality to a more desired level, and to ensure that the sidewalks, curbs, and gutters 

remain operable, safe, clean and well maintained. Such improved and well-maintained 

facilities enhance the overall desirability of property. This is a benefit to residential, 

commercial and industrial properties.  

Reduced liability for landscape maintenance  

The assessments will reduce the liability for landscape maintenance to street trees and 

other improvements. This is a benefit to residential, commercial and industrial properties.  

General vs. Special Benefit  

Article XIII D of the Constitution specifies that only special benefits are assessable, and 

that the City must separate the general benefits from the special benefits conferred on 

any parcel.  The complete analysis of special benefits and their allocation are found 

Page G-5.28Page F-1.36



City of Menlo Park 
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 11 

elsewhere in this report.  For the Landscaping Assessment District, the City has identified 

a general benefit and has separated it from the special assessments. 

The City’s maintenance of street trees and sidewalk facilities provides a general benefit 

to the community and to the general public to some degree. The measure of this general 

benefit is the enhancement of the environment and safety provided to the greater public 

at large.  This general benefit can be measured by the proportionate amount of time that 

the City’s sidewalks and street trees are used and enjoyed by the greater public at large1.  

It is reasonable to assume that approximately 1/4 or 25% of the usage and enjoyment of 

the improvements is by the greater public.  Therefore, approximately 25% of the benefits 

conferred by the improvements are general in nature. 

The City’s total budget for maintenance and improvement of its trees and sidewalk 

facilities is $2,038,362.  Of this total budget amount, the City will contribute $250,000 

from sources other than the assessments for sidewalk repair and $341,505 for street tree 

maintenance. These contributions by the City, as well as $140,000 in funds from Measure 

M, total $731,505, equating to approximately 35.9% of the total budget for maintenance 

and more than offset the cost of the general benefits resulting from the improvements. 

In the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit 

on the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided 

within the assessment district. It is also important to note that the improvements and 

services funded by the assessments in Pomona are similar to the improvements and 

services funded by the Assessments described in this Engineer’s Report and the Court 

found these improvements and services to be 100% special benefit. Also similar to the 

assessments in Pomona, the Assessments described in this Engineer’s Report fund 

improvements and services directly provided within the Assessment District and every 

benefiting property in the Assessment District enjoys proximity and access to the 

Improvements.  Therefore, Dahms establishes a basis for minimal or zero general benefits 

from the Assessments. However, in this Report, the general benefit is more conservatively 

estimated and described, and then budgeted so that it is funded by sources other than 

the Assessment. 

Method of Assessment 

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit 

for each property.  This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each 

property in relation to a single-family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single-

1 .  The greater public at large is generally defined as those who are not residents, property 
owners, customers or employees within the City, and residents who do not live in close proximity 
to the improvements. 

Page G-5.29Page F-1.37



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 12 

 

Family Equivalents (“SFE”). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute 

assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as 

providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments.  For the 

purposes of this Engineer’s Report, all properties are designated an SFE value, which is 

each property’s relative benefit in relation to a single-family home on one parcel.  The 

"benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling, which is one Single Family 

Equivalent, or one SFE.   

As stated previously, the special benefits derived from the assessments are conferred on 

property and are not based on a specific property owner’s use of the improvements, on 

a specific property owner’s occupancy of property, or the property owner’s demographic 

status such as age or number of dependents.  However, it is ultimately people who enjoy 

the special benefits described above, use and enjoy the City’s trees and sidewalks, and 

control property values by placing a value on the special benefits to be provided by the 

improvements.  In other words, the benefits derived to property are related the average 

number of people who could potentially live on, work at or otherwise could use a 

property, not how the property is currently used by the present owner. Therefore, the 

number of people who could or potentially live on, work at or otherwise use a property 

is an indicator of the relative level of benefit received by the property. 

Assessment Apportionment - Street Trees 

Properties with Street Trees  

All improved residential properties that represent a single residential dwelling unit and 

have a street tree on or fronting the property are assigned 1.0 SFE.  All single-family 

houses with tree(s) and those units in R-2 zones that are being used as single-family 

dwellings (with trees) are included in this category.  

Properties with more than one residential unit are designated as multi-family residential 

properties.  These properties benefit from the improvements in proportion to the number 

of dwelling units that occupy each property and the relative number of people who reside 

in multi-family residential units compared to the average number of people who reside 

in a single-family home. The population density factors for the County of San Mateo from 

the 1990 US Census (the most recent data available when the Assessment was 

established) are depicted below.  The SFE factors for condominium, townhouse, and 

multi-family parcels, as derived from relative dwelling unit population density, are also 

shown below.   

  

Page G-5.30Page F-1.38



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 13 

 

Figure 1 – Residential Assessment Factors 

  Total Occupied Persons SFE

Property Type Population Households per Household Factor*

         
Single Family Residential 412,685 140,248 2.94 1.0
Condominium/Townhouse 54,284 19,331 2.81 0.9
Multi-Family Residential 158,004 65,981 2.39 0.8
         

Source:  1990 Census, San Mateo County 
 

The SFE factor for condominium, townhouse, and multi-family parcels is based on the 

ratio of average persons per household for the property type versus the average persons 

per household for a single-family residential home.  Multi-family units are assessed at 

0.80 per unit up to a maximum of 4.0 SFE per parcel (maximum of 5 units multiplied by 

0.80).  Condominium and townhouse parcels are assessed at 0.90 per unit, up to a 

maximum of 4.5 SFEs per development (maximum of 5 units multiplied by 0.90). 

SFE values for commercial and industrial land uses are based on the equivalence of special 

benefit on a land area basis between single-family residential property and the average 

commercial/industrial property.  The average size of a parcel for a single-family home in 

the District is approximately 0.18 acres, and such single-family property has an SFE value 

of 1.0. Using the equivalence of benefit on a land area basis, improved commercial and 

industrial parcels of approximately 0.20 acres or less would also receive an SFE benefit 

factor of 1.0.  Commercial and industrial parcels in excess of a fifth of an acre in size are 

assigned 1.0 SFE per 0.20 acre or portion thereof, and the maximum benefit factor for any 

commercial/industrial parcel is 5.0 SFE. 

Vacant parcels are also benefited from the street tree improvement and maintenance 

program. An example of a benefit is enhancement of the visual appeal that will accrue to 

a vacant parcel from the presence or proximity of the community’s street trees based on 

its future potential use. Undeveloped property also benefits from the installation and 

maintenance of street trees, because if the property is developed during the year, the 

street trees will be available to the developed property.  The relative benefit to vacant 

property is determined to be generally equal to the benefit to a single-family home 

property.  Therefore, vacant property with street tree(s) are assessed 1 SFE. 

Properties without Street Trees  

The special benefit factors conferred on property can be defined by the benefits 

conferred to properties with and without street trees.  The types of benefits conferred to 

all property in the community include protection of views, screening, and resource values 

and enhanced desirability of the property.  A higher level of special benefits is conferred 

directly on parcels with street trees because these parcels obtain additional benefits from 

well-maintained, healthy trees fronting the property.  The types of special benefits that 

Page G-5.31Page F-1.39



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 14 

 

are increased for properties with street trees include enhanced levels of safety, 

desirability, unique proximity, access and views of resources and facilities from healthy 

trees on the property.  Therefore, individual properties without street trees but in close 

proximity to parcels with street trees receive a direct benefit from the street trees and 

should pay 50% of the rate for a similar property with street trees.  Such properties are 

assigned an SFE benefit factor that is 50% of that for a similar property with street trees. 

Assessment Apportionment - Sidewalk Program 

The benefits to property for sidewalks, curbs, gutters and parking strips are closely related 

to a parcel’s proximity to these improvements and the parcel’s proximity to street trees.  

Street trees are the most common cause of sidewalk problems.  Therefore, the highest 

benefit from the proposed sidewalk improvements is to properties with street trees and 

sidewalks, curbs and gutters, or street trees and parking strips and gutters, because 

without the maintenance work, these improvements would degrade more quickly, which 

would affect the parcel’s appearance and safety.  It is estimated that 1/3 of the special 

benefits are conferred to property with street trees and sidewalks or parking strips.  

Another 1/3 of the special benefits are conferred to property with street trees and curbs 

and gutters.  Special benefit factors are also conferred on property without street trees 

or adjoining sidewalk, curb, gutter and/or parking strip improvements that are in close 

proximity to these types of improvements.  It is estimated that the remaining 1/3 of the 

special benefit factors from the Sidewalk Program are conferred to these parcels that are 

in close proximity to the improvements but that do not have improvements directly 

adjacent to their property.   

Consequently, properties with street trees and sidewalks or parking strips and curbs and 

gutters or valley gutters are assigned a benefit factor of 1 SFE.  Properties with street 

trees, curbs and gutters are assigned a benefit factor of 0.67 SFE.  If there are street trees 

but no improvements along the frontage of a parcel, or no street trees on a parcel, its 

benefit is 1/3 or 0.33 SFE. 

Assessment Apportionment - Other Properties 

Improved, publicly owned parcels that are used for residential, commercial or industrial 

purposes are assessed at the rates specified previously.  Other improved public property; 

institutional property and properties used for educational purposes, typically generate 

employees on a less consistent basis than other non-residential parcels.  Moreover, many 

of these parcels provide some degree of on-site amenities that serve to offset some of 

the benefits from the District. Therefore, these parcels, with or without street trees, 

receive minimal benefit and are assessed an SFE factor of 1 for street tree assessments 

and an SFE factor of 1 for sidewalks, curbs and gutter assessments. 

Page G-5.32Page F-1.40



City of Menlo Park 
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 15 

All properties that are specially benefited have been assessed.  Agricultural parcels 

without living units, public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights 

parcels, unimproved open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels 

generally provide recreational, open space and/or scenic benefits to the community.  As 

such, they tend to provide similar benefits as provided by the improvements in the 

District.  Any benefits they would receive from the landscaping maintenance are generally 

offset by the equivalent benefits they provide. Moreover, these parcels typically do not 

generate employees, residents or customers.  Such parcels are, therefore, not specially 

benefited and are not assessed. 

Appeals and Interpretation 

Any property owner who feels that the assessment levied on the subject property is in 

error as a result of incorrect information being used to apply the foregoing method of 

assessment, may file a written appeal with the Public Works Director of the City of Menlo 

Park or his or her designee.  Any such appeal is limited to correction of an assessment 

during the then current or, if before July 1, the upcoming fiscal year.  Upon the filing of 

any such appeal, the Public Works Director or his or her designee will promptly review 

the appeal and any information provided by the property owner.  If the Public Works 

Director or his or her designee finds that the assessment should be modified, the 

appropriate changes shall be made to the assessment roll.  If any such changes are 

approved after the assessment roll has been filed with the County of San Mateo for 

collection, the Public Works Director or his or her designee is authorized to refund to the 

property owner the amount of any approved reduction. Any dispute over the decision of 

the Public Works Director or his or her designee shall be referred to the City Council of 

the City of Menlo Park and the decision of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park shall 

be final.  

Page G-5.33Page F-1.41



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 16 

 

Figure 2 – Tree Maintenance Assessments 

Property Type

   Parcels with Trees Assessment Rate

     Single Family $88.72 (per Parcel)

     R-2 Zone, in use as single family $88.72 (per Parcel)

     Condominium/Townhouse $79.85 (per Unit, $399.24  max. per Project)

     Other Multi-family $70.98 (per Unit, $354.88  max. per Project)

     Commercial $88.72 (per 1/5 acre, $443.60 max. per Project)

     Industrial $88.72 (per 1/5 acre, $443.60 max. per Project)

     Parks, Educational $88.72 (per Parcel)

     Miscellaneous, Other $0.00 (per Parcel)

   Parcels without Trees

     Single Family $44.36 (per Parcel)

     R-2 Zone, in use as single family $44.36 (per Parcel)

     Condominium/Townhouse $39.92 (per Unit, $199.62 max. per Project)

     Other Multi-family $35.49 (per Unit, $177.44 max. per Project)

     Commercial $44.36 (per 1/5 acre, $221.8  max.)

     Industrial $44.36 (per 1/5 acre, $221.8  max.)

     Parks, Educational $44.36 (per Parcel)

     Miscellaneous, Other $0.00 (per Parcel)

2022-23 Assessment Rates

 

Figure 3 – Sidewalk, Curb, Gutter, Parking Strip Assessments 

Property Type

Parcels with Trees Assessment Rate

     Sidewalks, curbs, gutters $47.40 (per Parcel)

     Parking strips and gutters $47.40 (per Parcel)

     Curbs and/or gutters only $31.76 (per Parcel)

     No improvements $15.64 (per Parcel)

     Miscellaneous, Other $0.00 (per Parcel)

Parcels without Trees

     Parcels with or without improvements $15.64 (per Parcel)

     Miscellaneous, Other $0.00 (per Parcel)

2022-23 Assessment Rates

 

Note:  All total combined tree and sidewalk assessment amounts are rounded to the lower even 
penny.   

Page G-5.34Page F-1.42



City of Menlo Park 
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 17 

Assessment 

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2020 the City Council of the City of Menlo Park, County of San 

Mateo, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 

and Article XIIID of the California Constitution (collectively “the Act”), adopted its 

Resolution Initiating Proceedings for the Levy of Assessments within the Landscaping 

Assessment District; 

WHEREAS, said Resolution directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and file 

a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the assessment district and an 

assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels within 

the assessment district, to which Resolution and the description of said proposed 

improvements therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act 

and the order of the City Council of said City of Menlo Park, hereby make the following 

assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said improvements, and the 

costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the assessment district. 

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be 

paid by the Landscaping Assessment District for the fiscal year 2021-22 is generally as 

follows: 

Figure 4 – Summary Cost Estimate 

F.Y. 2022-23

Budget

Street Tree Program 1,039,967.00$   

Street Sweeping 285,669.00$   

Sidewalk Program 550,000.00$   

Incidental Expenses 163,052.00$   

TOTAL BUDGET $2,038,688

Plus:

Projected Fund Balance 174,217.94$   

Less:

City Contribution for General Benefits ($731,505.00)

Contribution from Carry-Over Fund Balances (364,341.56)$   

NET AMOUNT TO ASSESSMENTS 1,117,059.38$   

Page G-5.35Page F-1.43



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 18 

 

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof 

showing the exterior boundaries of said Landscaping Assessment District.  The distinctive 

number of each parcel or lot of land in the said Landscaping Assessment District is its 

Assessor Parcel Number appearing on the Assessment Roll. 

And I do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said 

improvements, including the costs and expenses incidental thereto, upon the parcels and 

lots of land within said Landscaping Assessment District, in accordance with the special 

benefits to be received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more 

particularly set forth in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and 

by reference made a part hereof. 

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Landscaping 

Assessment District in proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or 

lots of land, from said improvements.  

The assessment is subject to an annual adjustment tied to the Engineering News Record 

(ENR) Construction Cost Index for the San Francisco Bay Area, with a maximum annual 

adjustment not to exceed 3%.  Any change in the ENR in excess of 3% shall be cumulatively 

reserved as the “Unused ENR” and shall be used to increase the maximum authorized 

assessment rate in years in which the ENR is less than 3%.  The maximum authorized 

assessment rate is equal to the maximum assessment rate in the first fiscal year the 

assessment was levied adjusted annually by the minimum of 1) 3% or 2) the change in the 

ENR plus any Unused ENR as described above. The initial, maximum assessment rate 

balloted and established in Fiscal Year 1998-99 was $64.28 per single family equivalent 

benefit unit for tree maintenance, and $28.70 per single family equivalent benefit unit for 

sidewalk maintenance. 

Based on the preceding annual adjustments, the maximum assessment rate for Fiscal Year 

2021-22 was $86.14 for tree maintenance and $46.02 for Sidewalk maintenance. The 

change in the ENR from December 2020 to December 2021 was 8.05%. Therefore, the 

maximum authorized assessment rate for Fiscal Year 2022-23 has been increased from 

$121.10 to $124.73 per single family equivalent benefit unit for tree maintenance, and 

from $54.07 to $55.69 per single family equivalent benefit unit for sidewalk maintenance.  

However, the estimate of cost and budget in this Engineer’s Report proposes assessments 

for fiscal year 2022-23 at the rate of $88.72 per single family equivalent benefit unit for 

tree maintenance, which is less than the maximum authorized assessment rate and is a 

3.00% increase over the rate assessed in the previous fiscal year. The proposed 

assessment rate for fiscal year 2022-23 for sidewalk maintenance is $47.40 per single 

family equivalent benefit unit, which is also less than the maximum authorized 

assessment rate and is a 3.00% increase over the rate assessed in the previous fiscal year. 

 

Page G-5.36Page F-1.44



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 19 

 

Property owners in the Assessment District, in an assessment ballot proceeding, 

approved the initial fiscal year benefit assessment for special benefits to their property 

including the ENR adjustment schedule. As a result, the assessment may continue to be 

levied annually and may be adjusted by up to the maximum annual ENR adjustment 

without any additional assessment ballot proceeding. In the event that in future years the 

assessments are levied at a rate less than the maximum authorized assessment rate, the 

assessment rate in a subsequent year may be increased up to the maximum authorized 

assessment rate without any additional assessment ballot proceeding. 

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel 

number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of San Mateo for the fiscal year 

2022-23. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby made to 

the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder of said 

County. 

I hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the 

Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2021-22 for each parcel 

or lot of land within the said Landscaping Assessment District. 

May 16, 2022 

 

 Engineer of Work 

     

 By      

      John W. Bliss, License No. C52091 

 

  

  

Page G-5.37Page F-1.45



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 20 

 

Figure 5 – Engineer’s Cost Estimate, Fiscal Year 2022-23 

 

A. Tree Maintenance 

Salaries & Benefits 409,592.00$     

Operating Expense 44,200.00$       

Fixed Assets & Capital Outlay 251,500.00$     

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 16,000.00$       

Professional Services 318,675.00$     

   (Tree Spraying, Tree Trimming, Misc.)  

Subtotal - Tree Maintenance 1,039,967.00$     

B. Debris Removal 

Salaries & Benefits 74,669.00$       

Street Sweeping Contract 211,000.00$     

Subtotal - Debris Removal 285,669.00$        

C. Sidewalk, Curb, Gutter, Parking Strip Repair/Replacement

Construction Costs 550,000.00$     

Subtotal - S/W,C,G, & PS Repair/Replace 550,000.00$        

Subtotal Tree/Debris/Reforestation/Sidewalk 1,875,636.00$     

D. Incidentals

Indirect Costs & Administration 148,052.00$     

County Collection Fees 15,000.00$       

Subtotal - Incidentals 163,052.00$        

Total Cost 2,038,688.00$     

Fiscal Year 2022-23

CITY OF MENLO PARK LANDSCAPING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE

 

  

Page G-5.38Page F-1.46



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 21 

 

Projected Fund Balance 174,217.94$        

Tree Maintenance Ending Fund Balance (288,317.99)$       

Less General Fund Contribution (341,505.00)$       

Measure M (140,000.00)$       

Sidewalk Fund Ending Balance (76,023.57)$         

Less General Fund CIP Contribution to Sidewalk Fund (250,000.00)$       

Net to Assessment 1,117,059.38$     

Revenue

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units - Trees 8,950.23

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units - Sidewalks 6,814.24

2022-23 2021-22

Assessment Rate for Tree Fund/ SFE $88.72 $86.15

Assessment Rate for Sidewalk Fund/ SFE $47.40 $46.02

 

Revenue for Tree Fund  $794,064.41

Revenue for Sidewalk Fund $322,994.98

Total Revenue * $1,117,059.38

assessments are rounded down to the even penny.

* Total revenue is slightly  less than SFEs times the assessment rate because all combined 

Engineer's Cost Estimate, Fiscal Year 2022-32 (continued)

  

Page G-5.39Page F-1.47



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 22 

 

Assessment Diagram 

The Landscaping Assessment District includes all properties within the boundaries of the 

City of Menlo Park.  

The boundaries of the Landscaping Assessment District are displayed on the following 

Assessment Diagram.   

 

 

Page G-5.40Page F-1.48



City of Menlo Park 
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 23 

Page G-5.41Page F-1.49



City of Menlo Park   
Landscaping Assessment District 
Engineer’s Report, FY 2022-23 

Page 24  

 

Appendix A – Assessment Roll, FY 2022-23 

Reference is hereby made to the Assessment Roll in and for the assessment proceedings 

on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, as the Assessment Roll is 

too voluminous to be bound with this Engineer's Report. 

Page G-5.42Page F-1.50



LANDSCAPE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
Public Hearing

F1-PRESENTATION



 Funds collected are used for maintenance of 
– City street trees
– sidewalks damaged due to City street trees 
– street sweeping

 District established in 1983 and updated in 1990
 Engineer’s Report proposes 

– 3% increase for Tree maintenance ($2.57 per Single Family Equivalent)
– 3% increase for Sidewalk maintenance ($1.38 per Single Family Equivalent)

 Annual action required by City to continue collection of 
assessments

LANDSCAPE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

2

CDM8



Slide 2

CDM8 The CC can also modify the project - deny the appeal and modify the Planning Commission approval
Chow, Deanna M, 8/26/2018



PROCESS

3

3 Steps Date
City Council initiated the LAD proceedings and 
adopted a resolution describing the 
improvements and directing preparation of the 
engineer’s report

March 8, 2022

City Council adopted 1) a resolution giving 
preliminary approval of the engineer’s report 
and 2) a resolution of intent to order the levy 
and collection of assessments

May 24, 2022

City Council holds a public hearing to consider
resolution overruling protests and ordering the 
levy and collection of assessments

June 28, 2022



THANK YOU



City Manager's Office 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

STAFF REPORT 

City Council  
Meeting Date:  6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number: 22-121-CC

Public Hearing: Certificate of sufficiency of the petition for the 
proposed initiative measure entitled "A Citizen-
Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land 
Use Element of the General Plan to Prohibit the City 
Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-
Designating or Re-Zoning Certain Properties 
Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached 
Homes”  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council accept the certification of the sufficiency of the petition for the 
proposed initiative measure entitled "A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use 
Element of the General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or 
Re-Zoning Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached Homes.” 

Policy Issues 
Pursuant to California Elections Code section 9114, this report constitutes the City Election Official’s 
certification of the results of the examination of the petition for the proposed initiative measure entitled "A 
Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to Prohibit the 
City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or Re-Zoning Certain Properties Designated and 
Zoned for Single Family Detached Homes” (“Proposed Initiative.”)  The results of the examination of the 
petition from the County of San Mateo Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder’s Office is attached hereto as 
Attachment A. The city clerk, acting as the City’s Elections Official, has determined that the proposed 
initiative qualifies for the ballot. 

Background 
On April 15, 2022, initiative proponents Timothy Yaeger and Nicole Chessari submitted a Notice of Intent to 
Circulate a Petition with the City’s Elections Official with a request that a ballot title and summary be 
prepared for the measure. In response, a Ballot Title and Summary was prepared by the city attorney 
pursuant to Elections Code section 9203 (Attachment B.)  The Ballot Title and Summary was submitted it to 
the proponents April 30, 2022. The proponents published the Notice of Intent in The Examiner – Redwood 
City Tribune May 4, 2022, pursuant to Elections Code section 9205 and filed an Affidavit of Publication with 
the city clerk May 10, 2022, pursuant to Elections Code section 9206. 

The Petition regarding the Proposed Initiative was filed with the city clerk May 24, 2022, bearing 2,976 
unverified signatures. Per the Elections Code, the city clerk’s office, in conjunction with the County of San 
Mateo’s Office of the Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder & Elections (“County”), examined the signatures the 
proponents had collected to verify the sufficiency of the Petition. 

AGENDA ITEM F-2

Page F-2.1



Staff Report #: 22-121-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

By letter dated June 15, 2022, the County notified the City that “of the 2,976 signatures submitted” in 
support of the Proposed Initiative, “2,369 were checked and 2,011 signatures were verified as valid.” The 
2,011 verified signatures exceed the minimum of 1,984 signatures required to qualify the Proposed Initiative 
for the ballot (Attachment A.)   
 

Analysis 
Because the Petition has been signed by the requisite number of voters, the city clerk has determined that 
the Proposed Initiative qualifies for the ballot.  
 
Because the Proposed Initiative qualifies for the ballot, Elections Code section 9215 requires the City 
Council to take one of the following three actions, which are described in greater detail in Agenda Item No. 
F-3.  
 
A. Adopt the ordinance, without alteration, at the regular meeting at which the certification of the petition is 

presented, or within 10 days after it is presented; or 
B. Submit the ordinance, without alteration, to the voters pursuant to Elections Code section 1405; or 
C. Order a report pursuant to Elections Code section 9212 at the regular meeting at which the certification 

of the petition is presented. When the report is presented to the Council, the Council is required to either 
adopt the ordinance within 10 days or order an election pursuant to subdivision (b.) 

 
Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact on City resources. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it is an organizational structure change that will not result in any 
direct or indirect physical change in the environment.  

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Certificate of sufficiency of the petition for the Proposed Initiative 
B. City Attorney Ballot Title and Summary 

 
Report prepared by: 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Nira F. Doherty, City Attorney 

Page F-2.2



ATTACHMENT A

Page F-2.3



Petition Result Breakdown

Menlo Park Neighborhood Protection and General Plan Consistency Initiative

2022 Menlo Park Neighborhood Protection Plan

RESULT ABBR RESULT DESCRIPTION

Sigs Invalid

Sample Size

Sigs Checked

Sigs Valid

 607Sigs Not Checked

 84.9

 15.1

 %

 %

 2,011

 2,369

 2,976

 2,976Raw Count

 358  %

 %

 %

Percent of Sigs 

Checked

Percent of  

Sample Size

 20.4

 67.6

 12.0

Non-duplicate Invalids

Duplicated  2

 356  %

 %

 %

 % 0.1 0.1

 12.0 15.0

Signatures Required  1984

Approved Approved  2,011  84.9 %

1 - NotReg Not Registered  156  6.6 %

7 - RegDiffAdd Registered at a Different Address  21  0.9 %

3 - OutOfDist Out of District  97  4.1 %

2 - CantID Cannot Identify  13  0.5 %

15 - Cancelled Cancelled Status  2  0.1 %

11 - Duplicate Signed more than once  2  0.1 %

9 - NoSig No Signature  2  0.1 %

6 - Sig No Match Signatures Don't Match  20  0.8 %

14 - Reg Late Registered Late  2  0.1 %

13 - NoResAdd No Residence Address Given  5  0.2 %

12 - Wrong County Page Filed in Wrong County  1  0.0 %

EC 100 Address Printed by Other Than Voter  36  1.5 %

13 - Incomp Add Incomplete Address  1  0.0 %

STATISTICS SUMMARY Value % Raw % Req

Pages Processed

Total Checked

Uncorrected Valid

Duplicate Adjustment

Estimated Valid

 108 

 2369 

 0 

 2011 

 2011 

 100.0  %

 67.6

 79.6

 67.6

 %

 %

 %

 119.4 

 101.4 

 101.4 

 %

 %

 %

Min Required (95%):

Min Required to pass 

Based on Sample (110%):

 1884.8 

 2182.4 

PCMR012 - Petition Result Breakdown

Printed:  6/23/2022  2:55:36PM
Page 1 of 1Page F-2.4



City of Menlo Park  701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Clerk's Office 

April 29, 2022 

SENT VIA E-MAIL AND NEXT DAY DELIVERY 

Timothy Newton Yaeger 
387 Hedge Road 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
tim@yaegerhaus.com 

Nicole Chessari 
1008 Greenwood Drive 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
nicole.chessari@gmail.com 
Empty 
RE: Ballot Title and Summary 
Empty 
Dear Mr. Yaeger and Ms. Chessari, 

Pursuant to Elections Code section 9203, attached please find the City Attorney’s 
ballot title and summary for the proposed measure that was submitted by you on April 
15, 2022.   

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Judi A. Herren 
City Clerk 
City of Menlo Park 

jaherren@menlopark.org 
650-330-6621

ATTACHMENT B

Page F-2.5



 

INITIATIVE MEASURE TO BE DIRECTLY SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS 

 

The City Attorney has prepared the following title and summary of the chief purpose and points 

of the proposed measure: 

 

Title 

 

A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to 

Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or Re-Zoning Certain 

Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached Homes. 

 

Summary 

 

Through the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park has 

designated certain property in the City of Menlo Park for single family detached homes.  Under 

the General Plan, many such properties have a “Very Low Density Residential” or “Low Density 

Residential” land use designation. 

 

The Citizen-Sponsored Initiative proposes an amendment to the Land Use Element of the 

General Plan that would prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from (1) changing 

the General Plan designation of properties that were designated Very Low Density Residential or 

Low Density Residential as of April 15, 2022; and (2) re-zoning properties that were zoned 

Residential Estate (R-E), Residential Estate Suburban (R-E-S), Single Family Suburban 

Residential (R-1-S), Single Family Suburban Residential (Felton Gables) (R-1-S (FG)), Single 

Family Urban Residential (R-1-U), or Single-Family Urban Residential (Lorelei Manor) (R-1-U 

(LM)) as of April 15, 2022. 

 

Under the Citizen-Sponsored Initiative, properties designated Very Low Density Residential or 

Low Density Residential, and properties zoned R-E, R-E-S, R-1-S, R-1-S (FG), R-1-U, or R-1-U 

(LM) as of April 15, 2022 could only be re-designated or re-zoned for other uses or denser 

residential uses by a majority vote of the people of the City of Menlo Park at a regular election. 

 

The “Very Low Density Residential” designation provides for single family detached homes, 

secondary dwelling units, public and quasi-public uses, and similar and compatible uses at a 

maximum density of 2.9 units per acre.  Properties with a “Very Low Density Residential” 

designation are zoned Residential Estate (R-E) or Residential Estate Suburban (R-E-S). 

 

The “Low Density Residential” designation provides for single family detached homes, 

secondary dwelling units, public and quasi-public uses, and similar and compatible uses at a 

maximum density of 8.9 units per acre.  Properties with a “Low Density Residential” designation 

are zoned Single Family Suburban Residential (R-1-S), Single Family Suburban Residential 

(Felton Gables) (R-1-S (FG)), Single Family Urban Residential (R-1-U), or Single Family Urban 

Residential (Lorelei Manor) (R-1-U (LM)). 

 

Most of the property in the City of Menlo Park designated Very Low Density Residential or Low 

Density Residential is improved with single family homes.  However, certain properties with 

Page F-2.6



 

these land use designations currently have other uses (such as public utilities, private schools, 

churches, child care centers, and a fire station) or are unimproved. 

 

The Citizen-Sponsored Initiative only impacts properties designated Very Low Density 

Residential or Low Density Residential, and properties zoned R-E, R-E-S, R-1-S, R-1-S (FG), R-

1-U, and R-1-U (LM) as of April 15, 2022.  It does not impact the City Council’s authority to re-

designate or re-zone properties that had other designations and zoning on April 15, 2022. 

Page F-2.7



City Attorney 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-129-CC 
 
Public Hearing:  Determination of action, pursuant to Elections Code 

Section 9215, regarding the proposed initiative 
measure entitled “A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative 
Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the 
General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City 
of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or Re-Zoning 
Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single 
Family Detached Homes”  

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the City Council take one of the following actions as required by California Elections 
Code section 9215: 
A. Adopt an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park adopting the citizen sponsored initiative 

measure to amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to prohibit the City Council of the City of 
Menlo Park from re-designating or re-zoning certain properties designated and zoned for single family 
detached homes (Attachment A); or 

B. Adopt a resolution of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park adopting the citizen sponsored initiative 
measure to amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to prohibit the City Council of the City of 
Menlo Park from re-designating or re-zoning certain properties designated and zoned for single family 
detached homes; establishing the schedule for submission of ballot arguments; and authorizing and 
requesting the County of San Mateo conduct the election (Attachment B); or 

C. Order a report pursuant to Elections Code section 9212 at the regular meeting at which the certification 
of the petition is presented. When the report is presented to the City Council, the City Council is required 
to either adopt the ordinance within 10 days or order an election pursuant to subdivision (b.) 

 

Background 
Through the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park has designated 
certain property in the City of Menlo Park for single family detached homes. Under the General Plan, many 
such properties have a “Very Low Density Residential” or “Low Density Residential” land use designation. 
 
The Citizen-Sponsored Initiative proposes an amendment to the Land Use Element of the General Plan that 
would prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from (1) changing the General Plan designation of 
properties that were designated Very Low Density Residential or Low Density Residential as of April 15, 
2022; and (2) re-zoning properties that were zoned Residential Estate (R-E), Residential Estate Suburban 
(R-E-S), Single Family Suburban Residential (R-1-S), Single Family Suburban Residential (Felton Gables) 
(R-1-S (FG), Single Family Urban Residential (R-1-U), or Single-Family Urban Residential (Lorelei Manor) 
(R-1-U (LM) as of April 15, 2022. 
 
Under the Citizen-Sponsored Initiative, properties designated Very Low Density Residential or Low Density 
Residential, and properties zoned R-E, R-E-S, R-1-S, R-1-S (FG), R-1-U or R-1-U (LM) as of April 15, 2022, 

AGENDA ITEM F-3

Page F-3.1



Staff Report #: 22-129-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

could only be re-designated or re-zoned for other uses or denser residential uses by a majority vote of the 
people of the City of Menlo Park at a regular election. 
 
The “Very Low Density Residential” designation provides for single family detached homes, secondary 
dwelling units, public and quasi-public uses, and similar and compatible uses at a maximum density of 2.9 
units per acre. Properties with a “Very Low Density Residential” designation are zoned Residential Estate 
(R-E) or Residential Estate Suburban (R-E-S.) 
 
The “Low Density Residential” designation provides for single family detached homes, secondary dwelling 
units, public and quasi-public uses, and similar and compatible uses at a maximum density of 8.9 units per 
acre. Properties with a “Low Density Residential” designation are zoned Single Family Suburban 
Residential (R-1-S), Single Family Suburban Residential (Felton Gables) (R-1-S (FG), Single Family Urban 
Residential (R-1-U), or Single Family Urban Residential (Lorelei Manor) (R-1-U (LM.) 
 
Most of the property in the City of Menlo Park designated Very Low Density Residential or Low Density 
Residential is improved with single family homes. However, certain properties with these land use 
designations currently have other uses (such as public utilities, private schools, churches, child care centers 
and a fire station) or are unimproved. 
 
The Citizen-Sponsored Initiative only impacts properties designated Very Low Density Residential or Low 
Density Residential, and properties zoned R-E, R-E-S, R-1-S, R-1-S (FG), R-1-U and R-1-U (LM) as of April 
15, 2022. It does not impact the City Council’s authority to re-designate or re-zone properties that had other 
designations and zoning April 15, 2022. 
 

Analysis 
On April 15, 2022, the petition for the Proposed Initiative was filed with the city clerk of the City of Menlo 
Park (Elections Code § 9208) within the required time following the publication date. The city clerk 
determined that the proponents submitted 2,011 valid signatures, which exceeded the minimum number of 
1,984 signatures required. 
 
The city clerk initiated the review of the petition, according to required Election Code provisions, including 
format, content, circulation dates and circulator’s declaration. 
 
Signature verification is performed by the County of San Mateo, Office of the Assessor-County Clerk-
Recorder and Elections (County.)  Having completed the comprehensive review of signatures, by letter 
dated July 15, 2022, the County signed a certification on sufficiency and notified the proponents of the 
certification. 
 
Based on the validation of the petition format and content (Elections Code § 9239) along with the signature 
verification (Elections Code §§ 9215, 9240), the city clerk certified the petition as sufficient to qualify as an 
initiative petition for the ballot. 
 
Following certification of the signatures, Elections Code sections 9211, 9114, and 9115 require that the 
petition be brought to the City Council at the City Council’s next regular meeting. 
 
Elections Code Section 9215 requires that the City Council choose from one of the following courses of 
action: 
A. Adopt the ordinance, without alteration, at the regular meeting at which the certification of the petition is 

presented, or within 10 days after it is presented; or 

Page F-3.2



Staff Report #: 22-129-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

B. Submit the ordinance, without alteration, to the voters pursuant to Elections Code section 1405; or 
C. Order a report pursuant to Elections Code section 9212 at the regular meeting at which the certification 

of the petition is presented. When the report is presented to the City Council, the City Council is required 
to either adopt the ordinance within 10 days or order an election pursuant to subdivision (b.) 

 
Each of these actions is discussed in greater detail below: 
 
Adopt the ordinance 
If the City Council proceeds with adopting the proposed ordinance without alteration (Attachment A), it 
would be considered adopted June 28, 2022, and would be effective 30 days from this meeting date. Per 
Elections Code section 9217, “No ordinance that is either proposed by initiative petition and adopted by the 
vote of the legislative body of the city without submission to the voters, or adopted by the voters, shall be 
repealed or amended except by a vote of the people, unless provision is otherwise made in the original 
ordinance.” If the City Council elects this option, 30 days following adoption of the ordinance, the General 
Plan would be amended in the manner set forth in the Proposed Initiative. 
 
Submit ordinance to the voters 
If the City Council submits the ordinance to the voters, the City is required to place the measure on the 
City’s next regular election which would be November 8, 2022 (Elections Code §§ 9215, 1405(a.)  
(Attachment B.)  The Elections Code also authorizes the City Council to schedule a special election to 
submit an initiative measure to the voters in some circumstances. However, the City Council does not have 
that option in this case because there are no eligible special election dates between now and the November 
8, 2022 general election.  
 
The City of Menlo Park, together with many other jurisdictions in the County of San Mateo, requests election 
services from the County of San Mateo to consolidate election costs. In so doing, the City realizes 
significant savings in personnel time and costs associated with running a municipal election. However, to 
have the County assist with the City’s municipal election, the Elections Code requires that the City Council 
request such assistance via resolution.  
 
The resolution attached as Attachment B orders the Proposed Initiative submitted to the voters at the 
November 8, 2022 general election, and requests that the County assist with and conduct the election. The 
resolution also establishes the following ballot language to be submitted to the voters: 
 

 
Shall the measure, which prohibits the City Council of the 
City of Menlo Park from re-zoning or re-designating 
certain properties that were zoned and designated for 
single family detached homes as of April 15, 2022, be 
adopted? 
 

 
YES 
 
 
NO 

 
If the City Council elects this option, the ballot language, above, along with the complete text of the 
Proposed Initiative would be placed on the November 8, 2022 ballot. This measure will require the approval 
of a majority vote of the City of Menlo Park voters voting on the measure to become effective. If it is 
approved the measure would become effective ten (10) days following the date the vote is declared by the 
City Council in accordance with Elections Code section 9217. 
 
 

Page F-3.3



Staff Report #: 22-129-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Order a report 
The City Council also has the option to order a report pursuant to Elections Code section 9212 that 
provides: 
A. During the circulation of the petition, or before taking either action described in subdivisions (a) and (b) 

of Section 9215 (i.e., the two options above), the legislative body may refer the proposed initiative 
measure to a city agency or agencies for a report on any or all of the following: 
1. Its fiscal impact. 
2. Its effect on the internal consistency of the city’s general and specific plans, including the housing 

element, the consistency between planning and zoning, and the limitations on city actions under 
Section 65008 of the Government Code and Chapters 4.2 (commencing with Section 65913) and 
4.3 (commencing with Section 65915) of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code. 

3. Its effect on the use of land, the impact on the availability and location of housing, and the ability of 
the city to meet its regional housing needs. 

4. Its impact on funding for infrastructure of all types, including, but not limited to, transportation, 
schools, parks and open space. The report may also discuss whether the measure would be likely to 
result in increased infrastructure costs or savings, including the costs of infrastructure maintenance, 
to current residents and businesses. 

5. Its impact on the community’s ability to attract and retain business and employment. 
6. Its impact on the uses of vacant parcels of land. 
7. Its impact on agricultural lands, open space, traffic congestion, existing business districts, and 

developed areas designated for revitalization. 
8. Any other matters the legislative body requests to be in the report. 

B. The report shall be presented to the legislative body within the time prescribed by the legislative body, 
but no later than 30 days after the elections official certifies to the legislative body the sufficiency of the 
petition. 

 
If the City Council orders the report pursuant to Elections Code section 9212, the report would need to be 
presented to the City Council no later than July 28, 2022. Within 10 days of the report being presented to 
the City Council, the City Council is required to either adopt the ordinance (Attachment A) or order an 
election (Attachment B.) 
   
The Elections Code section 9212 report could be prepared by City staff or City consultants. In 2014, the City 
Council authorized $150,000 for the report on the Specific Plan ballot measure. Currently, there is no 
allocation in the proposed FY 2022-23 budget for such consultant services. Should the City Council wish to 
provide direction to the city manager regarding engagement of such consultant services, the City Council 
could recommend an amendment to the FY 2022-23 budget which the City Council will be considering and 
voting on at the June 28, 2022, City Council meeting. Due to the statutory deadline to return with the report 
within 30 days, staff does not anticipate returning to City Council with a request for authorization to engage 
a consultant and anticipates that the retention of a consultant would be within the city manager’s spending 
authority. Staff anticipates that even if a consultant is utilized to assist in the drafting of the report, staff, the 
city manager’s office, and the city attorney’s office will assist in the drafting and/or review of the report. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
According to the San Mateo County Chief Elections Officer and Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder for 
election services, the estimated cost of consolidated election services for one ballot measure is 
approximately between $36,000 and $43,200. The estimated cost of consolidated election services for the 
three City Council seats and one ballot measure is approximately between $72,300 and $86,800. Funds are 
included in the proposed fiscal year 2022-23 budget.  

Page F-3.4



Staff Report #: 22-129-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Environmental Review 
The proposed actions are not projects under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines 
Section 15378 (b)(3.) A project under CEQA does not include “[t]he submittal of proposals to a vote of the 
people of the state or a particular community that does not involve a public agency sponsored initiative.” 
(Stein v. City of Santa Monica (1980) 110 Cal. App.3d 458; Friends of Sierra Madre v. City of Sierra Madre 
(2001) 25 Cal. 4th 165.)  

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park Adopting the Citizen Sponsored Initiative 

Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of 
Menlo Park from re-designating or re-zoning certain properties designated and zoned for single family 
detached homes 

B. A resolution of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park Adopting the citizen sponsored initiative 
measure to amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to prohibit the City Council of the City of 
Menlo Park from re-designating or re-zoning certain properties designated and zoned for Single family 
detached homes; establishing the schedule for submission of ballot arguments; and authorizing and 
requesting the County of San Mateo conduct the election 

 
Report prepared by: 
Nira F. Doherty, City Attorney 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page F-3.5



 

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
ADOPTING THE CITIZEN-SPONSORED INITIATIVE MEASURE TO AMEND 
THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE GENERAL PLAN TO PROHIBIT THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK FROM RE-DESIGNATING OR RE-
ZONING CERTAIN PROPERTIES DESIGNATED AND ZONED FOR SINGLE 
FAMILY DETACHED HOMES 
 

WHEREAS, on April 15, 2022, a Notice of Intent to Circulate a Petition was filed with the City’s 
Elections Official with a request that a title and summary be prepared for the measure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney provided a title and summary for the proposed Initiative to the 
proponents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Petition regarding the Initiative was filed with the Election’s Official on May 24, 
2022, bearing 2,976 unverified signatures; and 
 
WHEREAS, to qualify for the ballot, proponents were required to obtain 1,984 valid signatures 
on the Petition; that number representing ten percent (10%) of the registered voters of the City; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the County Elections Division has examined the records of voter registration and has 
certified that the Petition contains more than the requisite number of valid signatures to qualify for 
election; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Elections Official (City Clerk) certified the sufficiency of the signatures on 
June 28, 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, having obtained sufficient signatures, Elections Code section 9215 provides that the 
City Council is required to either (1) adopt the ordinance, without alteration, at the meeting at 
which the certification of the petition is presented (June 28, 2022), or within 10 days after it is 
presented, (2) submit the ordinance, without alteration, to the voters, pursuant to Elections Code 
section 1405, or (3) order a report pursuant to Elections Code section 9212; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park desires to adopt the Initiative entitled “A 
Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan to 
Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or Re-Zoning Certain 
Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached Homes.”  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park does 
hereby adopt the Initiative entitled “A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land 
Use Element of the General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-
Designating or Re-Zoning Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached 
Homes,” which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park does hereby direct 
that the City of Menlo Park General Plan be amended as set forth in the text of the Initiative 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

Page F-3.6



 

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park was duly and regularly passed 
and adopted at a meeting by said City Council on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the 
following votes: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of __ 2022.   
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________ 
Betsy Nash, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
Exhibits: 
A. Text of the measure 

Page F-3.7



INITIATIVE MEASURE TO BE DIRECTLY SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS 

The people of the City of Menlo Park do ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1. Title. 

A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the 
General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-
Designating or Re-Zoning Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family 
Detached Homes. 

SECTION 2. Findings and Purpose. 

A. Findings. The people of the City of Menlo Park ("City") find and declare the following:

1. Menlo Park is a vibrant city that is prized for its livable residential neighborhoods,
active commercial districts, and hub of investment and scientific innovation.

2. The City's General Plan notes that the "existing pattern of land use in Menlo Park
... is highly valued by the community." Accordingly, the General Plan designates certain
areas of the City for Very Low Density and Low Density Residential and this is an
important part of the City's existing pattern of land use.

3. The Land Use Element of the City's General Plan is organized around nine (9)
"Guiding Principles." These Guiding Principles were established by the Menlo Park
community to "describe the kind of place that community members want Menlo Park to
be." Those principles include "protecting the character of residential neighborhoods."
Guiding Principle 7-"Complete Neighborhoods and Commercial Corridors"-provides
that "Menlo Park neighborhoods are complete communities, featuring well integrated and
designed development along vibrant commercial corridors with a live-work-play mix of
community-focused businesses that conveniently serve adjacent neighborhoods while
respecting their residential character."

4. The People of Menlo Park further express their strong desire that the City,pursue
opportunities to develop badly-needed housing, including affordable housing, that is
consistent with the residential character of these neighborhoods (in compliance with any
applicable, controlling state law requirements and mandates, which may allow for
multiple units of low-density housing on lots with "single family" zoning), rather than
converting residential properties in these neighborhoods to different uses such as
industrial, commercial, office, mixed use, or high-density residential, which would create
traffic and otherwise strain the infrastructure of existing neighborhoods that were
designated as low density, residential-only uses.

5. Accordingly, the people of the City of Menlo Park desire to amend the General
Plan to enact new policies to ensure that, as the City continues to grow and attract new
industry, businesses, and residents, new development remains consistent the General
Plan's stated goal of protecting the existing pattern of land use in the City and the
character of its existing residential neighborhoods.

6. This Initiative will only impact those properties that are designated in the City's
General Plan as Very Low Density Residential or Low Density Residential, and/ or zoned
with a corresponding zoning designation, as of April 15, 2022. It will not impact
properties that are not designated, as of April 15, 2022, Very Low Density Residential or
Low Density Residential and/or zoned with a corresponding zoning designation. The
relevant very low and low density residential land use designations are provided in
Section 3, below, and the relevant very low and low density residential zoning
designations are attached hereto for informational purposes as Exhibit B. In order to
illustrate the location of properties in the City currently assigned these very low and low
density residential zoning designations, a map showing the City's zoning, as depicted on

1 

EXHIBIT A

Page F-3.8



Page F-3.9



Page F-3.10



Page F-3.11



Page F-3.12



Page F-3.13



Page F-3.14



Page F-3.15



Page F-3.16



Page F-3.17



Page F-3.18



Page F-3.19



Page F-3.20



Page F-3.21



Page F-3.22



Page F-3.23



Page F-3.24



Page F-3.25



Page F-3.26



Page F-3.27



 

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
ORDERING THE SUBMISSION TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE CITY 
OF MENLO PARK A CITIZEN-SPONSORED INITIATIVE MEASURE TO 
AMEND THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE GENERAL PLAN TO PROHIBIT 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK FROM RE-
DESIGNATING OR RE-ZONING CERTAIN PROPERTIES DESIGNATED AND 
ZONED FOR SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED HOMES, AT THE CONSOLIDATED 
GENERAL ELECTION ON TUESDAY NOVEMBER 8, 2022; ESTABLISHING 
THE SCHEDULE FOR SUBMISSION OF BALLOT ARGUMENTS; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND REQUESTING THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO CONDUCT 
THE ELECTION 

 
WHEREAS, on April 15, 2022, a Notice of Intent to Circulate a Petition was filed with the City’s 
Elections Official with a request that a title and summary be prepared for the measure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Attorney provided a title and summary for the proposed Initiative to the 
proponents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Petition regarding the Initiative was filed with the Election’s Official on May 24, 
2022 bearing 2,976 unverified signatures; and 
 
WHEREAS, to qualify for the ballot, proponents were required to obtain 1,984 valid signatures 
on the Petition; that number representing ten percent (10%) of the registered voters of the City; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the County Elections Division has examined the records of voter registration and 
has certified that the Petition contains more than the requisite number of valid signatures to 
qualify for election; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Elections Official (City Clerk) certified the sufficiency of the signatures on 
June 28, 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, Elections Code section 9215 provides that the City Council is required to either 
request a report on the proposed ordinance, submit the proposed ordinance to the voters at an 
election, or adopt the proposed ordinance without alteration; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park desires to submit the Initiative to the 
voters at the general election to be held on November 8, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to consolidate the general municipal election for the 
Initiative described herein with the Statewide General Election to be held on November 8, 2022.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park finds 
the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by reference into 
this Resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: 
 
Section 1. Call for Election.  That pursuant to the requirements of the California Elections 

Page F-3.28



 

Code, Sections 306, 9215, and 9222, there is called and ordered to be held in the City of Menlo 
park, a regular municipal election for the purpose of submitting to the voters of the City of Menlo 
park a citizen initiative entitled “A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use 
Element of the General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-
Designating or Re-Zoning Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached 
Homes.”  As required by Elections Code section 13247, the abbreviated form of the initiative to 
appear on the ballot is specified below in Section 2 of this Resolution.  The voter initiative shall 
be entitled “A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the 
General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-Designating or Re-
Zoning Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family Detached Homes.”  The 
City’s designated elections official is hereby authorized and directed to make any changes to 
the proposition, text of the ballot label below or this resolution as required to conform to any 
requirements of law.    
 
Section 2.  Ballot Language.  The following question shall be submitted to the voters on the 
ballot: 
 

 
Shall the measure, which prohibits the City Council of the City 
of Menlo Park from re-zoning or re-designating certain 
properties that were zoned and designated for single family 
detached homes as of April 15, 2022, be adopted? 
 

 
YES 
 
 
NO 

 
This question requires the approval of a majority vote of the City of Menlo Park voters voting on 
the measure at the election to become effective. If the Initiative is so approved by the City of 
Menlo Park voters, then the Ordinance attached hereto as Exhibit A shall become effective ten 
(10) days following the date the vote is declared by the City Council in accordance with 
Elections Code section 9217. 
 
Section 3. Text of Measure. The complete text of the Measure to be submitted to the voters 
for approval is attached to this resolution as Exhibit A. The text of the measure shall be printed 
in the ballot materials and be available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s office and on the 
City’s website at www.menlopark.org. 
 
Section 4. Publication of Measure. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the 
measure to be published once in the official newspaper of the City of Menlo Park, in accordance 
with of the California Elections Code section 12111 and California Government Code section 
6061. 
 
Section 5. Request to Consolidate and Conduct Election and Canvass Returns. 

 
(a) Pursuant to Elections Code commencing with Section 10400, the City Council hereby 
requests, consents, and agrees that the County of San Mateo shall take all actions which are 
necessary or appropriate in connection with the election, including, but not limited to, printing 
and mailing sample ballots, arguments and applications for absentee ballots, canvassing 
election returns and certifying the results of the election to the City Council. Pursuant to 
Elections Code Section 10002, the Board of Supervisors of San Mateo County is requested to 
permit the Registrar of Voters to render all services specified by Elections Code Section 10418 
relating to the election. The City hereby agrees to reimburse San Mateo County in full for any 
services performed by each for the City upon presentation of an invoice to the City. 

Page F-3.29



 

 
(b) The election on the Initiative shall be held and conducted, the voters canvassed and the 
returns made, and the results ascertained and determined as provided herein. The election shall 
be held in accordance with the Elections Code of the State of California.  As required by 
Elections Code section 10403, the City of Menlo Park acknowledges that the consolidated 
election will be held and conducted in the manner prescribed in Section 10418 of the Elections 
Code. 

 
(c) The election on the Initiative shall be held in the City of Menlo Park in the County of San 
Mateo on November 8, 2022, as required by law, and the Board of Supervisors of San Mateo 
County is authorized to canvass the returns of the election with respect to the votes cast in the 
City of Menlo Park and certify the results to the City Council of the City of Menlo Park. 

 
(d) At the next regular meeting of the City Council of the City Menlo Park occurring after the 
returns of the election for the Initiative have been canvassed and the results have been certified 
to the City Council, or at a special meeting called for such purpose if required by law, the City 
Council shall cause to be entered in its minutes a statement of the results of the election.   
 
Section 6. Submission of Ballot Arguments.  The City Council hereby adopts provisions for 
the filing of ballot arguments and rebuttal arguments for the Initiative set forth in California 
Elections Code sections 9282 et seq.  All arguments for and against the measure shall be filed 
with the City Clerk pursuant to the timelines set forth in the County of San Mateo’s Election 
Calendar for the November 8, 2022 General Election which is attached hereto as Exhibit B.  All 
arguments for and against the measure shall be signed, with printed name(s) and signature(s) 
of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an organization, the name of the 
organization, and the printed name and signature of at least one of its principal officers who is 
the author of the argument. 
 
Section 7. Impartial Analysis.  In accordance with California Elections Code section 9280, 
the City Council directs the City Clerk to transmit a copy of the Initiative to the City Attorney, 
who shall prepare an impartial analysis showing the effect of the measure on the existing law 
and the operation of the measure.  The City Attorney’s impartial analysis may not exceed 500 
words. 
 
Section 8. Services of City Clerk. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps necessary to place the measure on the ballot, including giving further or additional 
notice of the election as required by law, and to cause the ordinance or measure to be printed. 
A copy of the ordinance or measure shall be made available to any voter upon request.  As 
required by Elections Code section 12111, the City Clerk shall cause a synopsis of the measure 
to be published in a newspaper of general circulation at least one time not later than one week 
before the November 8, 2022 election.  The notice shall be headed “Measure to Be Voted On” 
and be in the form described in Elections Code section 12111.   

 
Section 9. Canvass Returns of the Election.  The San Mateo County Elections Department 
is hereby authorized to canvass the returns of the election, including this ballot measure.  

 
Section 10. Filing of Copy of Resolution.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified 
copy of this Resolution with the Board of Supervisors and the Election Department of the 
County of San Mateo 
 
Section 11. Election Held Pursuant to Law.  In all particulars not recited in this resolution, the 

Page F-3.30



 

election shall be held and conducted as provided by law for holding municipal elections.  
 
Section 12.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing City Council resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting of said 
City Council on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:  

 
NOES:  

  
ABSENT:  

  
ABSTAIN:  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 

 
 

  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
Exhibits: 
A. Text of the measure 
B. County elections calendar 
 

Page F-3.31



INITIATIVE MEASURE TO BE DIRECTLY SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS 

The people of the City of Menlo Park do ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1. Title. 

A Citizen-Sponsored Initiative Measure to Amend the Land Use Element of the 
General Plan to Prohibit the City Council of the City of Menlo Park from Re-
Designating or Re-Zoning Certain Properties Designated and Zoned for Single Family 
Detached Homes. 

SECTION 2. Findings and Purpose. 

A. Findings. The people of the City of Menlo Park ("City") find and declare the following:

1. Menlo Park is a vibrant city that is prized for its livable residential neighborhoods,
active commercial districts, and hub of investment and scientific innovation.

2. The City's General Plan notes that the "existing pattern of land use in Menlo Park
... is highly valued by the community." Accordingly, the General Plan designates certain
areas of the City for Very Low Density and Low Density Residential and this is an
important part of the City's existing pattern of land use.

3. The Land Use Element of the City's General Plan is organized around nine (9)
"Guiding Principles." These Guiding Principles were established by the Menlo Park
community to "describe the kind of place that community members want Menlo Park to
be." Those principles include "protecting the character of residential neighborhoods."
Guiding Principle 7-"Complete Neighborhoods and Commercial Corridors"-provides
that "Menlo Park neighborhoods are complete communities, featuring well integrated and
designed development along vibrant commercial corridors with a live-work-play mix of
community-focused businesses that conveniently serve adjacent neighborhoods while
respecting their residential character."

4. The People of Menlo Park further express their strong desire that the City,pursue
opportunities to develop badly-needed housing, including affordable housing, that is
consistent with the residential character of these neighborhoods (in compliance with any
applicable, controlling state law requirements and mandates, which may allow for
multiple units of low-density housing on lots with "single family" zoning), rather than
converting residential properties in these neighborhoods to different uses such as
industrial, commercial, office, mixed use, or high-density residential, which would create
traffic and otherwise strain the infrastructure of existing neighborhoods that were
designated as low density, residential-only uses.

5. Accordingly, the people of the City of Menlo Park desire to amend the General
Plan to enact new policies to ensure that, as the City continues to grow and attract new
industry, businesses, and residents, new development remains consistent the General
Plan's stated goal of protecting the existing pattern of land use in the City and the
character of its existing residential neighborhoods.

6. This Initiative will only impact those properties that are designated in the City's
General Plan as Very Low Density Residential or Low Density Residential, and/ or zoned
with a corresponding zoning designation, as of April 15, 2022. It will not impact
properties that are not designated, as of April 15, 2022, Very Low Density Residential or
Low Density Residential and/or zoned with a corresponding zoning designation. The
relevant very low and low density residential land use designations are provided in
Section 3, below, and the relevant very low and low density residential zoning
designations are attached hereto for informational purposes as Exhibit B. In order to
illustrate the location of properties in the City currently assigned these very low and low
density residential zoning designations, a map showing the City's zoning, as depicted on

1 

EXHIBIT A

Page F-3.32



Page F-3.33



Page F-3.34



Page F-3.35



Page F-3.36



Page F-3.37



Page F-3.38



Page F-3.39



Page F-3.40



Page F-3.41



Page F-3.42



Page F-3.43



Page F-3.44



Page F-3.45



Page F-3.46



Page F-3.47



Page F-3.48



Page F-3.49



Page F-3.50



Page F-3.51



Days Prior to 
Election Date

Election Calendar for November 8, 2022
Statewide General Election       

Action Taken

148 Monday, June 13, 2022 By this date, the Governor shall issue a proclamation calling the election and shall 
state the time of the election and offices to be filled.       
EC §12000

131 Thursday, June 30, 2022 Last day for a statewide initiative measure, constitutional amendment, bond measure 
or other legislative measure to qualify for the Statewide General Election ballot on 
November 8, 2022.
EC §9040; Cal. Const. Art. II §8(c)

130 Friday, July 1, 2022 (School or Special District Vacancy) Last day for the governing body of a local 
jurisdiction to call an election on November 8, 2022 to fill a vacancy to be on the 
ballot.       
GC §1780(e)(2); ED §5091(b)

127 Monday, July 4, 2022

113 Monday, July 18, 2022

125 Wednesday, July 6, 2022 Last day for special districts governed by the Uniform District Election Law to notify 
County Elections Official of offices to be filled, specifying which offices, if any, are for 
the balance of an unexpired term, decisions regarding payment of candidate 
statements, and a map showing the boundaries of the district and the boundaries of 
the divisions of the district, if any, within that county and a statement indicating in 
which divisions a director is to be elected and whether any elective officer is to be 
elected at large.       
EC §§10509, 10522

124 Thursday, July 7, 2022 First Candidate Seminar will be held at 10 a.m. on this day. 
123 Friday, July 8, 2022 Last day for a school governing board to deliver a resolution (the “specifications of 

the election order”) to the County Superintendent of Schools and the County 
Elections Official calling for an election of governing board members.
ED §5322

120 Monday, July 11, 2022 Last day for the County Superintendent of Schools to deliver a copy of the formal 
notice of election of governing board members to the County Elections Official.
ED §5325(b)

120 Monday, July 11, 2022

90 Wednesday, August 10, 2022

NOTE:  The information below is as accurate as possible, but not every requirement or exception is listed.  In the event of a conflict, the date set 
by statute takes precedence over dates listed below.  The Registration & Elections Division reserves the right to update this calendar as 
necessary.

Between these dates, a city shall publish its Notice of Election, stating the offices to 
be filled and time of election.  The City Elections Official shall consolidate the Notice 
of Election and the Notice of Measure into one notice if any city measure was placed 
on the ballot prior to the Notice of Election’s publication. 
EC §§12101, 12111       

Between these dates, the County Elections Official shall publish the Notice of 
Election (date of election, identification of offices to be filled, statement of required 
qualifications, where Nomination Documents are available, deadline for filing required 
forms, statement regarding appointment and the hours of opening and closing the 
polls).  The notice of central counting place may be combined with this notice.  The 
Elections Official shall also issue a press release indicating offices to be filled and a 
telephone contact number for related information. 
EC §§10242, 12109, 12112; GC §6061; ED §5363  

OFFICE OF MARK CHURCH
CHIEF ELECTIONS OFFICER &
ASSESSOR-COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER
REGISTRATION & ELECTIONS DIVISION
COUNTY OF SAN MATEO

EXHIBIT B

Page F-3.52



114 Sunday, July 17, 2022 (City Vacancy) For a vacancy in a city elective office, this is the last day for the city 
council to call for a special election for November 8, 2022 to fill the vacancy.  The 
city shall immediately publish the Notice of Election.  (NOTE:  Because the deadline 
E-114 falls on a Sunday, the safest option is for the city to take this action by E-116, 
Friday, July 15, 2022)
EC §§12101(b); GC §36512                                                     

113 Monday, July 18, 2022

88 Friday, August 12, 2022

103 Thursday, July 28, 2022 Second Candidate Seminar will be held at 10 a.m. on this day.  

Fixed Date Monday, August 1, 2022 Except as provided in GC §84200 paragraphs (1), (2) and (3), elected officials, 
candidates, committees, and slate mailer organizations shall file semiannual 
statements no later than this date for the period ending June 30, 2022.  (Statutory 
deadline of July 31 falls on a Sunday, therefore the filing deadline is extended to the 
next business day.) 
GC §§82013, 84200, 84218 

98 Tuesday, August 2, 2022 During this period, a contribution, including a loan, that totals in the aggregate $1,000 
or more per source made to or received by a candidate or committee must be 
reported within 24 hours.
GC §§82036, 84203

90 Wednesday, August 10, 2022

0 Tuesday, November 8, 2022

88 Friday, August 12, 2022 Last day for a school governing board to deliver a resolution (the "specifications of 
the election order") to the County Elections Official calling for an election on a 
measure.                                                                    
ED §5322

88 Friday, August 12, 2022 Last day for a local entity to deliver a resolution requesting election services and 
consolidation from the County Board of Supervisors for the November 8, 2022 
Election.  A copy of the resolution of the governing board requesting the 
consolidation shall be submitted to the County Elections Official.  A copy of the exact 
form of the question, proposition, or office to appear on the ballot must also be 
submitted.
EC §§1405, 10002, 10403(a)-(b)

88 Friday, August 12, 2022 Last day for candidates to submit Nomination Documents (Declaration of Candidacy 
and Nomination Papers) and Candidate Statement (optional).  City candidates shall 
file paperwork with their City Clerk's office and should check the business hours of 
their City Clerk's office; all other candidates shall file with the County Elections 
Official by 5 p.m. on this date.
EC §§10220, 10224, 10407(a), 10510, 10603, 13107, 13307, 13307.5; GC 
§85601(c) 

88 Friday, August 12, 2022

78 Monday, August 22, 2022

During this period, a contribution, including a loan, that totals in the aggregate $1,000 
or more per source made to or received by a candidate or committee must be 
reported within 24 hours.
GC §§82036, 84203

Between these dates is the Candidate Filing Period.  Nomination Documents 
(Declaration of Candidacy and Nomination Papers) are available during this time.  
Paperwork must be filed by the close of business on August 12, 2022.  City 
candidates shall file paperwork with their City Clerk’s office and should check the 
business hours of their City Clerk’s office; all other candidates shall file with the 
County Elections Official by 5 p.m. on August 12, 2022.  Local, United States House 
of Representatives, State Senate and Assembly candidates may publish a Candidate 
Statement in the County Sample Ballot & Official Voter Information Pamphlet.  State 
Senate and Assembly candidates may do so only if they have agreed to accept the 
voluntary expenditure limits on their Candidate Intention Statement (Form 501).  The 
candidate statement may be withdrawn but not changed during this period and until 5 
p.m. of the next working day (Monday, August 15, 2022) after the close of the 
nomination period.  
EC §§10220, 10224, 10407(a), 10510, 10603, 13107, 13307, 13307.5; GC 
§85601(c) 

The 10-calendar-day public examination period begins August 12, 2022 at 5 p.m. and 
ends August 22, 2022 at 5 p.m. for all documents filed as of the filing deadline of 
August 12, 2022.  Between these dates, the Elections Official or any voter of the 
jurisdiction in which the election is being held, may seek a writ of mandate or 
injunction requiring any or all of the materials to be amended or deleted if found to be 
false, misleading or inconsistent with the Elections Code.  
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509, 13313

Page F-3.53



87 Saturday, August 13, 2022

83 Wednesday, August 17, 2022

85 Monday, August 15, 2022 Except as provided in EC §13309, this date is the last day (until 5 p.m.) for a 
candidate to withdraw the candidate’s statement.  Candidates may withdraw, but not 
change their statements.
EC §13307(a)(3)

83 Wednesday, August 17, 2022 Extended Candidate Filing Period closes at 5 p.m. on this date.  Extended filing 
periods occur when an eligible incumbent does not file for re-election; the extension 
only applies to non-incumbent candidates for such an office.  City candidates shall 
file paperwork with their City Clerk’s office and should check the business hours of 
their City Clerk’s office; all other candidates shall file with the County Elections 
Official by 5 p.m. on this date.                                                                                                                     
EC §§10225, 10407(b), 10516, 10604

83 Wednesday, August 17, 2022 Last day for an order of election calling for a ballot measure to be amended or 
withdrawn.  A resolution of the legislative body that issued the order of election must 
be filed with the Elections Official by this date in order to amend or withdraw a ballot 
measure.
EC §9605

83 Wednesday, August 17, 2022 For the office of superior court judge where only the incumbent filed paperwork 
during the Primary Election, this date is the last day to file a petition indicating that a 
write-in campaign will be conducted for the office at the general election, signed by at 
least 0.1 percent of the registered voters qualified to vote with respect to the office, 
provided that the petition shall contain at least 100 signatures but need not contain 
more than 600 signatures.  If such a petition is filed by this date, the name of the 
incumbent shall be placed on the general election ballot if it has not appeared on the 
direct primary election ballot.
EC §8203

83 Wednesday, August 17, 2022 Last day for any qualified political party to submit to the County Elections Official a list 
of all candidates for voter-nominated offices who will appear on any ballot in the 
County, and who have been endorsed by the party.  The County Elections Official 
shall print any such list that is timely received in the County Sample Ballot & Official 
Voter Information Pamphlet.
EC §13302(b)

83 Wednesday, August 17, 2022

73 Saturday, August 27, 2022

82 Thursday, August 18, 2022 Randomized Alphabet Drawings are conducted by both the Secretary of State and 
County Elections Official on this date at 11 a.m. to determine the order in which 
candidate names will appear on the ballot and the letters that will be assigned to each 
ballot measure.
EC §§13111-13, 13116

82 Thursday, August 18, 2022 Last day for candidates for offices with extended filing deadline of August 17, 2022 to 
withdraw their candidate statement.  The statement may be withdrawn, but not 
changed, until 5 p.m.
EC §§13307(a)(3)

81 Friday, August 19, 2022 The County Elections Official will publish a notice regarding County, School District 
and Special District measures, the dates for submitting Primary Arguments and 
Rebuttals, the 10-day public examination periods, the hours of opening and closing 
the polls, and the central ballot counting location.
EC §§9163, 9502, 10242, 12109; GC §6061

Between these dates is the Extended  Candidate Filing Period.  If an eligible 
incumbent does not file Nomination Documents (Declaration of Candidacy and 
Nomination Papers) by August 12, 2022 at 5 p.m., the filing period is extended for 
that office for five calendar days until August 17, 2022 at 5 p.m., for any person other 
than the incumbent.  City candidates shall file paperwork with their City Clerk’s office 
and should check the business hours of their City Clerk’s office; all other candidates 
shall file with the County Elections Official by 5 p.m. on August 17, 2022.  This 
section is not applicable where there is no incumbent eligible to be elected.  
EC §§10225, 10407(b), 10516, 10604

The 10-calendar-day public examination period begins August 17, 2022 at 5 p.m. and 
ends August 27, 2022 at 5 p.m. for all documents filed by the extended filing deadline 
August 17, 2022.  Between these dates, the Elections Official or any voter of the 
jurisdiction in which the election is being held, may seek a writ of mandate or 
injunction requiring any or all of the materials to be amended or deleted if found to be 
false, misleading or inconsistent with the Elections Code.                                                                                    
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509, 13313                                                                                                                                            

Page F-3.54



81 Friday, August 19, 2022 For consolidated elections, the names of the candidates to appear upon the ballot 
where district, city or other political subdivision offices are to be filled shall be filed 
with the Elections Official by this date.
EC §10403(c)

81 Friday, August 19, 2022 Primary Arguments in favor of and against local measures are due by 5 p.m. on this 
date.  Such arguments, if already submitted, may be changed until and including this 
day.  Arguments in favor of and against city measures must be filed with the City 
Clerk’s office.  Contact the City Clerk’s office for deadline as cities may set different 
filing due date for Primary Arguments. 
EC §§9162-63, 9282-83, 9286, 9315-16, 9501-03

81 Friday, August 19, 2022

71 Monday, August 29, 2022

78 Monday, August 22, 2022 The 10-calendar-day public examination period ends at 5 p.m. for all documents filed 
by August 12, 2022.  A writ of mandate or injunction request shall be filed no later 
than this date on documents filed by the Candidate Filing Period deadline of August 
12, 2022.                                                     
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509, 13313

73 Saturday, August 27, 2022 The 10-calendar-day public examination period ends at 5 p.m. for all documents filed 
by August 17, 2022.  A writ of mandate or injunction request shall be filed no later 
than this date on documents filed by the extended candidate filing period deadline of 
August 17, 2022.
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509, 13313

71 Monday, August 29, 2022 The 10-calendar-day public examination period ends at 5 p.m. on this day for all 
Primary Arguments filed in favor of and against local measures.  A writ of mandate or 
injunction request shall be filed no later than this date on documents filed by the 
deadline of August 19, 2022.                                                                             
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509

71 Monday, August 29, 2022 Rebuttal Arguments for measures where a Primary Argument was filed both in favor 
and against are due on this date by 5 p.m.  Such Rebuttal Arguments may be 
changed until and including this date.  Rebuttal Arguments for city measures must be 
filed with the City Clerk's office.  Contact the City Clerk’s office for deadline as cities 
may set different filing due date for Rebuttal Arguments. 
EC §§9163, 9167, 9285-86, 9316-17, 9502, 9504     

71 Monday, August 29, 2022 Impartial Analyses for measures are due on this date by 5 p.m.  Impartial Analyses 
for city measures must be filed with the City Clerk's office.  Contact the City Clerk’s 
office for deadline as cities may set different filing due date for Impartial Analyses.          
EC §§9160, 9280, 9313-14, 9500

71 Monday, August 29, 2022

61 Thursday, September 8, 2022

61 Thursday, September 8, 2022 The 10-calendar-day public examination period ends on this date at 5 p.m. for all 
Rebuttal Arguments filed in favor of and/or against local measures and Impartial 
Analyses.  A writ of mandate or injunction request shall be filed no later than this date 
on documents filed by August 29, 2022.                                         
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509

61 Thursday, September 8, 2022 Any city that requests the County Board of Supervisors to permit the County 
Elections Official to prepare the city’s election materials shall supply the County 
Elections Official with a list of its precincts, or consolidated precincts, as applicable, 
no later than this date.
EC §10002

The 10-calendar-day examination review period begins August 19, 2022 at 5 p.m. 
and ends August 29, 2022 at 5 p.m. for Primary Arguments filed in favor of and 
against local measures.  Between these dates, the Elections Official or any voter of 
the jurisdiction in which the election is being held, may seek a writ of mandate or 
injunction requiring any or all of the materials to be amended or deleted if found to be 
false, misleading or inconsistent with the Elections Code.  Arguments in favor of and 
against city measures are reviewed at the City Clerk’s office.  Contact the City 
Clerk’s office for deadline.
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509

The 10-calendar-day public examination period begins August 29, 2022 at 5 p.m. and 
ends September 8, 2022 at 5 p.m. for Rebuttal Arguments filed in favor or against 
local measures and Impartial Analyses.  Between these dates, the Elections Official 
or any voter of the jurisdiction in which the election is being held, may seek a writ of 
mandate or injunction requiring any or all of the materials to be amended or deleted if 
found to be false, misleading or inconsistent with the Elections Code.  Rebuttal 
Arguments and Impartial Analyses for city measures are reviewed at the City Clerk’s 
office.  Contact the City Clerk’s office for deadline.
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509

Page F-3.55



60 Friday, September 9, 2022

45 Saturday, September 24, 2022

57 Monday, September 12, 2022

14 Tuesday, October 25, 2022

45 Saturday, September 24, 2022 County Elections Official must send ballots and balloting material to all Military and 
Overseas Voters who filed ballot applications by this date.
EC §§300(b), 3105, 3114

40 Thursday, September 29, 2022

10 Saturday, October 29, 2022

40 Thursday, September 29, 2022 First pre-election campaign committee statement for candidates and committees is 
due for the period ending September 24, 2022 (which is 45 days before the election).
GC §§84200.5, 84200.8

29 Monday, October 10, 2022

7 Tuesday, November 1, 2022

29 Monday, October 10, 2022 Early voting period starts on this day, with three Vote Centers opening in San Mateo, 
Redwood City and South San Francisco.                                                      

29 Monday, October 10, 2022 Processing of Vote by Mail ballots may begin on this date.  Processing Vote by Mail 
ballots includes opening Vote by Mail ballot return envelopes, removing ballots, 
duplicating any damaged ballots and preparing the ballots to be machine-read, or 
machine reading them, including processing write-in votes so that they can be tallied 
by the machine, but under no circumstances may a vote count be accessed or 
released until 8 p.m. on Election Day. 
EC §15101

28 Tuesday, October 11, 2022

0 Tuesday, November 8, 2022

21 Tuesday, October 18, 2022 By this date, the County Elections Official shall mail the County Sample Ballot & 
Official Voter Information Pamphlet to each voter who is registered at least 29 days 
prior to the election. 
EC §§13303-04

15 Monday, October 24, 2022 Voter registration closes on this date for the November 8, 2022 Statewide General 
Election.  Voters must register by this date to be eligible to vote non-provisionally in 
this election.  Voter registration forms postmarked prior to or on this date are 
accepted.
EC §2102

14 Tuesday, October 25, 2022 The Candidate Filing Period for write-in candidates ends on this date at 5 p.m.  All 
candidates must submit all required documents by this date in order to be a qualified 
write-in candidate.  City candidates must file their paperwork with their City Clerk's 
office.                                           
EC §§8600-05

14 Tuesday, October 25, 2022

0 Tuesday, November 8, 2022

Between these dates, at least one ballot dropoff location shall be provided for every 
15,000 registered voters within the jurisdiction where the election is held, as 
determined on August 12, 2022 (i.e., 88 days before Election Day).  All ballot dropoff 
locations shall be open at least during regular business hours.  At least one ballot 
dropoff location shall be an accessible, secured, exterior drop box that is available 
for a minimum of 12 hours per day including regular business hours.                                                                                                           
EC§ 4005(a)(1) 

Between these dates, the Secretary of State shall mail the State Voter Information 
Guide to each voter who is registered at least 29 days prior to the election.  The 
County Elections Official will mail a State Voter Information Guide to any person upon 
request. 
EC §9094

Between these dates, Vote by Mail ballots will be sent to all registered voters in the 
county.  Voters interested in having replacement Vote by Mail ballots be mailed to 
them should make the request by November 1, 2022 to ensure the ballots arrive on 
or before Election Day.  
EC §4005(a)(8)(A)

Between these dates, individuals who become new United States citizens on or after 
October 25, 2022, are eligible to register and vote at any Vote Center.  A new citizen 
registering during this time must provide proof of citizenship prior to voting and 
declare that he or she has established residency in California.
EC §§331, 3500-01                              

Between these dates is the Candidate Filing Period for write-in candidates.  Write-in 
candidates must file a statement of write-in candidacy and other required 
documentation with the County Elections Official.  City candidates must file their 
paperwork with their City Clerk's office and should check the business hours of their 
City Clerk's office.
EC §§8600-05

Between these dates, the County Elections Official must send ballots and balloting 
materials to all Military and Overseas Voters who filed ballot applications by 
September 24, 2022.
EC §§300(b), 3105, 3114

Page F-3.56



14 Tuesday, October 25, 2022

0 Tuesday, November 8, 2022

12 Thursday, October 27, 2022 Second pre-election campaign committee statement for candidates and committees 
is due for the period ending October 22, 2022 (which is 17 days before the election).
GC §§84200.5, 84200.8(b)

10 Saturday, October 29, 2022

4 Friday, November 4, 2022

7 Tuesday, November 1, 2022 By this date (one week before Election Day), the County Elections Official shall 
publish a list of the polling places (Vote Centers) designated for each election 
precinct for the election.
EC §12105

7 Tuesday, November 1, 2022 Voters interested in having replacement Vote by Mail ballots be mailed to them 
should make the request by this date to ensure the ballots arrive on or before 
Election Day.                                                                                                             

7 Tuesday, November 1, 2022 Last day for voters to request the County Elections Official to send a Vote by Mail 
ballot in Spanish, Chinese or Filipino, or a facsimile copy of the ballot printed in 
Korean, Burmese, Japanese or Hindi.                                       
EC §4005(a)(8)(B)(i)(III)

7 Tuesday, November 1, 2022 Last day for voters to request the County Elections Official to send or deliver a ballot 
that voters with disabilities can read and mark privately and independently pursuant 
to the federal Help America Vote Act of 2002 (52 U.S.C. Sec. 20901 et seq.).                                                                        
EC §4005(a)(8)(B)(i)(IV)

3 Saturday, November 5, 2022

0 Tuesday, November 8, 2022

0 Tuesday, November 8, 2022 Election Day.  All Vote Centers open from 7 a.m. to 8 p.m.  Semifinal official canvass 
commences upon the closing of all polls at 8 p.m.            
EC §§1000, 4005, 14212, 15150-51

Days 
Following 
Election

Date Action Taken

7 Tuesday, November 15, 2022 Vote by Mail ballots postmarked on or before Election Day must be received by the 
County Elections Official by this date in order to be counted.
EC §3020(b)

30 Thursday, December 8, 2022 Last day for County Elections Official to certify election results to the jurisdictions 
participating in the election.     
EC §15372

38 Friday, December 16, 2022 Last day for Secretary of State to prepare, certify, and file a statement of the vote 
from the compiled elections returns.  The Secretary of State issues to each elected 
candidate a certificate of election.
EC §§15501, 15504

§ or §§
EC
ED  California Education Code
GC

 Section or Sections
Reference

Between these dates, for a minimum of eight hours per day (7 a.m. to 8 p.m. on 
Election Day), at least one Vote Center is provided for every 10,000 registered 
voters within the jurisdiction where the election is held, as determined on August 12, 
2022  (i.e., 88 days before Election Day).  Any voter registered in the county may 
visit any Vote Center in order to receive voter services or vote.                                                    
EC §4005(a)(2), (a)(3)(A)

Between these dates, the Elections Official shall provide Conditional Voter 
Registration and provisional voting for voters who missed the October 24, 2022 
registration deadline at any Vote Center.                                                 
EC §§2170-71

All above California Codes may be referenced online at:  leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes.xhtml

Between these dates, for a minimum of eight hours per day, at least one Vote Center 
is provided for every 50,000 registered voters within the jurisdiction where the 
election is held, as determined on August 12, 2022 (i.e., 88 days before Election 
Day).  Any voter registered in the county may visit any Vote Center in order to 
receive voter services or vote.                                                                                                     
EC §4005(a)(2), (a)(4)(A) 

 California Government Code

 California Elections Code

Page F-3.57



Administrative Services 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-123-CC 

 
Regular Business:  Adopt resolutions for fiscal year 2022-23: budget 

and capital improvement plan; establish 
appropriations limit; establish a consecutive 1 
percent utility users’ tax rate through June 2023; 
establish the salary schedule effective July 3, 2022; 
extend rate assistance program through June 2023; 
establish direction for administration of American 
Rescue Plan Act funds; and accept award authority 
and bid requirement through June 2023 

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that City Council provide final direction on the city manager’s fiscal year 2022-23 
proposed budget, adopt the following resolutions, establish award levels and provide bid requirements: 
 
1. Resolution adopting fiscal year 2022-23 budget and capital improvement plan (CIP) (Attachment H) 
2. Resolution establishing the appropriations limit (Attachment I) 
3. Resolution establishing one percent user utility tax (UUT) through June 2023 (Attachment J) 
4. Resolution amending the salary schedule effective July 3, 2022 (Attachment K) 
5. Resolution extending the rate assistance program through June 2023 (Attachment L) 
6. Resolution establishing direction for administration of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds 

(Attachment M) 
7. Accept award memo for authority and bid requirement through June 2023 (Attachment N) 

 
Policy Issues 
The City Council maintains responsibility for all budgetary appropriations. Under section 2.08.080(8) of the 
Menlo Park Municipal Code (MPMC), the city manager has the responsibility “to prepare and submit to the 
City Council the annual budget.” Appropriations for fiscal year 2021-22 lapse June 30, 2022, and adoption 
of the budget and appropriation of funds is necessary before the start of the fiscal year July 1, 2022. A 
public hearing on the city manager’s proposed budget is consistent with the City’s budgeting process. 

 
Background 
Preparation of the annual budget takes place primarily during the months of March and April and is informed 
by City Council direction including amendments to the current fiscal year’s budget, adoption of budget 
principles, and adoption of City Council priorities. The proposed budget was published June 7, 2022, for 
consideration by the community and City Council. A budget workshop was held June 7, 2022, to provide 
additional information about the budget and answer questions from the community and a public hearing was 
held June 14, 2022. The presentation is available as Attachment A and a recording of the workshop is 
available as Attachment B.  
 

AGENDA ITEM G-1

Page G-1.1



Staff Report #: 21-123-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

The city manager’s proposed budget for fiscal year 2022-23 originally included a number of resource 
options and proposals for service level enhancements as indicated in Attachment C. These were 
considered by the community and City Council at the June 14 public hearing and those proposals with City 
Council understanding have been incorporated into the proposed budget. There were two positions, the 
graphic designer and management analyst for sustainability, which received a “maybe” from City Council 
and are included for final direction on these positions. The revised budget proposed for adoption is available 
online from the cover page, Attachment D. The budget theme and major changes are outlined in the city 
manager’s transmittal letter which can be navigated to from the cover page. The budget in its entirety and 
dynamic report views are available through the City’s OpenGov transparency portal, Attachment E. 

 
Analysis 
The proposed budget for fiscal year 2022-23 includes a spending plan which maintains all services offered 
in fiscal year 2021-22 and expands upon those services in a number of functional areas, by fund and 
department presented in Attachment C. It should be noted that the graphic designer and emergency 
preparedness coordinator positions will not be opened for recruitment until the City Council approves an 
amendment to the salary schedule (Attachment K.)  In addition, the recruitment for the management analyst 
position would remain on hold until those other two new positions proceed forward for recruitment. The 
general fund, the largest and most active of the City’s funds and responsible for the majority of the City’s 
operations, is balanced this fiscal year by using reserves of $6.4 million as indicated in Attachment Q.  
 
Changes incorporated after the public hearing 
Following City Council direction, changes were incorporated into the budget as proposed for adoption: 
• City Council directed staff to keep most of the proposed service level enhancements; as previously 

mentioned, two positions that were determined to be maybes are included for further direction; 
• City Council directed staff to make changes in the 5-year forecast (see section below); and 
• City Council did not recommend any additional changes to the fiscal year 2022-23 proposed budget. 
 
American Rescue Plan Act Fund 
Last year, the ARPA funds were moved to a newly-created special revenue fund, the ARPA Fund. This fund 
will receive a total of $8.30 million in stimulus funds with half already received in fiscal year 2021-22 and 
half to be received in fiscal year 2022-23. These funds may be spent on a large range of uses, including 
those included in the proposed budget. The proposed budget incorporates a transfer from the ARPA Fund 
to the general fund in the amount of $3.7 million to reflect a revenue backfill as allowed for these stimulus 
funds. In fiscal year 2021-22, the adopted budget authorized use of $2.91 million of which $0.85 was used 
leaving a remaining authorization of $1.6 million. The proposed budget includes those funds and an 
additional $2.1 for the total of $3.7 million. This leaves remaining AARP funds of $3.7 million, in the fund 
balance for the ARPA fund for use as directed by City Council in fiscal year 2022-23 or beyond. Stimulus 
funds must be fully expended by December 31, 2024 and any unspent balance is forfeited. 
 
Anticipated mid-year budget amendments 
Staff anticipates the following mid-year adjustments as presented at the June 14 budget hearing: 
 
• Menlo Park Community Campus staffing and operations 

On May 24, 2022, the City Council received an informational update that outlined the projected 
milestones and timeline for completing the operational and staffing plan for the new facility. Staff projects 
that any service level enhancements needed to effectively open and operate the new facility would be 
brought to City Council for consideration tentatively in autumn 2022 with budget authorization tentatively 
in the context of the midyear budget review in February 2023. 

Page G-1.2



Staff Report #: 21-123-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
• Aquatics program 

On February 8, 2022, City Council directed staff to conduct an analysis of the aquatics program in 
preparation for the opening of a new aquatics center in the Menlo Park Community Campus. Staff 
projects that any service level enhancements needed to implement City Council’s direction at the 
outcome of that process would be brought to City Council for consideration tentatively in autumn 2022 
with budget authorization at that time or potentially during the midyear budget review in February 2023. 

 
• Chrysler Pump Station reconstruction 

The Chrysler Pump Station, located at Chrysler Drive near the intersection with Bayfront Expressway, is 
a stormwater pump station that facilitates drainage of stormwater runoff from much of the Bayfront area. 
The pumps are over 60 years old and are past the end of their useful life. The project is anticipated to be 
out to bid in July 2022, and staff is closely monitoring cost escalation that is anticipated to impact this 
project. As noted in the April 19, 2022, City Council staff report, currently a shortfall of $2.5 million is 
anticipated, but uncertainty remains with the current construction climate and inflation observations on 
other capital projects. A request for this amount, $2.5 million, is included in the proposed capital 
improvement program, and if additional funding is needed, staff will develop a funding strategy for this 
project for the City Council’s consideration at the time of bid award, expected in autumn 2022. The city 
previously obtained a $5 million Hazard Mitigation Grant from Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) for this project, which would be paid on a reimbursement basis as construction proceeds. 

 
General Fund fiscal year 2021-22 forecast (Attachment P) 
Following the public hearing, staff reviewed the General Funds’ forecast with May year-to-date transactions 
and felt the changes warranted a revision to the fiscal year 2021-22 forecast. The revisions resulted in the 
General Fund’s unassigned fund balance decreasing from $9.7 million to $7.5 million at fiscal year June 
2022 due to reclassification of developer payment estimates from the General Fund to the separately 
established Fund 332 Bayfront Mitigation and increased transient occupancy tax (TOT) to reflect current 
projections. While maintaining City Council adopted reserve levels, this means the fiscal year 2022-23 
proposed unassigned fund balance is $0.4 million.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page G-1.3



Staff Report #: 21-123-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Table 1: General Fund balance components 

Item Estimated balance  

Recommended for consideration   

Beginning fund balance July 1, 2022 $ 38,304,419 

Ending fund balance June 30, 2023  $ 31,944,364  

Fund balance reserve components  

Non-spendable prepaids                                                             $ 458,698 

Menlo Park City School District assigned balance $1,000,000 

Strategic pension funding reserve  $ 2,250,860  

Emergency contingency reserve $11,800,000  

Economic stabilization reserve $16,000,000  

Unassigned fund balance $434,806  
 
General Fund 5-year forecast (Attachment O) 
The General Fund’s 5-year forecast informs adoption of the City’s UUT rate as well as demonstrates 
compliance with the City Council’s budget principles. Given the revenue and expense assumptions within 
the model, the goal is to present City Council with General Fund sustainability over the next five years. The 
model received input from the executive team, consultants and direction from City Council. Below are the 
assumptions, with any changes from the June 14 model noted: 
 
• The TOT revenue was increased by $0.8 million beginning fiscal year 2023-24. Also, we raised the 

annual growth rate to 5 percent from 2.5 percent. 
• Excess Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) is reduced 10 percent annually from fiscal 

year 2022-23 budget level to reflect decreased reliance upon, for an overall decrease of approximately 
34.4 percent from fiscal year 2022-23 budget amount ARPA must be expended by December 2024 with 
$3.7 million in the proposed budget 

• Vacancy factor increased from 5 percent to 6.5 percent to reflect a higher level of vacancies in fiscal year 
2022-23 along with anticipated attrition in future years due to retirements 

• Services expense category was reduced by 15 percent in fiscal year 2023-24 to reflect non-recurring 
expenses 

• Emergency and economic reserves were adjusted as unassigned cannot be negative 
 
Under the proposed assumptions, the projected total reserve balance goes from $31.9 million to $26.5 
million over five years. The City Council’s emergency reserve is maintained at policy limit; however, the 
economic reserve is estimated to be approximately $3.6 million short over the last two forecasted years 
(Emergency and Economic Reserve Chart.)  During the course of the five years, actuals will vary which may 
impact these reserves; however, staff believes under current assumptions that this demonstrates a 
sustainable General Fund with less dependence on Excess ERAF over this 5-Year time period. 
 
Proposed five-year capital improvement program  
The City’s 5-Year CIP is funded for the initial year covering $102.7 million in proposed projects. The City 
carried over $87.9 million in prior approved project budgets and staff is requesting $15.3 million for new 

Page G-1.4



Staff Report #: 21-123-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

projects. The City’s General Fund CIP is funded for $37.4 million in projects, including $8.6 million new 
additions. The General Funds’ CIP for fiscal year’s 2023-24 through 2026-27 is unfunded for $31.7 million of 
project work. Table 2 summarizes the funding requests by category. 
 

Table 2: Capital improvement program,  
Fiscal year 2022-23 proposed funding requests by category 

Category Proposed 
request  Funding sources 

City buildings and systems  $725,000 General capital 

Environment $500,000 General capital 

Parks and recreation  $4,745,414  Recreation in-lieu, Measure T, general capital 

Stormwater $3,110,000 General capital 

Streets and sidewalks $2,125,000 Sidewalk assessment, general capital, construction 
street impact fee, highway users (gas) tax 

Traffic and transportation  $1,928,000 Transportation impact fees, grants,  
Measures A and W, transportation 

Water system  $2,152,985  Water capital  

Total $15,286,399  
 
Enabling resolutions 
Staff recommends City Council take action on the following resolutions before July 1.  
 
Adopt fiscal year 2022-23 budget and capital improvement plan (Attachment H) 
This resolution formally appropriates funds and allows for expenditures during the fiscal year. As previously 
mentioned, staff anticipates mid-year budget amendments during the third quarter of each fiscal year 
around the month of February.  
 
Appropriations limit (Attachment I) 
California Government Code sets a limit on appropriations based on a number of factors including the prior 
limit, population change and cost of living changes. This resolution establishes the appropriations limit for 
fiscal year 2022-23. 
 
Temporary Utility Users’ Tax Reduction (Attachment J) 
The MPMC sets UUT rates but allows for temporary reductions up to 12 months. Since the City Council 
desires to extend the temporary reduction in UUT rates, this resolution accomplishes that. The UUT is 
adopted as City Council reviews the General Fund’s 5-Year forecast determining the long-term impact of 
the tax. 
 
Salary schedule amendments (Attachment K) 
The salary schedule which accompanies this resolution reflects a 3 percent increase pursuant to MOU 
agreements for collective bargaining units:  Service Employees International Union Local 521 (SEIU), 
American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees Local 829 (AFSCME), and Police Officers’ 
Association (POA.)  Positions within the unrepresented management group are also being increased by 3 
percent. The position of “assistant to the city manager/city clerk” is being added; however, there will be no 
impact to FTE. Recreation supervisor and senior librarian are being deleted from the salary schedule as 
they were reclassified to library and community services supervisor in April 2022. The library and 
community services supervisor classification was created in April 2021 to encompass all supervisor-level 

Page G-1.5



Staff Report #: 21-123-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

roles in the department, including library, recreation and child care. 
 
Rate assistance program (Attachment L) 
The City established a rate assistance pilot program for solid waste and water utilities in June 2020. This 
resolution extends the rate assistance program through June 30, 2023. 
 
American Rescue Plan Act (Attachment M) 
This resolution is recommended for compliance with the ARPA Final Rule and to provide clear direction for 
the use of these funds. 
 
Award authority (Attachment N) 
City Council Procedure #21-024-CC establishes award authority and bid requirements and includes an 
annual adjustment in purchasing limits according to inflation. The inflation from 2022 to 2023 results in an 
increase in the city manager’s signature authority limit of $6,000, and the award authority memo for fiscal 
year 2022-23 outlines the award authority levels. 
 
Next steps 
The following items reflect the final steps of the fiscal year 2022-23 budget: 
• The City Council can consider whether to retain these items as presented by staff or provide additional 

staff direction: 
• Service level enhancements (Attachment C) 
• ERAF reduction of 10 percent per year beginning with fiscal year 2023-24 
• ARPA utilization in the General Fund for revenue replacement 
• Utility User’s Tax rate of 1 percent (at the June 14 public hearing the City Council provided direction 

to staff to maintain UUT at 1 percent, but final determination on the reduction of the UUT will be 
made in the resolution establishing the financial necessity of the UUT) 

• Emergency and economic reserves policy level (these are maintained in fiscal year 2022-23, but may 
fall below policy level in the last two years of the five-year forecast) 

• Adoption of enabling resolutions for fiscal year 2022-23 before July 1 
• Publication of the fiscal year 2022-23 adopted budget document in August 

 
Impact on City Resources 
As noted in the previous section, the fiscal year 2022-23 operating budget is balanced with the use of $6.4 
million in reserves, including Federal stimulus funds. If City Council desires additional changes to the 
budget which increase expenditures, use of one-time money, including accumulated fund balance, must be 
identified absent an offsetting revenue. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

Page G-1.6



Staff Report #: 21-123-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – June 7 budget workshop slides: beta.menlopark.org/files/sharedassets/public/administrative-

services/documents/finance/fy-2022-23-budget-workshop-presentation.pdf  
B. Hyperlink – June 7 budget workshop recording: youtu.be/N2DDl5E-PpQ 
C. Service level enhancements 
D. Hyperlink – City Manager’s proposed budget for fiscal year 2022-23 cover page: 

stories.opengov.com/menlopark/published/zHpmGGiSG  
E. Hyperlink – Budget transparency portal: stories.opengov.com/menlopark/published/zHpmGGiSG 
F. Hyperlink – General Fund reserve policy: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/5404/D3---General-

Fund-Reserve-Update?bidId= 
G. Hyperlink – Fiscal year 2022-23 proposed budget: menlopark.org/budget 
H. Resolution adopting the fiscal year 2022-23 budget and CIP 
I. Resolution establishing the appropriations limit 
J. Resolution establishing a temporary UUT reduction for fiscal years 2022-23  
K. Resolution amending the salary schedule effective July 3, 2022 
L. Resolution extending the rate assistance program for fiscal year 2022-23 
M. Resolution for ARPA 
N. Award authority memo for fiscal year 2022-23 
O. General Fund 5-year forecast 
P. Forecasted Fund balances 
Q. Budgeted Fund balance 
 
Report prepared by: 
Marvin Davis, Interim Finance Director 
Mary Morris-Mayorga, Administrative Services Director – Extra Help Retired Annuitant 
Nikki Nagaya, Public Works Director 

Page G-1.7

https://beta.menlopark.org/files/sharedassets/public/administrative-services/documents/finance/fy-2022-23-budget-workshop-presentation.pdf
https://beta.menlopark.org/files/sharedassets/public/administrative-services/documents/finance/fy-2022-23-budget-workshop-presentation.pdf
https://youtu.be/N2DDl5E-PpQ
https://stories.opengov.com/menlopark/published/zHpmGGiSG
https://stories.opengov.com/menlopark/published/zHpmGGiSG
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/5404/D3---General-Fund-Reserve-Update?bidId=
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/5404/D3---General-Fund-Reserve-Update?bidId=
https://beta.menlopark.org/Government/Departments/Administrative-Services/Finance/City-budget


Fund Department Service level description FTE Labor 

100 General Fund 132 City Clerk

Deputy City Clerk. Position would restore the needed backup for the 
City Clerk, assist with City Council related duties (e.g., agendas, 
resolutions, ordinances, minutes, etc.), and assist with Information 
Technology Master Plan items related to agenda, legislative and 
multimedia management.

1 $159,892

100 General Fund 133 Public Engagement

Graphic Designer. Would work with all departments to design and 
produce a variety of print and digital materials, both routine and 
complex; including publications, notices, social media and digital 
graphics for web and video.

1 $158,979

100 General Fund 170 Sustainability

Management Analyst I/II. To support climate adaption and resiliency 
projects and plans (e.g. local hazard mitigation plan, safety, 
environmental justice elements) to increase resiliency to negative 
impacts of climate change. The position would assist in coordinating 
across all departments, informing the organization and the community 
on climate adaptation, and providing ongoing long range planning and 
strategy support.  

1 $214,284

100 General Fund 210 Patrol

Community Service Officers. Request to restore two and add one 
(total 3.0) full-time Community Service Officers (CSOs) - two 
assigned to Patrol Division, and one added to the Training and Public 
Relations Unit.

3 $363,032

100 General Fund 210 Patrol

Traffic Unit and Staffing Support. Request to restore three full time 
sworn officer positions to support increased need for traffic support, 
management, and the return of workforce commuters and special 
events. The movement of three officer positions to Traffic from our 
current reduced staffing has made the permanent assignment of a 
dedicated traffic team unsustainable at current levels.

3 $588,186

100 General Fund 240 Administration

Emergency Preparedness Coordinator. Request to establish a 
dedicated and expert resource that is steadfastly committed to the 
City's interests and capable of connecting and coordinating with all 
available partner resources.  Although the position would reside within 
the police department, the focus would be on the entire organization. 
Position equivalent to Management Analyst I or Project Manager.

1 $169,896

100 General Fund 541 Gymnastics

Gymnastics. Request to add 5.75 FTE (2 Program assistants, 2.75 
Instructors, 1 Recreation Coordinator) to reactivate the gymnastics 
program, consistent with staffing levels for the gymnastics program 
prior to the pandemic. Personnel costs would be partially offset by 
program revenues.

5.75 $646,864

100 General Fund 630 Housing

Housing support. Request to add .5 FTE equivalent to a Management 
Analyst I/II to support the current and increased demand for 
administration and implementation of the City’s below market rate 
(BMR) program and other housing programs.

0.5 $86,535

Total General Fund 16.25 $2,387,668

222 Below Market 
Housing 630 Housing

Housing support. Request to add .5 FTE equivalent to a Management 
Analyst I/II to support the current and increased demand for 
administration and implementation of the City’s below market rate 
(BMR) program and other housing programs.

0.5 $86,535

501 General Capital 
Improvement 310 Facility/Capital

SAFER Bay staffing support. Request to add a provisional full-time 
Associate Engineer position to coordinate work on SAFER Bay, sea 
level rise adaptation plan implementation. Position would be funded 
by general capital funds partially reimbursed through anticipated 
FEMA Building Resilient Communities and Infrastructure grant.

1 $199,918

601 Water Operations 370 Water

Drought coordination and support. Request to add one full time 
Sustainability Specialist position to support increased drought 
coordination. Position would be funded by enterprise revenue funds 
(water operations fund).

1 $146,274

Total Citywide 18.75 $2,820,395

Parking Enforcement $500,000
Herbicide Free Median $230,000

$730,000

Attachment C: Service level enhancement request ATTACHMENT C

Page G-1.8



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
ADOPTING THE BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2022–23  

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its City Council, having considered 
the proposed budget document and related written and oral information at the meeting held 
June 14, 2022, and the City Council having been fully advised in the matter and good cause 
appearing therefore; and 

WHEREAS, City Council Procedure #19-001-CC having been replaced by City Council Policy 
#CC-21-024  requires City Council action to enter into agreements or settle claims with 
aggregate annual payments in excess of $86,000 for fiscal year 2022-23; however, 
expenditures in debt service on currently-issued debt, utilities, employee benefits, inter-
governmental agreements, and operating technological end-user hardware and subscription 
services included in the Information Technology Internal Service Fund exceed the annual 
aggregate of $86,000 through contractual obligations or public health and safety necessity; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park that: 
1. The proposed budget for the fiscal year 2022–23 set forth in Exhibit A and as modified by a

majority of the City Council during the review of the budget, is hereby adopted; and

2. The sums of money therein set forth are hereby appropriated from the revenues of the City
to the departments, functions, programs and funds therein set forth for expenditure during
the fiscal year 2022-2023; and

3. The Capital Improvement Program and projects presented for implementation in fiscal year
2022-2023 and set forth in Exhibit A is hereby adopted and approved; and

4. The City will carry forward unspent capital project funds and long-term studies from fiscal
year 2021-2022 and re-appropriate these funds in fiscal year 2022-2023 to be used solely to
pay for the remaining portion of City Council authorized capital expenditures and long-term
studies; and

5. The City Council hereby directs the City Manager to make payments for services provided to
the City including those in excess of $86,000 on debt service on currently-issued debt,
utilities, employee benefits, intergovernmental agreements, and operating technological
end-user hardware and subscription services included in the Information Technology
Internal Service Fund, and monitor and control the expenditures of each department and, at
the same time, approve modifications to each department within a specified fund, so long as
the total expenditures within the fund shall not be greater than the total approved
appropriations, unless offset by an equal Grant amount which does not commit the City to
additional funding or program requirements.

// 

// 

// 

ATTACHMENT H

Page G-1.9



I, Judi Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following vote:  

AYES:    

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022.  
 

_________________________ 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
Exhibits: 
A. Fiscal year 2022-23 budgeted fund balances 

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 4

Page G-1.10



FY 2022‐23 Budgeted Fund Balances

Fund Name and Category 6/30/2022 Rev & TI Exp & TO CIP Rev CIP Exp Sur/(Def) 6/30/2023

100 General  38,304,419$          73,984,171$  80,344,226$  ‐$ ‐$   (6,360,055)$        31,944,364$   
Non‐spendable prepaids 458,698                  458,698           
Project related, encumb 4,010,180               1,000,000       

Strategic pension funding 3,250,860               Actual % 2,250,860       
Emergency (Policy: 15‐20%) 10,300,000             15% 11,800,000     

Economic (Policy: 20‐25%) 12,711,700             20% 16,000,000     
Unassigned 7,572,981               434,806           

Total Reserve Breakdown 38,304,419             31,944,364     
One‐time, Developer, In‐lieu

111 One‐time  1,686,000               1,350,000       ‐  ‐  ‐  1,350,000           3,036,000       
258 CRRSA 19,834 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  19,834             
332 Bayfront Mitigation   6,932,487               2,561,226       ‐  ‐  ‐  2,561,226           9,493,713       
353 Downtown Public Amenity   2,503,707               10,000            ‐  ‐  300,000               (290,000)             2,213,707       
369 Community Amenities   9,405,000               20,900,000    ‐  ‐  ‐  20,900,000         30,305,000     
395 Developer Funded Projects ‐  2,250,000       2,250,000       ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
397 American Rescue Plan Act   7,382,917               ‐  3,717,830       ‐  ‐  (3,717,830)          3,665,087       
201 EIR Fees 11,455 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  11,455             
202 Miscellaneous Trust   249,134                  ‐  145,000          ‐  ‐  (145,000)             104,134           

Housing Activity

221 Housing Special Revenue   6,675,298               1,000               24,000             ‐  ‐  (23,000)                6,652,298       
222 Below Mrkt Rt Housing Spec Rev 32,410,870             6,800,000       583,432          ‐  ‐  6,216,568           38,627,439     
223 Federal Revenue Sharing 124,813                  500  4,000               ‐  ‐  (3,500)                  121,313           
224 Community Devlpmt Block Grant 1,380,789               1,500               4,000               ‐  ‐  (2,500)                  1,378,289       
364 HUT Repair and Maintenance 533,072                  793,824          ‐  ‐  950,000               (156,176)             376,896           

Library & Community Service ‐  ‐ 
203 Donations ‐ Library and CS (3,813) 145,000          ‐  ‐  ‐  145,000               141,187           
251 Big Lift (Library) 23,671 295,000          260,109          ‐  ‐  34,891                 58,563             
252 Childcare Food (Libray & CS) ‐  85,000            85,000             ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
253 Belle Haven Child Devlpmt Ctr 61,701 2,003,000       1,432,295       ‐  ‐  570,705               632,407           
254 Preschool‐QRIS 8,936  12,000            ‐  ‐  ‐  12,000                 20,936             
256 Recreation In‐Lieu 5,974,202               88,200            3,000,000       ‐  2,682,709           (5,594,509)          379,693           
304 Menlo Park Community Campus   13,621,837             3,000,000       79,163             ‐  16,440,716         (13,519,879)        101,958           
305 Diverse Literature LSTA 19,216 20,000            20,000             ‐  ‐  ‐  19,216             

Police Enforcement

327 Supp Law Enforcement Services 253,036                  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  253,036           
328 Downtown Parking Permits 4,635,473               100,000          195,600          ‐  2,400,000           (2,495,600)          2,139,873       

Transportation. Streets, Maint

211 Heritage Tree (Transporation related) 465,236                  10,000            ‐  ‐  135,000               (125,000)             340,236           
255 Senior Transportation (37,769)  43,700            ‐  ‐  ‐  43,700                 5,931               
351 Transportation Impact Fees 9,714,260               983,000          ‐  5,000,000       10,934,567         (4,951,567)          4,762,693       
352 Transportation   913,990                  ‐  ‐  ‐  909,692               (909,692)             4,298               
354 Storm Drainage Fees 96,760 1,800               97,000             ‐  ‐  (95,200)                1,560               
355 Shuttle Program 202,287                  1,293,151       1,192,227       ‐  ‐  100,924               303,211           
356 County Transp Tax (Measure A) 1,036,671               1,000,000       1,473,999       ‐  404,940               (878,939)             157,732           
357 Highway Users (Gas Tax)   3,061,736               1,021,080       19,613             ‐  4,050,940           (3,049,473)          12,263             
358 Landscape/Tree Assessment 893,050                  1,287,457       1,503,667       ‐  ‐  (216,210)             676,839           
359 Sidewalk Assessment 361,728                  305,838          27,050             ‐  302,512               (23,724)                338,004           
360 Measure M 135,524                  140,000          140,000          ‐  ‐  ‐  135,524           
361 Storm Water Management 358,136                  375,862          458,137          ‐  ‐  (82,275)                275,860           
362 Construction Impact Fee   5,227,809               865,000          85,775             ‐  3,787,020           (3,007,795)          2,220,014       
363 Measure W 1,001,468               425,000          ‐  ‐  750,000               (325,000)             676,468           
365 Landfill Post‐Closure 8,049,088               932,083          521,775          ‐  3,801,155           (3,390,847)          4,658,241       
366 Vintage Oaks Landscape ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
367 Sharon Hills Park 60 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  60 
375 CA Coastal Consv Priority Grant (8,249) ‐  ‐  500,000          ‐  500,000               491,751           
376 Caltrans ‐  ‐  ‐  426,000          ‐  426,000               426,000           
368 Bayfront Park Maintenance 708,317                  3,000               258,916          ‐  ‐  (255,916)             452,400           
370 Haven Avenue Streetscape Grant 600,000                  ‐  ‐  ‐  600,000               (600,000)             ‐ 
377 California State Parks Dept ‐  ‐  ‐  798,950          ‐  798,950               798,950           
396 CA Arrearage Program Water Res 52,380 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  52,380             

FY 2021‐22 Fcst FY 2022‐23 Budget
EXHIBIT AResolution No. XXXX 

Page 3 of 4

Page G-1.11



Attachment Q: FY 2022‐23 Budgeted Fund Balances

Fund Name and Category 6/30/2022 Rev & TI Exp & TO CIP Rev CIP Exp Sur/(Def) 6/30/2023

FY 2021‐22 Fcst FY 2022‐23 Budget

Transportation. Streets, Maint

501 General Capital Improvement   27,211,099             6,450,500       429,476          5,015,300       37,469,788         (26,433,464)        777,634           
521 SMC Transportation Authority (4,991)                     ‐                        ‐                        170,000          ‐                            170,000               165,009           
525 CA Coastal Consv Priority Grt 1,353                       ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            ‐                            1,353               

Debt Service

400 Library GO Bond 1990 362,585                  12,545            ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            12,545                 375,130           
401 Recreation GO Bond 3,447,590               2,375,456       2,350,456       ‐                        ‐                            25,000                 3,472,590       
500 Measure T 2002 GO Bond 2,048                       1,500               ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            1,500                   3,548               
510 Library Addition 122,446                  750                  ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            750                       123,196           

Water Activity

600 Water Capital   17,271,938             1,919,425       196,894          500,000          17,287,319         (15,064,788)        2,207,149       
601 Water Operations   32,561,132             13,914,073    10,933,719     ‐                        ‐                            2,980,354           35,541,486     
610 Solid Waste Service 2,792,267               674,038          276,505          ‐                        ‐                            397,533               3,189,800       

Internal Services

701 Workers' Compensation   1,217,655               923,217          1,819,722       ‐                        ‐                            (896,505)             321,150           
702 General Liability   (1,062,792)             2,582,824       1,286,150       ‐                        ‐                            1,296,674           233,882           
703 Other Post Employment Benefits 934,980                  ‐                        934,980          ‐                        ‐                            (934,980)             0                       
704 IT Internal Service   2,568,781               3,625,584       5,751,762       ‐                        ‐                            (2,126,178)          442,603           
705 Vehicle Replacement   2,713,793               1,396,380       1,570,000       ‐                        ‐                            (173,620)             2,540,173       

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 4 of 4

Page G-1.12



 

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK  
ADOPTING AN APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
FOR THE 2022-23 FISCAL YEAR PURSUANT TO ARTICLE XIII B OF THE 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 

 
WHEREAS, Article XIII B of the California Constitution (Proposition 4) provides for an annual 
appropriations limit for state and local governments beginning with the 1980-81 fiscal year, 
based on the 1978-79 appropriations, as adjusted for the changes in the cost of living or per 
capita personal income, population, and other specified factors; and 

 
WHEREAS, implementing legislation, which became effective January 1, 1981, provides that 
each year the governing body of each local jurisdiction shall, by resolution, establish its 
appropriations limit for the year pursuant to Article III B at a regularly scheduled meeting or 
noticed special meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, Proposition 111 subsequently amended Article XIII B of the California Constitution 
to provide for certain revisions in the population and inflation factors used in the calculation of 
the appropriations limit and to provide for a recalculation of the appropriation limit data for the 
fiscal years 1987-88 through 1990-91; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with applicable law, the appropriation limit for the City of Menlo Park 
for the 2022-23 fiscal year has been calculated to be $75,563,220, using such revisions and 
recalculations; and 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 7910 provides that documentation used in the 
determination of the appropriations limit shall be available to the public at least 15 days before 
such meeting, and such documentation was made available to the public on June 8, 2022 in the 
Examiner – Redwood City Tribune;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park that the 
City Council of Menlo Park hereby: 

 
1. Selects to use the change in the California per capita income as the cost of living adjustment 

factor, and elects to use the annual population change in the City of Menlo Park’s population 
for calculating the population adjustment factor. 
 

2. Determines the appropriations limit for fiscal year 2022-23 to be $75,563,220, as detailed in 
the calculations set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 

ATTACHMENT I

Page G-1.13



( 2 ) 

I, Judi Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following vote:  
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 
 
  
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
Exhibits: 
A. Appropriations limit for fiscal year 2022-23 

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 5

Page G-1.14



AMOUNT
A. LAST YEAR'S LIMIT 71,227,381$   

B. ADJUSTMENT FACTORS
1. Population - City 0.9864
2. Inflation 1.0755

1.0609

Total Adjustment % 0.0609

C. ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT 4,335,839$     

D. THIS YEAR'S LIMIT 75,563,220$   

E. PROCEEDS OF TAXES SUBJECT
TO LIMIT
Property Tax 34,693,781 2022-23 Proposed Budget
Sales Tax 6,621,444 2022-23 Proposed Budget
Other Taxes 10,605,299 2022-23 Proposed Budget
Special Assessments 2,350,456 2022-23 Proposed Budget
Interest Allocation 882,185 2022-23 Proposed Budget

55,153,165$   

F. AMOUNT UNDER/(OVER) LIMIT 20,410,055$   (D-E)

(B*A)

(A+C)

(B1*B2-1)

CITY OF MENLO PARK
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23

SOURCE
Prior Year

State Department of Finance
State Department of Finance

(B1*B2)

EXHIBIT AResolution No. XXXX 
Page 3 of 5

Page G-1.15



Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 4 of 5

Page G-1.16



 

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 5 of 5

Page G-1.17



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
DETERMINING THAT THE UTILITY USERS TAX, IS NECESSARY FOR THE 
FINANCIAL HEALTH OF THE CITY, PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.14 OF THE 
MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL CODE AND ESTABLISHING A TEMPORARY TAX 
PERCENTAGE REDUCTION IN THE UTILITY USERS TAX PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 3.14.130 OF THE MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL CODE 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 950 of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park, adopting a Utility 
Users Tax (“UUT”), became effective upon approval by a majority of voters at the General 
Election of November 7, 2006; and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 950 established Chapter 3.14 of the City of Menlo Park Municipal Code, 
known as the “Utility Users Tax Ordinance,” which imposed a communication users tax at a rate 
of 2.5 percent, an electricity users tax at a rate of 3.5 percent, a gas tax at the rate of 3.5 
percent, and a water users tax at the rate of 3.5 percent; and 

WHEREAS, the Utility Users Tax Ordinance, Section 3.14.310 requires that, in order to continue 
levying the UUT, the City Council shall review the need for the UUT not later than June 30, 
2008, and every two (2) years thereafter, and that the City Council make findings, by a two 
thirds (2/3) vote, that the UUT is necessary for the financial health of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Utility Users Tax Ordinance Section 3.14.130 allows the City Council to enact a 
Temporary Tax Percentage Reduction for a period of no more than twelve (12) months, 
provided adequate written notice is given to all affected service suppliers and the City Council 
makes a finding that the temporary tax reduction will not adversely affect the City’s ability to 
meet its financial obligations as contemplated in its current or its proposed budget; and  

WHEREAS, since fiscal year 2008–09, the City Council has temporarily reduced the tax to 1 
percent for all utilities in all previous years because the City Council found that the reduction 
would not adversely affect the City’s ability to meet its budgeted financial obligations; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Menlo Park defines financial health as the following:  

 The ability of the City to fund ongoing General Fund expenses with ongoing revenues, and
not rely on one-time resources (e.g., reserves, stimulus funds, proceeds from land sales,
etc.) to fund ongoing services;

 The ability of the City to maintain appropriate reserves levels consistent with best practices
in local government financial management and City Council approved financial policies in
order to preserve the long-term financial health of the City; and

 The ability of the City to minimally provide adequate service levels that meet community
needs and that is both stable and sustainable, even when faced with severe economic
downturn.

WHEREAS, on June 8, 2021, City staff recommended to the City Council a balanced budget 
that included a necessary $1.7 million in revenue from the UUT at the reduced rate of 1 percent; 
and 

WHEREAS, the UUT revenues the City has and will receive over fiscal years 2022-23 and 
2023-24 will be necessary for the City’s financial health, if the City does not receive this 

ATTACHMENT J

Page G-1.18



 

revenue, it will lose approximately $3.2 million in revenues; and its’ unassigned fund balance will 
drop by this amount.  Also, additional service level enhancements to restore City services 
suspended during the pandemic as outlined in Attachment C to Staff Report 22-123-CC might 
not be approved.  Staff’s 5-Year forecast outlined in Attachment O to Staff Report 22-123-CC 
demonstrates reserve balances over these fiscal years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the UUT is necessary for the financial health of the City 
pursuant to the Utility Users Tax Ordinance, Section 3.14.310; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council now finds that reducing the UUT to 1 percent shall not adversely 
affect the City’s ability to meet its financial obligations as contemplated in the budget for the 
fiscal year 2022-23, considered and adopted at its regular meeting of June 28, 2022. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
finds the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by reference 
into this Resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park hereby 
resolves as follows: 
 
1. The City Council finds and determines, pursuant to section 3.14.310 of the City’s Municipal 

Code, that the Utility Users Tax (UUT) is necessary for the City’s financial health. 
 

2. The City Council establishes a temporary reduction in the UUT rate, maintaining the current 
reduced rate of one percent (1.0%) for taxes imposed by sections 3.14.040 through 
3.14.070 for a period of no more than twelve (12) months, effective October 1, 2022.  No 
other provisions of the Utility Users Tax Ordinance are affected by this resolution. Nothing 
herein shall preclude the City Council from modifying the tax rate set herein during said 
twelve-month period.  

 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing City Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by 
said City Council on this twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022.   
 
 
_____________________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 2

Page G-1.19



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
AMENDING THE SALARY SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Personnel System Rules, the City Manager prepared a 
Compensation Plan; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following compensation provisions shall be 
established in accordance with the City’s Personnel System rules. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any previous enacted compensation provisions contained in 
Resolution No. 6620 and subsequent amendments shall be superseded by this Resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the changes contained on Exhibit A shall be effective July 3, 
2022. 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Council 
on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
  
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
Exhibits: 
A. Salary schedule effective July 3, 2022 

ATTACHMENT K

Page G-1.20



City of Menlo Park
PROPOSED Salary Schedule - Effective 07/03/2022

Page 1 of 4
Annual Salaries based on 2080 hours per year except

 where set by contract or noted  Resolution No.XXXX

Classification Title Minimum (Step A)  Step B  Step C  Step D Maximum (Step E)

Accountant I  $ 87,734  $ 92,122  $ 96,728  $ 101,565  $ 106,643 
Accountant I  $ 85,179  $ 89,439  $ 93,911  $ 98,606  $ 103,537 
Accountant II  $ 96,095  $ 100,637  $ 105,385  $ 110,453  $ 115,717 
Accountant II  $ 93,296  $ 97,706  $ 102,315  $ 107,236  $ 112,347 

Accounting Assistant I  $ 62,216  $ 65,165  $ 68,174  $ 71,359  $ 74,661 
Accounting Assistant I  $ 60,404  $ 63,267  $ 66,188  $ 69,281  $ 72,486 
Accounting Assistant II  $ 68,174  $ 71,359  $ 74,661  $ 78,150  $ 81,818 
Accounting Assistant II  $ 66,188  $ 69,281  $ 72,486  $ 75,874  $ 79,434 
Administrative Assistant  $ 68,379  $ 71,573  $ 74,885  $ 78,385  $ 82,063 
Administrative Assistant  $ 66,387  $ 69,488  $ 72,704  $ 76,102  $ 79,673 

Administrative Services Director  $ 165,347  Open Range  $ 234,259 
Administrative Services Director  $ 160,531  Open Range  $ 227,436 

Assistant Administrative Services Director  $ 130,376  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Assistant Administrative Services Director  $ 126,578  Open Range  $ 181,949 

Assistant City Manager  $ 174,616  Open Range  $ 257,685 
Assistant City Manager  $ 169,530  Open Range  $ 250,180 

Assistant Community Development Director  $ 130,376  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Assistant Community Development Director  $ 126,578  Open Range  $ 181,949 

Assistant Community Services Director  $ 133,380  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Assistant Community Services Director  $ 129,495  Open Range  $ 181,949 

Assistant Engineer  $ 105,817  $ 110,859  $ 116,160  $ 121,705  $ 127,503 
Assistant Engineer  $ 102,735  $ 107,630  $ 112,777  $ 118,161  $ 123,790 

Assistant Library Services Director  $ 133,380  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Assistant Library Services Director  $ 129,495  Open Range  $ 181,949 

Assistant Planner  $ 95,875  $ 100,383  $ 105,195  $ 110,208  $ 115,473 
Assistant Planner  $ 93,082  $ 97,460  $ 102,131  $ 106,998  $ 112,109 

Assistant Public Works Director  $ 144,870  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Assistant Public Works Director  $ 140,650  Open Range  $ 181,949 
Assistant to the City Manager  $ 125,490  Open Range  $ 163,981 
Assistant to the City Manager  $ 121,835  Open Range  $ 159,205 

Assistant to the City Manager / City Clerk  $ 125,490  Open Range  $ 163,981 
Assistant Transportation Planner  $ 95,875  $ 100,383  $ 105,195  $ 110,208  $ 115,473 
Assistant Transportation Planner  $ 93,082  $ 97,460  $ 102,131  $ 106,998  $ 112,109 

Associate Civil Engineer  $ 118,735  $ 124,419  $ 130,350  $ 136,648  $ 143,267 
Associate Civil Engineer  $ 115,277  $ 120,796  $ 126,554  $ 132,668  $ 139,094 

Associate Engineer  $ 112,205  $ 117,576  $ 123,182  $ 129,133  $ 135,388 
Associate Engineer  $ 108,937  $ 114,152  $ 119,594  $ 125,371  $ 131,444 
Associate Planner  $ 105,195  $ 110,208  $ 115,473  $ 120,998  $ 126,789 
Associate Planner  $ 102,131  $ 106,998  $ 112,109  $ 117,474  $ 123,096 

Associate Transportation Engineer  $ 124,419  $ 130,350  $ 136,648  $ 143,267  $ 150,209 
Associate Transportation Engineer  $ 120,796  $ 126,554  $ 132,668  $ 139,094  $ 145,834 
Associate Transportation Planner  $ 105,195  $ 110,208  $ 115,473  $ 120,998  $ 126,789 
Associate Transportation Planner  $ 102,131  $ 106,998  $ 112,109  $ 117,474  $ 123,096 

Asst. Public Works Director - Engineering  $ 144,870  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Asst. Public Works Director - Engineering  $ 140,650  Open Range  $ 181,949 
Asst. Public Works Director - Maintenance  $ 144,870  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Asst. Public Works Director - Maintenance  $ 140,650  Open Range  $ 181,949 

Asst. Public Works Director - Transportation  $ 144,870  Open Range  $ 187,407 
Asst. Public Works Director - Transportation  $ 140,650  Open Range  $ 181,949 

Building Custodian  $ 62,154  $ 65,100  $ 68,106  $ 71,288  $ 74,587 
Building Custodian  $ 60,344  $ 63,204  $ 66,122  $ 69,211  $ 72,414 
Building Inspector I  $ 92,657  $ 97,113  $ 101,742  $ 106,606  $ 111,696 
Building Inspector I  $ 89,959  $ 94,284  $ 98,778  $ 103,501  $ 108,443 
Building Inspector II  $ 101,923  $ 106,824  $ 111,916  $ 117,266  $ 122,866 
Building Inspector II  $ 98,954  $ 103,713  $ 108,656  $ 113,851  $ 119,287 
Business Manager  $ 105,192  $ 110,250  $ 115,505  $ 121,028  $ 126,807 
Business Manager  $ 102,128  $ 107,039  $ 112,141  $ 117,503  $ 123,113 

Chief Water Operator  $ 101,983  $ 106,843  $ 111,948  $ 117,304  $ 122,918 
Chief Water Operator  $ 99,013  $ 103,731  $ 108,687  $ 113,887  $ 119,338 
Child Care Teacher I  $ 55,614  $ 58,136  $ 60,769  $ 63,538  $ 66,544 
Child Care Teacher I  $ 53,994  $ 56,443  $ 58,999  $ 61,688  $ 64,606 
Child Care Teacher II  $ 62,154  $ 65,100  $ 68,106  $ 71,288  $ 74,587 
Child Care Teacher II  $ 60,344  $ 63,204  $ 66,122  $ 69,211  $ 72,414 

Child Care Teacher's Aide  $ 41,726  $ 43,614  $ 45,587  $ 47,629  $ 49,732 
Child Care Teacher's Aide  $ 40,511  $ 42,344  $ 44,259  $ 46,242  $ 48,283 

City Arborist  $ 105,789  $ 110,860  $ 116,143  $ 121,691  $ 127,514 
City Arborist  $ 102,708  $ 107,632  $ 112,760  $ 118,147  $ 123,800 
City Clerk  $ 125,490  Open Range  $ 163,981 
City Clerk  $ 121,835  Open Range  $ 159,205 

City Councilmember  n/a  Annual Rate  $ 7,680 
City Manager  $ 203,533  Open Range  $ 281,111 
City Manager  $ 197,605  Open Range  $ 272,924 

Code Enforcement Officer  $ 87,678  $ 91,822  $ 96,153  $ 100,778  $ 105,581 
Code Enforcement Officer  $ 85,124  $ 89,148  $ 93,353  $ 97,843  $ 102,506 

Communications and Records Manager  $ 121,823  $ 127,735  $ 133,870  $ 140,325  $ 147,074 
Communications and Records Manager  $ 118,275  $ 124,015  $ 129,971  $ 136,238  $ 142,791 

Communications Dispatcher  $ 88,905  $ 93,108  $ 97,500  $ 102,189  $ 107,059 
Communications Dispatcher  $ 86,315  $ 90,396  $ 94,660  $ 99,212  $ 103,941 

Communications Training Dispatcher  $ 93,108  $ 97,500  $ 102,189  $ 107,059  $ 112,178 
Communications Training Dispatcher  $ 90,396  $ 94,660  $ 99,212  $ 103,941  $ 108,911 
Community Development Director  $ 165,126  Open Range  $ 234,259 
Community Development Director  $ 160,316  Open Range  $ 227,436 

Community Development Technician  $ 74,567  $ 78,019  $ 81,665  $ 85,496  $ 89,514 
Community Development Technician  $ 72,395  $ 75,746  $ 79,286  $ 83,006  $ 86,907 

EXHIBIT AResolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 5

Page G-1.21



City of Menlo Park
PROPOSED Salary Schedule - Effective 07/03/2022

Page 2 of 4
Annual Salaries based on 2080 hours per year except

 where set by contract or noted  Resolution No.XXXX

Classification Title Minimum (Step A)  Step B  Step C  Step D Maximum (Step E)

Community Service Officer  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871  $                     83,662  $                     87,678 
Community Service Officer  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545  $                     81,225  $                     85,124 

Construction Inspector I  $                     87,412  $                     91,617  $                     95,983  $                   100,572  $                   105,374 
Construction Inspector I  $                     84,866  $                     88,948  $                     93,187  $                     97,642  $                   102,304 
Construction Inspector II  $                     96,153  $                   100,778  $                   105,581  $                   110,629  $                   115,911 
Construction Inspector II  $                     93,353  $                     97,843  $                   102,506  $                   107,407  $                   112,535 

Contracts Specialist  $                     76,990  $                     80,610 84,343$                      $                     88,347  $                     92,587 
Contracts Specialist  $                     74,748  $                     78,263  $                     81,887  $                     85,773  $                     89,891 

Custodial Services Supervisor  $                     71,518  $                     74,828  $                     78,324  $                     82,000  $                     85,853 
Custodial Services Supervisor  $                     69,435  $                     72,648  $                     76,043  $                     79,611  $                     83,352 

Deputy City Clerk  $                     79,862  $                     83,662  $                     87,678  $                     91,822  $                     96,153 
Deputy City Clerk  $                     77,536  $                     81,225  $                     85,124  $                     89,148  $                     93,353 

Deputy City Manager  $                   169,611    Open Range    $                   234,259 
Deputy City Manager  $                   164,671    Open Range    $                   227,436 

Deputy Comm. Dev. Director - Housing  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Deputy Comm. Dev. Director - Housing  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Economic Development Manager  $                   125,490    Open Range    $                   163,981 
Economic Development Manager  $                   121,835    Open Range    $                   159,205 
Engineering Services Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Engineering Services Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Engineering Technician I  $                     80,152  $                     83,864  $                     87,845  $                     92,061  $                     96,413 
Engineering Technician I  $                     77,818  $                     81,421  $                     85,286  $                     89,379  $                     93,605 
Engineering Technician II  $                     89,855  $                     94,082  $                     98,506  $                   103,229  $                   108,148 
Engineering Technician II  $                     87,237  $                     91,342  $                     95,637  $                   100,222  $                   104,998 

Enterprise Applications Administrator  $                   118,341  $                   123,962  $                   129,850  $                   136,083  $                   142,657 
Enterprise Applications Administrator  $                   114,894  $                   120,351  $                   126,068  $                   132,119  $                   138,502 

Enterprise Applications Support Specialist I  $                     94,840  $                     99,582  $                   104,561  $                   109,789  $                   115,279 
Enterprise Applications Support Specialist I  $                     92,078  $                     96,682  $                   101,516  $                   106,591  $                   111,921 
Enterprise Applications Support Specialist II  $                   105,192  $                   110,250  $                   115,505  $                   121,028  $                   126,807 
Enterprise Applications Support Specialist II  $                   102,128  $                   107,039  $                   112,141  $                   117,503  $                   123,113 

Equipment Mechanic  $                     79,862  $                     83,662  $                     87,678  $                     91,822  $                     96,153 
Equipment Mechanic  $                     77,536  $                     81,225  $                     85,124  $                     89,148  $                     93,353 
Executive Assistant  $                     78,073  $                     81,736  $                     85,576  $                     89,602  $                     93,816 
Executive Assistant  $                     75,799  $                     79,356  $                     83,084  $                     86,992  $                     91,083 

Executive Assistant to the City Mgr  $                     83,173  $                     87,331  $                     91,698  $                     96,283  $                   101,096 
Executive Assistant to the City Mgr  $                     80,750  $                     84,788  $                     89,027  $                     93,478  $                     98,151 

Extra Help Retired Annuitant  $                     31,200    Open Range    $                   249,600 
Facilities Maintenance Technician I  $                     66,544  $                     69,608  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871 
Facilities Maintenance Technician I  $                     64,606  $                     67,581  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545 
Facilities Maintenance Technician II  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871  $                     83,662  $                     87,678 
Facilities Maintenance Technician II  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545  $                     81,225  $                     85,124 

Finance and Budget Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Finance and Budget Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Finance Director  $                   165,125    Open Range    $                   234,259 
Finance Director  $                   160,316    Open Range    $                   227,436 

GIS Analyst I  $                     92,043  $                     96,646  $                   101,479  $                   106,553  $                   111,881 
GIS Analyst I  $                     89,362  $                     93,831  $                     98,523  $                   103,449  $                   108,622 
GIS Analyst II  $                   105,192  $                   110,250  $                   115,505  $                   121,028  $                   126,807 
GIS Analyst II  $                   102,128  $                   107,039  $                   112,141  $                   117,503  $                   123,113 

Gymnastics Instructor  $                     44,525  $                     46,539  $                     48,641  $                     50,812  $                     53,148 
Gymnastics Instructor  $                     43,228  $                     45,184  $                     47,224  $                     49,332  $                     51,600 

Housing & Economic Development Manager  $                   125,490    Open Range    $                   163,981 
Housing & Economic Development Manager  $                   121,835    Open Range    $                   159,205 

Housing Manager  $                   125,490    Open Range    $                   163,981 
Housing Manager  $                   121,835    Open Range    $                   159,205 

Human Resources Director  $                   165,347    Open Range    $                   234,259 
Human Resources Director  $                   160,531    Open Range    $                   227,436 
Human Resources Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Human Resources Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Human Resources Technician I  $                     72,243  $                     75,661  $                     79,039  $                     82,895  $                     86,794 
Human Resources Technician I  $                     70,139  $                     73,457  $                     76,737  $                     80,481  $                     84,266 
Human Resources Technician II  $                     79,467  $                     83,227  $                     86,943  $                     91,185  $                     95,473 
Human Resources Technician II  $                     77,153  $                     80,803  $                     84,411  $                     88,529  $                     92,693 
Information Technology Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Information Technology Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Information Technology Specialist I  $                     77,815  $                     81,707  $                     85,792  $                     90,083  $                     94,588 
Information Technology Specialist I  $                     75,549  $                     79,327  $                     83,293  $                     87,459  $                     91,833 
Information Technology Specialist II  $                     86,460  $                     90,523  $                     94,781  $                     99,238  $                   103,997 
Information Technology Specialist II  $                     83,942  $                     87,886  $                     92,020  $                     96,348  $                   100,968 

Internal Services Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Internal Services Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Junior Engineer  $                     85,362  $                     89,630  $                     94,112  $                     98,818  $                   103,759 
Junior Engineer  $                     82,876  $                     87,020  $                     91,371  $                     95,940  $                   100,737 

Librarian I  $                     74,587  $                     78,073  $                     81,736  $                     85,576  $                     89,602 
Librarian I  $                     72,414  $                     75,799  $                     79,356  $                     83,084  $                     86,992 
Librarian II  $                     83,662  $                     87,678  $                     91,822  $                     96,153  $                   100,778 
Librarian II  $                     81,225  $                     85,124  $                     89,148  $                     93,353  $                     97,843 

Library and Community Services Director  $                   161,038    Open Range    $                   234,259 
Library and Community Services Director  $                   156,348    Open Range    $                   227,436 

Library and Community Services Supervisor  $                     96,464  $                   101,103  $                   105,920  $                   110,985  $                   116,285 
Library and Community Services Supervisor  $                     93,654  $                     98,158  $                   102,835  $                   107,753  $                   112,898 

Library Assistant I  $                     58,136  $                     60,769  $                     63,538  $                     66,544  $                     69,608 
Library Assistant I  $                     56,443  $                     58,999  $                     61,688  $                     64,606  $                     67,581 

Page G-1.22



City of Menlo Park
PROPOSED Salary Schedule - Effective 07/03/2022

Page 3 of 4
Annual Salaries based on 2080 hours per year except

 where set by contract or noted  Resolution No.XXXX

Classification Title Minimum (Step A)  Step B  Step C  Step D Maximum (Step E)

Library Assistant II  $                     63,538  $                     66,544  $                     69,515  $                     72,907  $                     76,336 
Library Assistant II  $                     61,688  $                     64,606  $                     67,490  $                     70,784  $                     74,112 
Library Assistant III  $                     69,515  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871  $                     83,577 
Library Assistant III  $                     67,490  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545  $                     81,143 

Library Services Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Library Services Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 
Literacy Program Manager  $                     85,853  $                     89,891  $                     94,118  $                     98,630  $                   103,330 
Literacy Program Manager  $                     83,352  $                     87,273  $                     91,376  $                     95,757  $                   100,320 

Maintenance Worker I  $                     63,538  $                     66,544  $                     69,515  $                     72,907  $                     76,336 
Maintenance Worker I  $                     61,688  $                     64,606  $                     67,490  $                     70,784  $                     74,112 
Maintenance Worker II  $                     69,515  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871  $                     83,662 
Maintenance Worker II  $                     67,490  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545  $                     81,225 
Management Analyst I  $                     92,043  $                     96,646  $                   101,479  $                   106,553  $                   111,881 
Management Analyst I  $                     89,362  $                     93,831  $                     98,523  $                   103,449  $                   108,622 

Management Analyst II  $                   105,192  $                   110,250  $                   115,505  $                   121,028  $                   126,807 

Management Analyst II  $                   102,128  $                   107,039  $                   112,141  $                   117,503  $                   123,113 

Network Administrator  $                   123,426  $                   129,334  $                   135,500  $                   142,046  $                   148,927 
Network Administrator  $                   119,831  $                   125,567  $                   131,553  $                   137,909  $                   144,589 

Office Assistant  $                     57,097  $                     59,701  $                     62,403  $                     65,360  $                     68,379 
Office Assistant  $                     55,434  $                     57,962  $                     60,585  $                     63,457  $                     66,387 

Parking Enforcement Officer  $                     63,538  $                     66,544  $                     69,515  $                     72,907  $                     76,336 
Parking Enforcement Officer  $                     61,688  $                     64,606  $                     67,490  $                     70,784  $                     74,112 

Permit Manager  $                   119,656  $                   125,381  $                   131,382  $                   137,644  $                   144,295 
Permit Manager  $                   116,171  $                   121,729  $                   127,555  $                   133,635  $                   140,092 

Permit Technician  $                     74,567  $                     78,018  $                     81,665  $                     85,496  $                     89,513 
Permit Technician  $                     72,395  $                     75,745  $                     79,286  $                     83,006  $                     86,905 

Plan Check Engineer  $                   119,866  $                   125,604  $                   131,591  $                   137,949  $                   144,631 
Plan Check Engineer  $                   116,375  $                   121,946  $                   127,759  $                   133,931  $                   140,418 

Planning Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Planning Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Planning Technician  $                     85,496  $                     89,513  $                     93,724  $                     98,131  $                   102,836 
Planning Technician  $                     83,006  $                     86,905  $                     90,994  $                     95,273  $                     99,841 

Police Chief  $                   178,414    Open Range    $                   257,685 
Police Chief  $                   173,217    Open Range    $                   250,180 

Police Commander  $                   160,572    Open Range    $                   234,259 
Police Commander  $                   155,896    Open Range    $                   227,436 

Police Corporal (2080 hours)  $                   115,707  $                   121,493  $                   127,567  $                   133,945  $                   140,643 
Police Corporal (2080 hours)  $                   112,337  $                   117,954  $                   123,852  $                   130,044  $                   136,546 
Police Corporal (2184 hours)  $                   121,492  $                   127,567  $                   133,946  $                   140,643  $                   147,675 
Police Corporal (2184 hours)  $                   117,954  $                   123,852  $                   130,044  $                   136,546  $                   143,373 
Police Officer (2080 hours)  $                   107,510  $                   112,884  $                   118,528  $                   124,455  $                   130,678 
Police Officer (2080 hours)  $                   104,378  $                   109,597  $                   115,076  $                   120,830  $                   126,872 
Police Officer (2184 hours)  $                   112,885  $                   118,529  $                   124,455  $                   130,678  $                   137,212 
Police Officer (2184 hours)  $                   109,597  $                   115,076  $                   120,830  $                   126,872  $                   133,216 
Police Records Specialist  $                     69,515  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871  $                     83,662 
Police Records Specialist  $                     67,490  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545  $                     81,225 

Police Recruit  n/a    Hourly Rate    $                     87,083 
Police Recruit  n/a    Hourly Rate    $                     84,546 

Police Sergeant (2080 hours)  $                   129,192  $                   135,651  $                   142,434  $                   149,556  $                   157,033 
Police Sergeant (2184 hours)  $                   135,651  $                   142,434  $                   149,556  $                   157,033  $                   164,885 

Principal Planner  $                   127,020  $                   134,973  $                   141,433  $                   148,174  $                   153,174 
Principal Planner  $                   123,321  $                   131,042  $                   137,313  $                   143,859  $                   148,713 

Program Aide/Driver  $                     39,920  $                     41,726  $                     43,614  $                     45,587  $                     47,629 
Program Aide/Driver  $                     38,757  $                     40,511  $                     42,344  $                     44,259  $                     46,242 
Program Assistant  $                     56,871  $                     59,463  $                     62,154  $                     65,100  $                     68,106 
Program Assistant  $                     55,214  $                     57,732  $                     60,344  $                     63,204  $                     66,122 
Project Manager  $                   112,205  $                   117,576  $                   123,182  $                   129,133  $                   135,388 
Project Manager  $                   108,937  $                   114,152  $                   119,594  $                   125,371  $                   131,444 

Property and Court Specialist  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871  $                     83,662  $                     87,678 
Property and Court Specialist  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545  $                     81,225  $                     85,124 
Public Engagement Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Public Engagement Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Public Works Director  $                   169,611    Open Range    $                   234,259 
Public Works Director  $                   164,671    Open Range    $                   227,436 

Public Works Superintendent  $                   128,081    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Public Works Superintendent  $                   124,351    Open Range    $                   170,578 

Public Works Supervisor - Facilities  $                   106,541  $                   111,649  $                   116,969  $                   122,558  $                   128,421 
Public Works Supervisor - Facilities  $                   103,438  $                   108,397  $                   113,562  $                   118,988  $                   124,681 

Public Works Supervisor - Fleet  $                   108,236  $                   113,425  $                   118,829  $                   124,506  $                   130,463 
Public Works Supervisor - Fleet  $                   105,083  $                   110,121  $                   115,368  $                   120,880  $                   126,663 
Public Works Supervisor - Park  $                   100,707  $                   105,534  $                   110,563  $                   115,845  $                   121,388 
Public Works Supervisor - Park  $                     97,773  $                   102,460  $                   107,343  $                   112,471  $                   117,853 

Public Works Supervisor - Streets  $                   100,707  $                   105,534  $                   110,563  $                   115,845  $                   121,388 
Public Works Supervisor - Streets  $                     97,773  $                   102,460  $                   107,343  $                   112,471  $                   117,853 

Recreation Coordinator  $                     74,828  $                     78,324  $                     82,000  $                     85,853  $                     89,891 
Recreation Coordinator  $                     72,648  $                     76,043  $                     79,611  $                     83,352  $                     87,273 
Recreation Supervisor  $                     92,119  $                     96,464  $                   101,103  $                   105,920  $                   110,985 

Revenue and Claims Manager  $                   105,192  $                   110,250  $                   115,505  $                   121,028  $                   126,807 
Revenue and Claims Manager  $                   102,128  $                   107,039  $                   112,141  $                   117,503  $                   123,113 

Page G-1.23



City of Menlo Park
PROPOSED Salary Schedule - Effective 07/03/2022

Page 4 of 4
Annual Salaries based on 2080 hours per year except

 where set by contract or noted  Resolution No.XXXX

Classification Title Minimum (Step A)  Step B  Step C  Step D Maximum (Step E)

Senior Accountant  $                   110,509  $                   115,734  $                   121,193  $                   127,022  $                   133,075 
Senior Accountant  $                   107,290  $                   112,363  $                   117,663  $                   123,322  $                   129,199 

Senior Accounting Assistant  $                     74,991  $                     78,495  $                     82,127  $                     85,965  $                     89,999 
Senior Accounting Assistant  $                     72,807  $                     76,209  $                     79,735  $                     83,462  $                     87,378 

Senior Building Inspector  $                   114,394  $                   119,866  $                   125,604  $                   131,591  $                   137,949 
Senior Building Inspector  $                   111,062  $                   116,375  $                   121,946  $                   127,759  $                   133,931 

Senior Civil Engineer  $                   130,770  $                   137,087  $                   143,729  $                   150,693  $                   158,036 
Senior Civil Engineer  $                   126,961  $                   133,094  $                   139,543  $                   146,304  $                   153,433 

Senior Communications Dispatcher  $                     97,500  $                   102,189  $                   107,059  $                   112,178  $                   117,533 
Senior Communications Dispatcher  $                     94,660  $                     99,212  $                   103,941  $                   108,911  $                   114,110 

Senior Construction Inspector  $                   105,769  $                   110,856  $                   116,139  $                   121,707  $                   127,793 
Senior Construction Inspector  $                   102,688  $                   107,627  $                   112,757  $                   118,162  $                   124,071 
Senior Engineering Technician  $                     96,413  $                   100,962  $                   105,817  $                   110,859  $                   116,160 
Senior Engineering Technician  $                     93,605  $                     98,021  $                   102,735  $                   107,630  $                   112,777 
Senior Equipment Mechanic  $                     87,868  $                     92,155  $                     96,489  $                   100,958  $                   105,749 
Senior Equipment Mechanic  $                     85,309  $                     89,471  $                     93,679  $                     98,018  $                   102,669 

Senior Facilities Maintenance Technician  $                     79,862  $                     83,662  $                     87,678  $                     91,822  $                     96,153 
Senior Facilities Maintenance Technician  $                     77,536  $                     81,225  $                     85,124  $                     89,148  $                     93,353 

Senior GIS Analyst  $                   118,340  $                   123,962  $                   129,850  $                   136,083  $                   142,657 
Senior GIS Analyst  $                   114,894  $                   120,351  $                   126,068  $                   132,119  $                   138,502 

Senior Human Resources Technician  $                     87,414  $                     91,550  $                     95,637  $                   100,303  $                   105,021 
Senior Human Resources Technician  $                     84,868  $                     88,883  $                     92,852  $                     97,382  $                   101,962 

Senior Librarian  $                     94,114  $                     98,820  $                   103,761  $                   108,949  $                   114,396 
Senior Library Assistant  $                     76,467  $                     80,198  $                     83,969  $                     87,858  $                     91,935 
Senior Library Assistant  $                     74,239  $                     77,862  $                     81,524  $                     85,299  $                     89,257 

Senior Maintenance Worker  $                     79,862  $                     83,662  $                     87,678  $                     91,822  $                     96,153 
Senior Maintenance Worker  $                     77,536  $                     81,225  $                     85,124  $                     89,148  $                     93,353 
Senior Management Analyst  $                   118,340  $                   123,962  $                   129,850  $                   136,083  $                   142,657 
Senior Management Analyst  $                   114,894  $                   120,351  $                   126,068  $                   132,119  $                   138,502 

Senior Office Assistant  $                     62,403  $                     65,360  $                     68,379  $                     71,573  $                     74,885 
Senior Office Assistant  $                     60,585  $                     63,457  $                     66,387  $                     69,488  $                     72,704 

Senior Planner  $                   115,473  $                   120,998  $                   126,789  $                   132,833  $                   139,250 
Senior Planner  $                   112,109  $                   117,474  $                   123,096  $                   128,964  $                   135,194 

Senior Police Records Specialist  $                     72,907  $                     76,336  $                     79,871  $                     83,662  $                     87,678 
Senior Police Records Specialist  $                     70,784  $                     74,112  $                     77,545  $                     81,225  $                     85,124 

Senior Program Assistant  $                     69,066  $                     72,294  $                     75,687  $                     79,242  $                     82,971 
Senior Program Assistant  $                     67,054  $                     70,188  $                     73,482  $                     76,934  $                     80,554 
Senior Project Manager  $                   123,426  $                   129,334  $                   135,500  $                   142,046  $                   148,927 
Senior Project Manager  $                   119,831  $                   125,567  $                   131,553  $                   137,909  $                   144,589 

Senior Sustainability Specialist  $                     86,614  $                     90,757  $                     95,101  $                     99,635  $                   104,448 
Senior Sustainability Specialist  $                     84,091  $                     88,114  $                     92,331  $                     96,733  $                   101,406 
Senior Transportation Engineer  $                   130,770  $                   137,087  $                   143,729  $                   150,693  $                   158,036 
Senior Transportation Engineer  $                   126,961  $                   133,094  $                   139,543  $                   146,304  $                   153,433 
Senior Transportation Planner  $                   115,473  $                   120,998  $                   126,789  $                   132,833  $                   139,250 
Senior Transportation Planner  $                   112,109  $                   117,474  $                   123,096  $                   128,964  $                   135,194 
Senior Water System Operator  $                     81,945  $                     85,738  $                     89,745  $                     93,956  $                     98,369 
Senior Water System Operator  $                     79,558  $                     83,241  $                     87,131  $                     91,219  $                     95,504 

Sustainability Manager  $                   125,490    Open Range    $                   163,981 
Sustainability Manager  $                   121,835    Open Range    $                   159,205 
Sustainability Specialist  $                     74,587  $                     78,073  $                     81,736  $                     85,576  $                     89,602 
Sustainability Specialist  $                     72,414  $                     75,799  $                     79,356  $                     83,084  $                     86,992 
Systems Administrator  $                   118,340  $                   123,962  $                   129,850  $                   136,083  $                   142,657 
Systems Administrator  $                   114,894  $                   120,351  $                   126,068  $                   132,119  $                   138,502 

Transportation Demand Management Coord.  $                     98,314  $                   102,997  $                   107,919  $                   113,082  $                   118,494 
Transportation Demand Management Coord.  $                     95,450  $                     99,997  $                   104,775  $                   109,788  $                   115,043 

Transportation Director  $                   169,611    Open Range    $                   234,259 
Transportation Director  $                   164,671    Open Range    $                   227,436 
Transportation Manager  $                   130,350    Open Range    $                   175,695 
Transportation Manager  $                   126,553    Open Range    $                   170,578 
Water Quality Specialist  $                     83,084  $                     86,992  $                     91,083  $                     95,450  $                     99,997 
Water Quality Specialist  $                     83,084  $                     86,992  $                     91,083  $                     95,450  $                     99,997 
Water System Operator I  $                     68,090  $                     71,141  $                     74,296  $                     77,967  $                     81,596 
Water System Operator I  $                     66,107  $                     69,069  $                     72,132  $                     75,696  $                     79,219 
Water System Operator II  $                     74,495  $                     77,944  $                     81,586  $                     85,414  $                     89,427 
Water System Operator II  $                     72,325  $                     75,673  $                     79,210  $                     82,926  $                     86,822 

Page G-1.24



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK TO 
EXTEND THE SOLID WASTE AND WATER RATE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, as of June 16, 2020 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6563 to support the 
black lives matter movement, which emphasizes inclusion and equity within the community 
through City policies and services; and 

WHEREAS, to promote equity and support Menlo Park’s diverse community, establishing a rate 
assistance program helps low-income households to cover basic living expenses; and 

WHEREAS, some rate assistance programs, such as Pacific Gas & Electricity (PG&E) California 
Alternative Rate Energy (CARE) program, offer a monthly minimum discount of 20 percent on gas 
and electricity; and  

WHEREAS, due to the current COVID-19 pandemic and solid waste and water rate increases, 
some residential customers may be financially impacted; and 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2020 during a study session, the City Council supported establishment 
of a rate assistance program for solid waste rates at a 20 percent discount; and  

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2020 during a study session, the City Council supported 
establishment of a rate assistance program for Menlo Park Municipal Water customers; and 

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6605, which 
established the rate assistance program, appropriated $164,000 from the general fund and 
provided a timeframe for the program of January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021, and 

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2021, Recology’s new solid waste rates went into effect; and  

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021 the City Council received an update about extending the pilot 
program for fiscal year 2021-22; and 

WHEREAS, on May 11, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6625, which approved 
Menlo Park Municipal Water rate increases for the next five years between July 1, 2021 and June 
30, 2026; and 

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2021, new Menlo Park Municipal Water rates went into effect; and 

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6638, which extended 
the solid waste and water rate assistance program to June 30, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2022, Recology’s new solid waste rates went into effect; and 

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2022, new Menlo Park Municipal Water rates are scheduled to be in effect; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the program shall be comprised of the following 
timeframe, discount, and qualifications unless modified by the City Council by resolution:  

ATTACHMENT L

Page G-1.25



 
1. Timeframe: continue on July 1, 2022 and end on June 30, 2023; 
2. Discount: monthly 20 percent discount for solid waste rates and a monthly fixed discount equal 

to 50 percent of the 5/8-inch meter service charge for water rates; and  
3. Qualifications: households must meet the following criteria to receive the discount: 

 Must be enrolled in PG&E CARE program; 
 Submit most recent PG&E bill to verify CARE enrollment. Address on PG&E bill must be 

the same as the address on solid waste and water bills, but names may be different; 
 Submit most recent Recology and Menlo Park Municipal Water bills to receive applicable 

discounts; and 
 Re-certify eligibility according to the PG&E CARE program enrollment expiration date. Re-

certification will vary, depending on when the household applies to CARE. 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-eighth day of June 2022, by the following votes: 
 
AYES:  
  
NOES:    
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June 2022. 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
 

Resolution No. XXXX 
Page 2 of 2

Page G-1.26



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
DESIGNATING AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FINAL RULE 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its City Council, adopted the fiscal 
year 2021-22 operating and capital budgets on June 28, 2021 through resolution 6633 which 
established Fund 397 – American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) to track the revenue received and 
the projected allowable expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2021-22 budget projected $4,150,000 in ARPA revenue and 
$2,910,000 for qualified expenditures; 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its City Council, having adopted 
budget amendments at its public meeting on December 14, 2021 meeting through staff report 
21-250-CC to adjust qualified expenditures to $847,740; and

WHEREAS, in fiscal year 2021-22, the city received the first $4,150,000 payment of funding and 
the city is scheduled to receive the second and final $4,150,000 payment of funding in fiscal 
year 2022-23; and 

WHEREAS, on January 6, 2022 the U.S. Department of the Treasury issued the Final Rule 
containing the major provisions for use and reporting of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds for recipients to select a standard allowance for revenue loss up to $10 million, 
not to exceed the recipients award amount, enabling streamlined reporting requirements. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park that the 
City Council does hereby select the standard allowance and designate the $8,300,000 of 
American Rescue Plan Act funding under the Act’s Final Rule as Replacement for Lost Public 
Sector Revenue consistent with the eligible categories revenue replacement contained in the 
provisions of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. 

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City Council 
on the twenty-eighth day of June, 2022, by the following votes:  

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this __ day of June, 2022. 

Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT M

Page G-1.27



2022-23 AWARD AUTHORITY AND BID REQUIREMENTS 
City Council Policy No. CC-21-024 
Adopted December 14, 2021 
Resolution No. 6695 

Purpose 

Pursuant to City Council adopted policy CC-21-024, this memo establishes the award authority and bid requirements 
for the 2022-23 fiscal year.  

Award Authority and Bid Requirements 

Category Amount Approving authority Bid requirement 

Goods, general services, 
and professional 
services 

Less than $39,500 City Manager Designee Written quotations 

$39,501 to $86,000/year 
(up to 3 years) City Manager Informal bid 

$86,001 to $200,000 

City Council 

Informal bid 

Greater than $200,000 Formal bid 

Public projects 

Less than $60,000 City Manager Designee 

Informal bid/force account 

$60,001 to $86,000 City Manager 

$86,001 to $200,000 

City Council 

Informal bid 

Greater than $200,000 Formal bid 

Claims settlement 
Up to $86,000 City Manager 

N/A 

$86,001 or greater City Council 

ATTACHMENT N

Page G-1.28



City of Menlo Park
5 Year Financial Forecast:  June 28, 2022 Council Meeting

Fiscal Year 2022‐23 through 2026‐27

ATTACHMENT O

Page G-1.29



Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Revenues:

Property Taxes 6.0% HDL 5 Year secured, unsecured, VLF in lieu property tax

Sales Taxes 4.0% MuniServices 5 Year projection

TOT  5.0% HDL reviews forecast, includes Citizen M
Utility User Tax 1.0% Maintained at FY 2022‐23 budget level.  This represents 1% UUT

Excess ERAF ‐10.0% Annual reduction from FY 2022‐23 budget level

Licenses & Permits 4.0% Based on pre‐pandemic levels

Fines, Rental, Govt, Other 3.0% FY 2024 increases by $1 million heading back to pre‐pandemic levels

Charges for Services 2.0%

Interest Income 2.0% Portfolio estimated return based on reserve levels

Transfers $13,771,261 Use of ARPA over 2023 & 2024, ISF recovery 2024, Landscape, tree, park, solid waste support

Expenditures:

Salaries and Wages 4.0% COLA: 3.0%, Average Merits: 1%, Other, Bonus

Temporary & OT Budget run rate

Benefits ‐ Non PERS 3.0% CPI inflation adjustment

Benefits ‐ PERS 3.8% Annual estimated increase: Misc 2.8%, Safety 4.9%.  Average 3.8%

Vacancy factor ‐6.5%

Services, Repairs, etc 3.0% CPI inflation adjustment

Operating  Return to normal after 2023 Internal Service Fund rebalancing plus CPI

Transfers $23,168,390 CIP support, landscape maintenance

Staffing:
Proposed budget 250 Number FTEs

Average FTE $118,402

Scenarios FY 2024

FTE Changes 0.0%

FTE level 250

Benefits ‐ Non PERS 0.0%

Services ‐15.0%

Operating  0.0%

The objectives of the forecast are to demonstrate reserve levels after covering operating and capital project transfers.   The forecast is developed as 
closely as possible to a cash flow projection rather than a full accrual estimate, thus excluding receivables, payables, depreciation, amortization, and 
certain unrealized gains & losses. The details in this tool are used by management in forecasting receipts (revenues), disbursements (expenses) and 
cash reserves.  The City maintains its' accounting system in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) adopted by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The forecast period (2022‐23 thru 2027) uses the proposed budget year 2022‐23 as its' base.

Attachment O: City of Menlo Park ‐‐‐ 
General Fund 5 Year Forecast (FY 2022‐23 thru 2027): Assumptions

Page 2 of 4
Page G-1.30



2021 Act 2022 Fcst 2023 Bud 2024 2025 2026 2027

Revenue
PT: Secured, Unsecured, VLF in lieu 26,569,172$     22,623,959$     25,454,437$   26,981,703$   28,600,605$   30,316,642$   32,135,640$     5 Year

Excess ERAF ‐                          4,410,741         4,168,229       3,751,406        3,376,265       3,038,639       2,734,775         34.4%

RPTTF ‐                          3,232,012         3,354,684       3,354,684        3,354,684       3,354,684       3,354,684        
Supplemental 668,445             661,539             661,539           661,539           661,539           661,539           661,539            
Property taxes: Other 908,801             917,397             1,054,892       1,054,892        1,054,892       1,054,892       1,054,892        
Sales Taxes 6,659,717         6,288,300         6,621,444       6,886,302        7,161,754       7,448,224       7,746,153        
TOT  3,762,410         8,200,000         9,000,000       10,290,000     10,804,500     11,344,725     11,911,961      
Utility User Tax 1,442,006         1,712,783         1,629,299       1,629,299        1,629,299       1,629,299       1,629,299        
Licenses & Permits 4,653,741         5,732,346         5,173,500       5,380,440        5,595,658       5,819,484       6,052,263        
Fines, Rental, Govt, Other 4,781,774         3,361,352         3,289,126       4,417,799        4,550,333       4,686,843       4,827,449        
Charges for Services 5,858,751         4,968,495         5,008,550       5,108,721        5,210,895       5,315,113       5,421,416        
Interest Income 837,696             776,288             844,640           638,887           662,157           614,150           569,810            
Transfers 595,008             652,550             7,723,831       4,300,230        582,400           582,400           582,400            

Total revenue 56,737,521       63,537,762       73,984,171     74,455,903     73,244,982     75,866,634     78,682,281      
Expense

Salaries and Wages 22,474,320       20,007,564       29,641,962     30,827,640     32,060,746     33,343,176     34,676,903      
Salaries Temporary 1,322,636         1,159,241         1,562,500       1,562,500        1,562,500       1,562,500       1,562,500        
Salaries Overtime 1,275,765         1,401,220         1,281,500       1,281,500        1,281,500       1,281,500       1,281,500        
Benefits ‐ Non PERS 6,227,997         5,979,340         7,457,125       7,680,839        7,911,264       8,148,602       8,393,060        
Benefits ‐ PERS 7,047,545         5,545,377         7,231,311       8,690,312        9,037,924       9,399,441       9,775,419        
Benefits ‐ Additional UAL ‐                          1,400,000         1,000,000       1,000,000        1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000        
Vacancy factor ‐                          ‐                          (2,462,670)      (3,317,781)      (3,435,506)      (3,557,789)      (3,684,810)       
Operating Expenses 5,695,653         6,743,485         10,874,410     8,282,522        8,530,998       8,786,928       9,050,535        
Services 6,374,953         6,338,647         10,835,678     9,486,636        9,771,235       10,064,372     10,366,303      
Repairs & Maintenance 942,763             890,299             1,042,796       1,074,080        1,106,302       1,139,491       1,173,676        
Utilities, Rentals 1,732,557         1,498,910         1,862,373       1,918,244        1,975,792       2,035,065       2,096,117        
Fixed Assets, Special Project 402,552             490,746             1,186,050       1,221,632        1,258,280       1,296,029       1,334,910        
Transfers 5,877,757         11,998,885       8,831,190       3,584,300        3,584,300       3,584,300       3,584,300        

Total expense 59,374,498       63,453,712       80,344,226     73,292,423     75,645,336     78,083,615     80,610,414      

Surplus/(Deficit) (2,636,976)$     84,050$             (6,360,055)$   1,163,479$     (2,400,354)$   (2,216,981)$   (1,928,133)$    

Audited Forecasted

Fund Balance 38,220,369       38,304,419       31,944,364     33,107,843     30,707,489     28,490,508     26,562,375      

Breakdown:

Non‐spendable prepaids 458,698             458,698             458,698           458,698           458,698           458,698           458,698            
Project related, encumb 4,010,180         4,010,180         1,000,000       1,000,000        1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000        

Strategic pension funding 4,650,860         3,250,860         2,250,860       1,250,860        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                          2027 Actual

Emergency contingency (15‐20%) 10,300,000       10,300,000       11,800,000     11,000,000     11,000,000     12,000,000     12,000,000       15%
Economic stabilization (20‐25%) 14,000,000       12,711,700       16,000,000     15,000,000     15,000,000     15,031,000     13,103,152       16%

Unassigned cannot be negative 4,800,631         7,572,981         434,806           4,398,285        3,248,791       810                   525                    

Attachment O: City of Menlo Park ‐‐‐ 
General Fund 5 Year Forecast (FY 2022‐23 thru 2027): Revenue & Expense Statement

Page 3 of 4

Page G-1.31



Attachment O: City of Menlo Park ‐‐‐ 
General Fund 5 Year Forecast (FY 2022‐23 thru 2027): Emergency & Economic Reserves

2021 Act 2022 Fcst 2023 Bud 2024 2025 2026 2027

Emergency contingency 10,300,000 10,300,000 11,800,000 11,000,000 11,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000

Policy Level (15% min) 8,906,175 9,518,057 12,051,634 10,993,863 11,346,800 11,712,542 12,091,562

 ‐

 4,000,000

 8,000,000

 12,000,000

 16,000,000

 20,000,000

General Fund: Emergency Contingency Reserve

2021 Act 2022 Fcst 2023 Bud 2024 2025 2026 2027

Economic stabilization 14,000,000 12,711,700 16,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,031,000 13,103,152

Policy Level (20% min) 11,874,900 12,690,742 16,068,845 14,658,485 15,129,067 15,616,723 16,122,083

 ‐

 4,000,000

 8,000,000

 12,000,000

 16,000,000

 20,000,000

General Fund: Economic Stabilization Reserve

Page 4 of 4
Page G-1.32



Attachment P: FY 2021‐22 Forecasted Fund Balances
Audited

Fund Name and Category 6/30/2021 Rev & TI Exp & TO Sur/(Def) 6/30/2022

100 General  38,220,369$          63,537,762$            63,453,712$            84,050$   38,304,419$         
Non‐spendable prepaids 458,698                  458,698 
Project related, encumb 4,010,180              4,010,180              

Strategic pension funding 4,650,860              Actual  3,250,860              
Emergency (Policy: 15‐20%) 10,300,000            16% 10,300,000            

Economic (Policy: 20‐25%) 14,000,000            20% 12,711,700            
Unassigned 4,800,631              7,572,981              

Total Reserve Breakdown 38,220,369            38,304,419            
One‐time, Developer, In‐lieu

111 One‐time ‐  1,686,000                ‐  1,686,000                1,686,000              
258 CRRSA ‐  30,000  10,166  19,834  19,834 
332 Bayfront Mitigation   4,464,348              2,468,139                ‐  2,468,139                6,932,487              
353 Downtown Public Amenity   2,185,398              318,308  ‐  318,308  2,503,707              
369 Community Amenities   ‐  9,405,000                ‐  9,405,000                9,405,000              
395 Developer Funded Projects ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
397 American Rescue Plan Act   ‐  8,300,500                917,583  7,382,917                7,382,917              
201 EIR Fees 616,356                  15,400  620,301  (604,901)  11,455 
202 Miscellaneous Trust   249,728                  1,341  1,935  (594)  249,134 

Housing Activity

221 Housing Special Revenue   6,603,191              74,532  2,425  72,107  6,675,298              
222 Below Mrkt Rt Housing Spec Rev 31,512,890            1,087,200                189,220  897,980  32,410,870            
223 Federal Revenue Sharing 126,684                  555  2,425  (1,870)  124,813 
224 Community Devlpmt Block Grant 1,381,927              1,287  2,425  (1,138)  1,380,789              
364 HUT Repair and Maintenance 12,902  520,170  ‐  520,170  533,072 

Library & Community Service

203 Donations ‐ Library and CS ‐  32,451  36,264  (3,813)  (3,813) 
251 Big Lift (Library) ‐  190,000  166,329  23,671  23,671 
252 Childcare Food (Libray & CS) ‐  44,000  44,000  ‐  ‐ 
253 Belle Haven Child Devlpmt Ctr ‐  1,322,575                1,260,874                61,701  61,701 
254 Preschool‐QRIS ‐  14,256  5,320  8,936  8,936 
256 Recreation In‐Lieu 3,686,336              3,611,850                1,323,984                2,287,866                5,974,202              
304 Menlo Park Community Campus   991,270                  15,163,819              2,533,252                12,630,567              13,621,837            
305 Diverse Literature LSTA ‐  20,000  784  19,216  19,216 

Police Enforcement

327 Supp Law Enforcement Services 197,963                  162,564  107,491  55,073  253,036 
328 Downtown Parking Permits 4,753,606              58,654  176,787  (118,133)  4,635,473              

Transportation. Streets, Maint

211 Heritage Tree (Transporation related) 101,776                  363,460  ‐  363,460  465,236 
255 Senior Transportation ‐  30,635  68,404  (37,769)  (37,769) 
351 Transportation Impact Fees 7,296,521              2,785,218                367,479  2,417,739                9,714,260              
352 Transportation   934,152                  8,750  28,912  (20,162)  913,990 
354 Storm Drainage Fees 95,354  1,406  ‐  1,406  96,760 
355 Shuttle Program (53,542)  841,028  585,198  255,830  202,287 
356 County Transp Tax (Measure A) 621,059                  1,087,761                672,149  415,612  1,036,671              
357 Highway Users (Gas Tax)   2,399,984              945,007  283,254  661,753  3,061,736              
358 Landscape/Tree Assessment 370,703                  1,224,300                701,953  522,346  893,050 
359 Sidewalk Assessment 51,584  365,544  55,400  310,144  361,728 
360 Measure M 93,991  146,000  104,467  41,533  135,524 
361 Storm Water Management 360,651                  325,582  328,097  (2,515)  358,136 
362 Construction Impact Fee   5,136,012              1,605,845                1,514,048                91,797  5,227,809              
363 Measure W 665,494                  424,894  88,920  335,974  1,001,468              
365 Landfill Post‐Closure 7,763,194              845,161  559,268  285,893  8,049,088              
366 Vintage Oaks Landscape (478)  ‐  (478)  478  ‐ 
367 Sharon Hills Park 60  ‐  ‐  ‐  60 
375 CA Coastal Consv Priority Grant ‐  ‐  8,249  (8,249)  (8,249) 
376 Caltrans ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
368 Bayfront Park Maintenance 874,038                  4,798  170,519  (165,721)  708,317 
370 Haven Avenue Streetscape Grant ‐  600,000  ‐  600,000  600,000 
377 California State Parks Dept ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
396 CA Arrearage Program Water Res ‐  212,534  160,155  52,380  52,380 

FY 2021‐22 Fcst
ATTACHMENT P

Page G-1.33



Attachment P: FY 2021‐22 Forecasted Fund Balances
Audited

Fund Name and Category 6/30/2021 Rev & TI Exp & TO Sur/(Def) 6/30/2022

FY 2021‐22 Fcst

Transportation. Streets, Maint

501 General Capital Improvement   26,046,878            7,279,019                6,114,798                1,164,221                27,211,099            
521 SMC Transportation Authority (4,991)                     ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 (4,991)                    
525 CA Coastal Consv Priority Grt ‐                               ‐                                 (1,353)                       1,353                        1,353                      

Debt Service

400 Library GO Bond 1990 360,244                  2,341                        ‐                                 2,341                        362,585                 
401 Recreation GO Bond 3,806,813              1,438,832                1,798,056                (359,223)                  3,447,590              
500 Measure T 2002 GO Bond 325,216                  16,665                      339,833                    (323,168)                  2,048                      
510 Library Addition 121,659                  787                            ‐                                 787                            122,446                 

Water Activity

600 Water Capital   16,692,291            2,128,273                1,548,627                579,647                    17,271,938            
601 Water Operations   26,784,868            13,986,488              8,210,224                5,776,264                32,561,132            
610 Solid Waste Service 2,834,009              411,070                    452,812                    (41,742)                     2,792,267              

Internal Services

701 Workers' Compensation   601,564                  1,530,816                914,725                    616,091                    1,217,655              
702 General Liability   (550,147)                996,581                    1,509,226                (512,645)                  (1,062,792)            
703 Other Post Employment Benefits 1,298,790              383,638                    747,447                    (363,809)                  934,980                 
704 IT Internal Service   1,902,352              3,696,932                3,030,503                666,429                    2,568,781              
705 Vehicle Replacement   3,563,984              1,060,129                1,910,319                (850,190)                  2,713,793              

Page G-1.34



Attachment Q: FY 2022‐23 Budgeted Fund Balances

Fund Name and Category 6/30/2022 Rev & TI Exp & TO CIP Rev CIP Exp Sur/(Def) 6/30/2023

100 General  38,304,419$          73,984,171$  80,344,226$  ‐$ ‐$   (6,360,055)$        31,944,364$   
Non‐spendable prepaids 458,698                  458,698           
Project related, encumb 4,010,180               1,000,000       

Strategic pension funding 3,250,860               Actual % 2,250,860       
Emergency (Policy: 15‐20%) 10,300,000             15% 11,800,000     

Economic (Policy: 20‐25%) 12,711,700             20% 16,000,000     
Unassigned 7,572,981               434,806           

Total Reserve Breakdown 38,304,419             31,944,364     
One‐time, Developer, In‐lieu

111 One‐time  1,686,000               1,350,000       ‐  ‐  ‐  1,350,000           3,036,000       
258 CRRSA 19,834 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  19,834             
332 Bayfront Mitigation   6,932,487               2,561,226       ‐  ‐  ‐  2,561,226           9,493,713       
353 Downtown Public Amenity   2,503,707               10,000            ‐  ‐  300,000               (290,000)             2,213,707       
369 Community Amenities   9,405,000               20,900,000    ‐  ‐  ‐  20,900,000         30,305,000     
395 Developer Funded Projects ‐  2,250,000       2,250,000       ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
397 American Rescue Plan Act   7,382,917               ‐  3,717,830       ‐  ‐  (3,717,830)          3,665,087       
201 EIR Fees 11,455 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  11,455             
202 Miscellaneous Trust   249,134                  ‐  145,000          ‐  ‐  (145,000)             104,134           

Housing Activity

221 Housing Special Revenue   6,675,298               1,000               24,000             ‐  ‐  (23,000)                6,652,298       
222 Below Mrkt Rt Housing Spec Rev 32,410,870             6,800,000       583,432          ‐  ‐  6,216,568           38,627,439     
223 Federal Revenue Sharing 124,813                  500  4,000               ‐  ‐  (3,500)                  121,313           
224 Community Devlpmt Block Grant 1,380,789               1,500               4,000               ‐  ‐  (2,500)                  1,378,289       
364 HUT Repair and Maintenance 533,072                  793,824          ‐  ‐  950,000               (156,176)             376,896           

Library & Community Service ‐  ‐ 
203 Donations ‐ Library and CS (3,813) 145,000          ‐  ‐  ‐  145,000               141,187           
251 Big Lift (Library) 23,671 295,000          260,109          ‐  ‐  34,891                 58,563             
252 Childcare Food (Libray & CS) ‐  85,000            85,000             ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
253 Belle Haven Child Devlpmt Ctr 61,701 2,003,000       1,432,295       ‐  ‐  570,705               632,407           
254 Preschool‐QRIS 8,936  12,000            ‐  ‐  ‐  12,000                 20,936             
256 Recreation In‐Lieu 5,974,202               88,200            3,000,000       ‐  2,682,709           (5,594,509)          379,693           
304 Menlo Park Community Campus   13,621,837             3,000,000       79,163             ‐  16,440,716         (13,519,879)        101,958           
305 Diverse Literature LSTA 19,216 20,000            20,000             ‐  ‐  ‐  19,216             

Police Enforcement

327 Supp Law Enforcement Services 253,036                  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  253,036           
328 Downtown Parking Permits 4,635,473               100,000          195,600          ‐  2,400,000           (2,495,600)          2,139,873       

Transportation. Streets, Maint

211 Heritage Tree (Transporation related) 465,236                  10,000            ‐  ‐  135,000               (125,000)             340,236           
255 Senior Transportation (37,769)  43,700            ‐  ‐  ‐  43,700                 5,931               
351 Transportation Impact Fees 9,714,260               983,000          ‐  5,000,000       10,934,567         (4,951,567)          4,762,693       
352 Transportation   913,990                  ‐  ‐  ‐  909,692               (909,692)             4,298               
354 Storm Drainage Fees 96,760 1,800               97,000             ‐  ‐  (95,200)                1,560               
355 Shuttle Program 202,287                  1,293,151       1,192,227       ‐  ‐  100,924               303,211           
356 County Transp Tax (Measure A) 1,036,671               1,000,000       1,473,999       ‐  404,940               (878,939)             157,732           
357 Highway Users (Gas Tax)   3,061,736               1,021,080       19,613             ‐  4,050,940           (3,049,473)          12,263             
358 Landscape/Tree Assessment 893,050                  1,287,457       1,503,667       ‐  ‐  (216,210)             676,839           
359 Sidewalk Assessment 361,728                  305,838          27,050             ‐  302,512               (23,724)                338,004           
360 Measure M 135,524                  140,000          140,000          ‐  ‐  ‐  135,524           
361 Storm Water Management 358,136                  375,862          458,137          ‐  ‐  (82,275)                275,860           
362 Construction Impact Fee   5,227,809               865,000          85,775             ‐  3,787,020           (3,007,795)          2,220,014       
363 Measure W 1,001,468               425,000          ‐  ‐  750,000               (325,000)             676,468           
365 Landfill Post‐Closure 8,049,088               932,083          521,775          ‐  3,801,155           (3,390,847)          4,658,241       
366 Vintage Oaks Landscape ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
367 Sharon Hills Park 60 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  60 
375 CA Coastal Consv Priority Grant (8,249) ‐  ‐  500,000          ‐  500,000               491,751           
376 Caltrans ‐  ‐  ‐  426,000          ‐  426,000               426,000           
368 Bayfront Park Maintenance 708,317                  3,000               258,916          ‐  ‐  (255,916)             452,400           
370 Haven Avenue Streetscape Grant 600,000                  ‐  ‐  ‐  600,000               (600,000)             ‐ 
377 California State Parks Dept ‐  ‐  ‐  798,950          ‐  798,950               798,950           
396 CA Arrearage Program Water Res 52,380 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  52,380             

FY 2021‐22 Fcst FY 2022‐23 Budget
ATTACHMENT Q

Page G-1.35



Attachment Q: FY 2022‐23 Budgeted Fund Balances

Fund Name and Category 6/30/2022 Rev & TI Exp & TO CIP Rev CIP Exp Sur/(Def) 6/30/2023

FY 2021‐22 Fcst FY 2022‐23 Budget

Transportation. Streets, Maint

501 General Capital Improvement   27,211,099             6,450,500       429,476          5,015,300       37,469,788         (26,433,464)        777,634           
521 SMC Transportation Authority (4,991)                     ‐                        ‐                        170,000          ‐                            170,000               165,009           
525 CA Coastal Consv Priority Grt 1,353                       ‐                        ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            ‐                            1,353               

Debt Service

400 Library GO Bond 1990 362,585                  12,545            ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            12,545                 375,130           
401 Recreation GO Bond 3,447,590               2,375,456       2,350,456       ‐                        ‐                            25,000                 3,472,590       
500 Measure T 2002 GO Bond 2,048                       1,500               ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            1,500                   3,548               
510 Library Addition 122,446                  750                  ‐                        ‐                        ‐                            750                       123,196           

Water Activity

600 Water Capital   17,271,938             1,919,425       196,894          500,000          17,287,319         (15,064,788)        2,207,149       
601 Water Operations   32,561,132             13,914,073    10,933,719     ‐                        ‐                            2,980,354           35,541,486     
610 Solid Waste Service 2,792,267               674,038          276,505          ‐                        ‐                            397,533               3,189,800       

Internal Services

701 Workers' Compensation   1,217,655               923,217          1,819,722       ‐                        ‐                            (896,505)             321,150           
702 General Liability   (1,062,792)             2,582,824       1,286,150       ‐                        ‐                            1,296,674           233,882           
703 Other Post Employment Benefits 934,980                  ‐                        934,980          ‐                        ‐                            (934,980)             0                       
704 IT Internal Service   2,568,781               3,625,584       5,751,762       ‐                        ‐                            (2,126,178)          442,603           
705 Vehicle Replacement   2,713,793               1,396,380       1,570,000       ‐                        ‐                            (173,620)             2,540,173       

Page G-1.36



FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 BUDGET ADOPTION
June 28, 2022

G1-PRESENTATION



AGENDA

 General fund 5-Year forecast changes

 Enabling resolutions and actions

 Final City Council direction and adoption



 Revenue assumptions 
– Reclassified current year developer payments to Fund 332 Bayfront Mitigation
– TOT annual growth rate to 5% after FY 2022-23
– Excess ERAF is reduced 10% annually, approximately 34.4%

 Expense assumptions
– Vacancy factor increased to 6.5% for higher current level and anticipated attrition in 

future years
– Service expense category was reduced by 15% to reflect non-recurring

 Reserve impacts 
– Total decreased from $31.9 million to $26.5 million 
– Emergency contingency reserve is maintained
– Economic stabilization approximately $3.6 million below target in last 2 years
– Unassigned reserve cannot be negative

GENERAL FUND 5-YEAR FORECAST CHANGES

3



GENERAL FUND 5-YEAR FORECAST CHANGES 

4



GENERAL FUND 5-YEAR FORECAST CHANGES

5



ENABLING RESOLUTIONS

6



 Adopts the fiscal year 2022-23 budget and capital improvement 
plan authorizing appropriations

 Authorizes changes directed during adoption and clerical clean-up

 Authorizes payments up to budgeted amounts for:
– Debt service on currently-issued debt

– Utilities

– Employee benefits

– Inter-governmental agreements

– City Attorney fees

– IT ISF hardware and software subscription services

RESOLUTION FOR FY 2022-23 BUDGET 

7



 Establishes the appropriations limit at $75.5 million

 Meets California Government Code requirements

 Appropriations limit calculations
– Prior year limit, $71.2 million, plus population and inflation adjustment

– Proceeds of taxes subject to limit total $55.1 million

– Results in appropriations $20.4 million below limit

 Amounts may be adjusted depending on direction received during 
adoption

RESOLUTION FOR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

8



 Establishes a consecutive utility users’ tax temporary reduction

 12-month maximum reduction length

 Rate set to 1 percent for all categories, lowered from 2.5-3.5 
percent in Menlo Park Municipal Code

 Previous temporary reduction expires on September 31, 2022 if 
not adopted

RESOLUTION FOR UUT REDUCTION 

9



 Sets the schedule for pay for all regular classifications

 Resolution No. – effective date July 3, 2022
– Implements previously agreed-upon COLA deferred due to effects of pandemic

– Effective date based on agreements between City and SEIU, AFSCME, and 
unrepresented confidential employees

 Updated attachment to reflect PSA change

RESOLUTION FOR SALARY SCHEDULE 

10



 Resolution No. extend rate assistance program
– Continue program to June 30, 2023

– Re-certify eligibility according to PG&E CARE program

RESOLUTION FOR RATE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

11



 Designating American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Final Rule
– Confirming Fund 397 as controlling fund for administration

– Confirming current expenditures of $847,740 for fiscal year 2021-22

– Designating a standard allowance of $10 million in revenue loss, not to exceed 
award of $8.3 million

RESOLUTION FOR ARPA

12



 Further direction to staff on fiscal year 2022-23 budget
– Service level enhancements

– ERAF reduction of 10% per year beginning FY 2023-24

– ARPA utilization in General Fund for revenue replacement

– Utility User’s Tax necessity for financial health of the City (2 years, 2/3 vote)

– Utility User’s Tax rate of 1% percent (1 year, majority)

– Emergency and economic reserves policy level (are maintained in fiscal year 
2022-23, but may fall below policy level in the last two years of the five-year 
forecast)

 Adoption of enabling resolutions and award level before July 1

 Publication of fiscal year 2022-23 budget document in August

 January 2023 goal-setting session
– City Council priorities and work plan

 February 2023 mid-year budget amendments

NEXT STEPS

13



 Adopt resolutions, establish award levels & bid rules:
– Resolution adopting the fiscal year 2022-23 budget and capital plan

– Resolution to establish the appropriations limit

– Resolution to establish  1% UUT rates through June 2023

– Resolution amending the salary schedule effective July 3, 2022

– Resolution extending rate assistance program through June 2023

– Resolution to establish direction for administration of ARPA

– Accept award memo for award level and bid rules

RESOLUTIONS AND AWARD LEVEL

14



THANK YOU



Library and Community Services 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-124-CC 
 
Regular Business:  Direction on the Burgess Pool aquatics operator 

agreement negotiation 

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
1. Review this update about ongoing negotiations to amend the professional services agreement between 

the City and Team Sheeper, Inc. (Provider); 
2. Provide direction to staff regarding agreement terms proposed by Provider; and  
3. Authorize the city manager and city attorney to complete the negotiations per City Council direction. 

 
Policy Issues 
City Council provides policy direction to the city manager regarding services to the community; authorizes 
the city manager to negotiate and execute professional services agreements with service providers; and 
sets prioritization for the use of City resources to serve the community. 

 
Background 
On March 27, 2018, City Council authorized the city manager to execute an Agreement with Provider for 
aquatics programming at Burgess Pool and Belle Haven Pool (Attachment A.) The Agreement has been 
amended twice as necessitated by construction of the Menlo Park Community Campus (MPCC) project and 
health regulations resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. In 2021, at City Council’s direction, the Belle 
Haven Pool was removed from the Agreement due to that pool being closed to make way for a new outdoor 
aquatics center that is now under construction as part of the MPCC project. 
 
The term of the current Agreement ends August 31, 2022; however, Section 3 of the agreement 
automatically extends the Agreement for 12 months through August 31, 2023, absent any action by either 
party. Either party may provide written notification at least 180 days in advance of intent to either: a) 
terminate the Agreement; or, b) evaluate the terms and conditions of the Agreement.  
 
On February 8, 2022, the City Council authorized the city manager and city attorney to negotiate an 
amendment to the professional services agreement with Provider, to extend the term of the agreement 
through August 31, 2023 or the opening of the MPCC aquatics center, whichever comes first. The City 
Council further directed staff to prepare a request for proposals (RFP), including outreach and in-house 
management options, to be issued in Fall 2022 for operation of the Burgess Pool and future MPCC aquatics 
center, and to which Provider will be invited and encouraged to respond (Attachment B.) 
 
On February 25, 2022, Provider gave the City notice that Provider was invoking its right under Section 3 of 
the March 27, 2018, Agreement to not automatically renew the Agreement and requesting an evaluation of 
the terms and conditions of the Agreement. On March 2, 2022, the City gave Provider notice that the City 
was invoking its right under Section 3 of the Agreement to not automatically renew the Agreement and 

AGENDA ITEM G-2

Page G-2.1



Staff Report #: 22-124-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

requesting an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, expressing gratitude for services 
provided and interest in continuing the dialogue with Provider regarding Provider’s services going forward. 
The City and Provider then coordinated over the subsequent weeks to focus on various operational 
considerations including janitorial services, facility maintenance, and mechanical equipment replacements 
and repairs. On May 10, 2022, Provider provided the City written notice that they intend to terminate the 
Agreement August 31, 2022 unless a new agreement is reached that includes revised terms.  
 
Staff and Provider then commenced negotiations regarding the terms of the Agreement. City staff sent 
Provider proposed revised terms May 2, 2022. Provider then responded with further revised terms May 26, 
2022. City staff and Provider met on three occasions to discuss each party’s terms. 

 
Analysis 
Below are some of the substantive terms proposed by Provider as of May 26, 2022.  
 
A. Exclude Burgess Pool from upcoming RFP. The most notable of Provider’s new proposed terms is that 

the upcoming RFP for an aquatics operator only focus on the new MPCC pool, and not include Burgess 
Pool. Provider has described this desired term as a “dealbreaker,” meaning that if the RFP includes 
Burgess Pool then Provider would allow the current agreement to expire and would cease operations at 
Burgess Pool effective August 31, 2022.  

B. Duration of agreement. Provider requests a minimum five-year agreement at Burgess Pool, which 
Provider states is necessary for stability of their business and workforce. 

C. Compensation for delays in facility maintenance and repairs. Provider requests compensation from the 
City for lost revenue resulting from extended pool closures that are caused by maintenance and repair 
delays on the City’s part. Other cities’ agreements with third-party operators sometimes have terms to 
similar effect. 

D. Revenue share. Provider requests that revenue share be eliminated from the agreement. Past revenue 
to the City from this arrangement was $0 in 2021 and 2020, and approximately $24,000 in 2019. 

E. Management fee. Provider requests that the City pay Provider $10,000 per month to operate Burgess 
Pool, with adjustments every year for inflation. In calendar year 2021, Provider reported total income of 
$2.102 million offset by total expenses of $1.830 million. In calendar year 2019, before the pandemic 
with both pools operating a full year, Provider reported total income of $3.396 million offset by total 
expenses of $3.220 million.  

 
Considerations and direction 
Staff seeks direction from the City Council regarding the above proposed terms. Some key questions for 
City Council’s consideration: 
 
1. Whether to focus the upcoming RFP on MPCC pool only; or keep Burgess Pool in the RFP. 
2. Is there interest in extending Provider’s agreement at Burgess Pool beyond August 31, 2022? 
3. Should the City elect not to renegotiate and renew Provider’s agreement beyond August 31, 2022 and 

begin search for a new operator? 
4. Is there interest in changing Provider’s current compensation and/or revenue share? 
 
Next steps 
Per City Council’s direction, staff is preparing an analysis and City Council study session about future 
aquatics operations tentatively August 9, followed by issuance of an RFP for the new MPCC pool in late 
September.  
 
 

Page G-2.2



Staff Report #: 22-124-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Regarding the current negotiation and proposed terms outlined above, staff recommends that the City 
Council: 
1. Provide direction to staff regarding the agreement terms proposed by Provider; and  
2. Authorize the city manager and city attorney to complete the negotiations per City Council direction. 
 
Should City Council so direct, staff will present Provider with any additional or revised terms as proposed by 
the City Council.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
In the current Agreement, the City is responsible for maintenance of the Burgess Pool facility including 
mechanical and facility repairs, custodial and landscaping services, utilities (water, sewer, electricity, gas, 
telephone and internet), pool maintenance chemicals and supplies. These expenses are estimated total 
$620,000 in fiscal year 2021-22.  

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any physical change in the environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – February 9, 2021 City Council Staff Report: 

menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/27336/F5-20210209-CC-Burgess-pool-contract-extension  
B. Hyperlink – February 8, 2022 City Council agenda item, I1. (page 185): 

beta.menlopark.org/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-
meetings/agendas/20220208-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf  

 
Report prepared by: 
Sean Reinhart, Library and Community Services Director 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Justin Murphy, Interim City Manager 
Nira Doherty, City Attorney 
 

Page G-2.3

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/27336/F5-20210209-CC-Burgess-pool-contract-extension
https://beta.menlopark.org/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220208-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf
https://beta.menlopark.org/files/sharedassets/public/agendas-and-minutes/city-council/2022-meetings/agendas/20220208-city-council-agenda-packet.pdf


DIRECTION ON THE BURGESS POOL AQUATICS 
OPERATOR AGREEMENT NEGOTIATION
City Council – June 28, 2022

G2-PRESENTATION



Update

Since the publication of the agenda packet for the June 28, 2022, City 
Council meeting:

• Team Sheeper, Inc. (Provider) gave the City written notification that they 
have withdrawn their request for a management fee.

June 28, 2022



Provider’s requested terms

June 28, 2022

A. Exclude Burgess Pool from upcoming aquatics RFP

B. Minimum five-year agreement at Burgess Pool

C. Compensate Provider for lost revenue resulting from extended pool 
closures caused by maintenance and repair delays

D. Eliminate revenue share from the agreement. 



4



Key considerations and direction

June 28, 2022

Should the City:

A. Focus the RFP on MPCC pool only; or keep Burgess Pool in the RFP?

B. Extend Provider’s agreement at Burgess Pool past August 31, 2022?

C. Elect not to renegotiate and renew Provider’s agreement; and begin 
search for a new operator?

D. Change the revenue share?



Next steps

June 28, 2022

Per City Council’s direction, staff is preparing an analysis and City Council 
study session about future aquatics operations tentatively August 9, 
followed by issuance of an RFP for the new MPCC pool in late September.



City Manager's Office 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT  

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-125-CC 
 
Informational Item:  City Council agenda topics: July 2022 

 
Recommendation 
The purpose of this informational item is to provide the City Council and members of the public access to 
the anticipated agenda items that will be presented to the City Council. The mayor and city manager set the 
City Council agenda so there is no action required of the City Council as a result of this informational item.  

 
Policy Issues 
In accordance with the City Council procedures manual, the mayor and city manager set the agenda for City 
Council meetings.  

 
Analysis 
In an effort to provide greater access to the City Council’s future agenda items, staff has compiled a listing 
of anticipated agenda items, Attachment A, through July 26, 2022. The topics are arranged by department 
to help identify the work group most impacted by the agenda item.  
 
Specific dates are not provided in the attachment due to a number of factors that influence the City Council 
agenda preparation process. In their agenda management, the mayor and city manager strive to compile an 
agenda that is most responsive to the City Council’s adopted priorities and work plan while also balancing 
the business needs of the organization. Certain agenda items, such as appeals or State mandated 
reporting, must be scheduled by a certain date to ensure compliance. In addition, the meeting agendas are 
managed to allow the greatest opportunity for public input while also allowing the meeting to conclude 
around 11 p.m. Every effort is made to avoid scheduling two matters that may be contentious to allow the 
City Council sufficient time to fully discuss the matter before the City Council. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting.  

 
Attachments 
A. City Council agenda topics: July 2022 
 
Report prepared by: 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM H-1

Page H-1.1



Through July  2022

Tentative City Council Agenda
# Title Department Item type City Council action
1 Master Fee Schedule ASD Public Hearing Approve
2 Personnel activity report as of June 30, 2022 ASD Informational No action
3 Approve funding for 335 Pierce Road (predevelopment CLT, loan authorization docs) CDD Regular Approve

4 Authorize the city manager to enter into master professional agreements with geotechnical firms 
for building permit review services CDD Consent Approve

5 Adopt Community Amenity Implementing Regulations and Updated Amenities List CMO Regular Adopt resolution

6 Adopt Resolution to continue conducting the City’s Council and advisory body meetings remotely 
due to health and safety concerns for the public CMO Consent Adopt resolution

7 EQC Quarterly Report to City Council CMO Advisory body reports Receive and file

8 Receive and file 2021 priorities, work plan quarterly report as of June 30, 2022, and advisory body 
work plan update CMO Consent Receive and file

9 Special events ordinance-second read/adopt CMO Consent Adopt ordinance

10 Waive first readings and introduce ordinances amending the Parks and Recreation ordinances 
related to special events and film permitting CMO Regular Decide

11 Tentative-Ballot measure direction from 6/28 CMO, CAO Public Hearing
12 MPCC project updates: Community survey, budget LCS Study Session Direction to staff
13 Options for city observances based on holidays of religious origin LCS Informational No action
14 706 Santa Cruz Avenue - Tentative Map Extension Request PW Public Hearing Adopt resolution

15 Adopt Reso XXXX to reduce the posted speed limit in school zones consistent with the California 
Vehicle Code PW Consent Adopt resolution

16 Approve Scope of Work for Quiet Zone Implementation Plan PW Regular Approve
17 Automated water meter reading project agreement PW Consent Approve

18 Confirm existing public improvement agreement with Greystar for Menlo Uptown or update to 
remove improvements on Willow Road PW Regular Approve

19 Next steps for Willow/U.S. Highway 101 interchange landscaping PW Study Session Direction to staff
20 Study session on level of service analysis PW Study Session Direction to staff

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CDD-Community Development
LCS-Library and Community Services

PD-Police
PW-Public WorksPage H-1.2

ATTACHMENT A



Police 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-126-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Re-Imagining Public Safety Ad Hoc Subcommittee 

update  

 
Recommendation 
The purpose of this informational item is to provide an update to the public and to the City Council on the 
work being done in the Ad Hoc Re-Imagining Public Safety Subcommittee (Subcommittee.)  

 
Policy Issues 
In accordance with the City Council procedures manual, the city manager and the Mayor set the agenda for 
City Council meetings. The Subcommittee consists of Vice Mayor Wolosin and City Councilmember Taylor, 
who wanted to update the City Council and public. 

 
Analysis 
The Subcommittee was formed in August 2021 to facilitate communication and understanding between the 
police department and the community and explore contemporary policing practices that meet the interests 
and needs of the community for the feeling of safety and satisfaction with professional provision of public 
safety services in this City. The Subcommittee has met nearly 20 times to date.  
 
Since the last update in January 2022, the City held “safe space focus groups” in each of the City’s five 
represented Districts. These convenings were facilitated by an academic, and were without police presence, 
in an effort to provide an unencumbered space for members of the public to share frank feedback about 
policing. A wrap-up Town Hall meeting with the police department was also held to review the 
depersonalized and anonymous feedback generated from the “safe space” meetings.  
 
Attachment A provides an informational report which summarizes the progress to date from these meetings, 
and a picture at the future objectives of the Subcommittee and the police department. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Memorandum – informational report – Subcommittee update 

 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM H-2

Page H-2.1



Staff Report #: 22-126-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Report prepared by: 
Dave Norris, Police Chief 
 
Reviewed by: 
Justin Murphy, Interim City Manager 

Page H-2.2



   
 

 
 City of Menlo Park  701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Police 

 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 

Date: 06/28/2022  
To: City Council via Interim City Manager Murphy 
From: Re-imagining Public Safety Ad Hoc Subcommittee (via Chief Norris) 
Re: Informational Report - Re-imagining Public Safety Subcommittee Update 
 
 

Honored City Council –  
 

The following is an update on the Subcommittee, which has had nearly twenty interactive sessions to date. 
The Subcommittee has engaged with Dr. Terri Givens, a local Author and Professor, to help facilitate and 
provide some organization and structure to the Subcommittee’s work. Structural discrimination and bias are 
an ongoing challenge for the city and its institutions. Menlo Park is reckoning with ways to create a more 
welcoming and inclusive environment for all community members.  
 
The Ad Hoc Subcommittee to Re-imagine Public Safety was formed in August 2021 to facilitate 
communication and understanding between the police department and the community and explore 
contemporary policing practices that meet the interests and needs of the community for the feeling of safety 
and satisfaction with professional provision of public safety services in this City. The Subcommittee has met 
nearly 20 times to date.  
 
These meetings included a workshop through which we established the procedures for conducting a series 
of listening sessions throughout the city, without the police department present, in order to be as thorough 
and unfettered as possible as our city explored the relationship between the community members and the 
police.  
 

• There were to be 5 sessions – one in each City Council District – followed by a 6th session which 
was a Town Hall reviewing the results of the sessions. 

• Each of the District sessions was held without Police Department personnel present, facilitated by 
Dr. Terri Givens, and the information was collected and de-personalized by Dr. Givens’ staff. The 
meetings was not recorded in order to preserve the privacy of the community members present. 

• Prior to the sessions, the City generated:  
o A statement of support by the City to introduce the sessions to the public.  
o A video endorsement of the process by the Police Department 
o An introductory message and biography for Dr. Givens which included guidelines for creating 

“a brave and safe space” to discuss policing in Menlo Park 
 

The five listening sessions were held from March through May 2022: 
 

• District 5 – March 23, 2022 
• District 4 – March 30, 2022 
• District 3 – April 13, 2022 
• District 1 – April 27, 2022 
• District 2 – May 11, 2022 

 
The review of information was presented in a Town Hall Meeting on June 1, 2022. The meeting included a 

Page H-2.3

ATTACHMENT A

https://beta.menlopark.org/City-Council/Reimagining-public-safety/Message-from-the-Police-Chief
https://beta.menlopark.org/City-Council/Reimagining-public-safety/Message-from-Facilitator-Dr.-Terri-Givens
https://beta.menlopark.org/City-Council/Reimagining-public-safety/Watch-the-community-meeting


   
 

 
 City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

2 

 

 

presentation by the Police Department that reviewed the feedback generated from the listening sessions, 
including topics for ongoing discussion and questions for consideration, a glimpse at the information the 
Police Department intends to provide to answer some of these questions, and a review of next steps.  
 
Topics generated in the listening sessions included:  
 

• Budget and Staffing 
• Neighborhood Watch / Business Watch 
• Open Houses / Ride-Alongs 
• RIPA and Calls for Service / Stop Data 
• Police Advisory Group 
• Parking Enforcement 
• Emergency / Disaster Preparedness 

 
• Mutual Aid and Interoperation between Police Departments 
• MPPD in other cities / Other city PDs in MP 
• Body Worn Cameras 
• Police Access of Other Cameras and License Plate Readers 
• Crisis Intervention / Mental Health Training for Police 
• Code Enforcement 

 
Questions generated in these sessions included: 
 

• How can we work together to address bias concerns / build trust? 
• Is it possible to see more police on foot / on bicycles? 
• How do we find out more when an incident is happening?  
• What information do we / should we get back when we call for the police? 
• What can be done to ensure complaints/concerns are not dismissed or retaliated against? 

 
• How do we learn more about road safety & traffic enforcement? 
• Can MPPD make crime stats and other data more readable? 
• What are the demographics of MPPD personnel compared to the community?  
• Are officers required to follow rules of the road / parking rules? 
• Why do police park with their vehicles running and locked? 
• What information is available on the web or in social media from MPPD?  
• Can MPPD make the compliment / complaint process easier / more accountable?  

 
• What is MPPD doing to address Homelessness and Mental Health Crises? 
• What bias awareness / mental health crisis / de-escalation training is available to MPPD? 
• What is MPPD learning from other departments – locally and nationally? 
• What drives and motivates MPPD police officers? 
• How are calls for service prioritized?  
• Why has MPPD shifted to SUVs on patrol? 

 
The presentation was followed by a “Q&A” session which was accomplished in a panel format with the 
Police Department Command Staff on hand. There were additional questions remaining which will soon be 
answered in a similar format.  
 
 

Page H-2.4

https://beta.menlopark.org/files/sharedassets/public/police/documents/20220601-reimagining-public-safety-community-meeting-chief-norris-presentation.pdf


   
 

 
 City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

3 

 

 

Some of the next steps include: 
 

• Transparency presentations by the PD to review the organizational structure, budget, how we 
accomplish our policing goals and how we recruit, hire, train, and hold accountable our team 
members 

• Plans to show what we currently do, and show interaction and transparency with the community 
through revised multimedia output, data dashboards, and engagement and education initiatives  

• Revision of our compliment and complaint process to make it as easy, open, receptive, and 
accountable as possible 

• Formation of a Community-Police Advisory Roundtable to discuss ongoing issues and concerns in 
policing, and ensure MPPD is moving in the right direction for our community 

 
The Police Department and Subcommittee would like to plan a Study Session for July or August to bring 
this information more fully in front of City Council, and discuss the duration of the formal Subcommittee and 
direction for ongoing efforts in keeping the City Council and Community abreast of our constantly evolving 
efforts to keep all those who live, visit, work and play in Menlo park feeling safe and secure.   
 
Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Ad Hoc Re-imagining Public Safety Subcommittee by:  
Chief Dave Norris, Menlo Park Police Department. 
 
Reviewed by:  
Interim City Manager Justin Murphy 
 

Page H-2.5



Public Works 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-127-CC 
 
Informational Item:  Receive and file an update on the solid waste and 

water rate assistance program  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the City Council receive and file an update on the solid waste and water rate 
assistance program. 

 
Policy Issues 
City of Menlo Park’s mission statement is to serve the community’s current and future needs, provide 
special assistance to those in need, and support the City’s diverse neighborhood and population. On June 
22, 2021, City Council adopted Resolution No. 6638 (Attachment A) to authorize the extension of solid 
waste and water rate assistance program between July 1, 2021, and June 30, 2022, to provide financial 
relief on residents’ utility bills. Because the rate assistance program is funded through the general fund 
and not the rate revenue collected through property-related fees and charges, the program is compliant 
with Article XIIID of the California Constitution. 

 
Background 
On December 8, 2020, the City Council approved Resolution No. 6603 to increase solid waste rates for 2021, 
2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025. The rates for 20 and 32-gallon solid waste cart customers increased $5.50 per 
month over five years, or a total of $330.  
 
Also December 8, 2020, the City Council approved a rate assistance program to provide financial relief to 
Menlo Park residents. The program provides opportunities for eligible residents to receive discounts on their 
solid waste (Recology) and water (Menlo Park Municipal Water) bills. It uses the Pacific Gas and Electric 
(PG&E) California Alternative Rates for Energy (CARE) program as the sole enrollment qualification to: 
• Encourage residents to apply for CARE, a program that offers a monthly minimum of 20 percent discount 

on gas and electricity; and 
• Streamline the application process. 
 
Qualified households receive a 20 percent discount on their solid waste rates and a 50 percent reduction on 
their 5/8-inch water meter service charge. The solid waste discount applies to all qualified households, 
whereas the water discount only applies to households living in the Menlo Park Municipal Water (MPMW) 
service area. MPMW is a City-owned enterprise funded by rate payers and serves approximately one-half of 
the City’s residents.  
 
On April 27, 2021, staff provided an informational item to update City Council on the progress of the rate 
assistance program. With the low enrollment and the desire to provide assistance to residents with financial 
needs, the City Council expressed support to extend the pilot program until June 30, 2022. 

AGENDA ITEM H-3

Page H-3.1



Staff Report #: 22-127-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

On May 11, 2021, the City Council adopted the MPMW rate schedule for the next five years. The rate 
schedule indicated an approximate monthly $5.00 increase over the next five years, which is equivalent to a 
total increase of $300. 
 
On June 22, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6638 to extend the rate assistance program to 
June 30, 2022. The 2022 solid waste rates range from $33.81 to $91.46, depending on the garbage cart 
size. Households with 20-gallon and 32-gallon solid waste carts experience the largest rate increase of 
$5.50, or 19 percent and 15 percent respectively. The fiscal year 2023 fixed 5/8-inch meter service charge is 
$28.96. 

 
Analysis 
During the pilot program between January 1, 2021 and June 30, 2021, the program enrolled: 
• Twelve households who only received a discount from Recology; and 
• Twenty-nine households who received discounts from Recology and MPMW. 
 
Those enrolled in the pilot program continued to receive discounts in the following fiscal year. 
 
During fiscal year 2021-2022, the program enrolled: 
• Six new households who only received a discount from Recology; and 
• Twenty-three new households who received discounts from Recology and MPMW. 
 
Table 1 summaries the number of households in the City’s rate assistance program and the type of discount 
provided. As shown, a total of 70 households are currently enrolled in the program. For comparison 
purposes, California Water’s service-charge discount program had 86 Menlo Park households enrolled as of 
November 2020, 100 Menlo Park households as of April 2021, and 107 Menlo Park households as of May 
9, 2022. Fifteen of those 107 Cal Water discount program participants are enrolled in the City’s rate 
assistance program to receive a discount from Recology. 
 

Table 1: Rate assistance program participants 

Discount 
Pilot program: 

January 1, 2021 to June 30, 
2021 

Fiscal year 2021-2022: 
July 1, 2021, to June 30, 

2022 
Total participants 

Recology only 12 6 18 
Recology and MPMW 
discounts 29 23 52 

Total 41 29 70 
 
This fiscal year, the City spent $16,280 from the general fund to support the rate assistance program. Staff 
spent approximately two and a half hours to enroll 29 households. The breakdown is as follows: 
• $780 for contract administrative services 
• $6,500 to provide discounts on the solid waste bills; and 
• $9,000 to provide discounts on the MPMW bills. 
 
Staff has conducted various types of outreach and marketing for the program during the fiscal year, 
including: 
• Partnering with Recology and MPMW to mail bill inserts that advertise the program to single-family 

Page H-3.2



Staff Report #: 22-127-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

customers; 
• Distributing applications at the Main Library and Belle Haven branch library; 
• Collaborating with California Water to mail applications to their discount program participants; and 
• Posting the program information on social media. 
 
As a result, approximately 100 applications were distributed to City households this year. With an increase in 
solid waste and water rates, staff is proposing to extending the program beyond the June 30, 2022, deadline 
to continue to provide financial assistance to residents in need. Staff recommends renewing the rate 
assistance program annually through fiscal year 2025-2026 to align with the end of the solid waste and 
MPMW rate schedules. Households who enroll after the pilot program (June 30, 2021) would receive 
discounts retroactive to three months. 
 
Staff estimates 10 additional households would receive solid waste discounts (a total of 28 households) and 
20 additional households would receive water discounts (a total of 72 households.) Therefore, in fiscal year 
2022-2023, staff estimates the budget to be approximately $18,200 as shown in Table 3. This includes the 
administrative contractor cost (excluding staff time) and discounts for solid waste and water bills.  
 

Table 3: Fiscal year 2022-2023 budget for rate assistance program 

 Administrative contractor Recology MPMW 

Quantity 160 applications and direct mails 28 households 72 households 

Total cost $1,400 $3,800 $13,000 
 
Other cities are also experiencing an increase in solid waste and water rates as the costs to provide those 
services continue to rise. In response to those increases, City of San Carlos and City of Santa Clara rose 
their solid waste rate assistance discount from 10 percent to 20 percent and $3 to $10, respectively. On the 
other hand, other agencies have maintained their current discount rates. City of Mountain View continues to 
offer a one-time credit of $50 to be applied on residents’ water, sewer, and solid waste bills and Recology 
San Francisco continues to offer a 25 percent discount on their customers’ solid waste bills. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
In June 2021, City Council approved approximately $60,000 from the General Fund to support the rate 
assistance program from July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2022, and any unused funds would return to the 
general fund. If the program extends to the end of next fiscal year, the budget would be approximately 
$18,200 from the general fund revenues, not from the ratepayer revenues. The funding is programmed in 
the proposed fiscal year 2022-23 budget, and a resolution to extend the program is included for 
consideration as part of the fiscal year 2022-23 budget also on the June 28 City Council agenda. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 

Page H-3.3



Staff Report #: 22-127-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Resolution No. 6638 
 
Report prepared by: 
Joanna Chen, Management Analyst I 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Tanisha Werner, Assistant Public Works Director - Engineering 
 

Page H-3.4



RESOLUTION NO. 6638 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK TO 
EXTEND THE SOLID WASTE AND WATER RATE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, to promote equity and support Menlo Park’s diverse community, establishing a rate 
assistance program will help low-income households to cover basic living expenses; and 

WHEREAS, some rate assistance programs, such as Pacific Gas & Electricity (PG&E) California 
Alternative Rate Energy (CARE) program offers monthly minimum discount of 20 percent on gas 
and electricity; and  

WHEREAS, due to the current COVID-19 pandemic and solid waste and water rate increases, 
some residential customers may be financially impacted; and 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2020 during a study session, the City Council supported city staff to 
establish a rate assistance program for solid waste rates at 20 percent discount; and  

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2020 during a study session, the City Council supported city staff 
to establish a rate assistance program for Menlo Park Municipal Water customers; and 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2020, the City Council allocated $1.5 million in General Fund 
revenues to fund the rate assistance program ($0.5 million for 2021 and $1 million for 2022 
through 2025); and 

WHEREAS, the rate assistance program is compliant with Article XIIID of the California 
Constitution and all other applicable laws because the program is funded through General Fund 
revenues and not rate revenues collected through property-related fees or charges; and 

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6605, which 
established the rate assistance program and provided a timeframe for the program of January 1, 
2021 through June 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2021, new solid waste rates went into effect; and  

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021 the City Council received an update about extending the pilot 
program for fiscal year 2021-22; 

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2021, new Menlo Park Municipal Water rates are scheduled to be in effect; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park’s rate assistance program should be extended to June 30, 
2022. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the program shall be comprised of the following 
timeframe, discount, and qualifications unless modified by the City Council by resolution:  

1. Timeframe: continue on July 1, 2021 and end on June 30, 2022;
2. Discount: monthly 20 percent discount for solid waste rates and a monthly fixed discount equal

to 50 percent of the 5/8-inch meter service charge for water rates; and
3. Qualifications: households must meet the following criteria to receive the discount:

ATTACHMENT A

Page H-3.5



 
 Must be enrolled in PG&E CARE program; 
 Submit most recent PG&E bill to verify CARE enrollment. Address on PG&E bill must be the 

same on solid waste and water bills, but names may be different; 
 Submit most recent Recology and Menlo Park Municipal Water bills to receive applicable 

discounts; and 
 Re-certify eligibility according to the PG&E CARE program enrollment expiration date. Re-

certification will vary, depending on when the household applies to CARE. 

I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-second day of June 2021, by the following votes: 

AYES:  Combs, Mueller, Nash, Wolosin   

NOES:  None  

ABSENT: Taylor 

ABSTAIN: None 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twenty-second day of June 2021. 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 
 

Resolution No. 6638 
Page 2 of 2

Page H-3.6



City Manager's Office 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   6/28/2022 
Staff Report Number:  22-128-CC 
 
Informational Item:  ConnectMenlo Community Amenities Ad Hoc 

Subcommittee update  

 
Recommendation 
The purpose of this informational item is to provide an update to the public and to the City Council on the 
work being done in the Ad Hoc ConnectMenlo Community Amenities Subcommittee (Subcommittee.)  

 
Policy Issues 
In accordance with the City Council procedures manual, the city manager and the Mayor set the agenda for 
City Council meetings. The Subcommittee consists of Mayor Nash and City Councilmember Taylor, who 
wanted to update the City Council and public. 

 
Analysis 
The Subcommittee was formed October 6, 2020 to review the community amenities list and to suggest 
revisions to the list for consideration by the City Council. In 2021, the City Council established the 
community amenity list update as a top priority. On June 22, 2021, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 
1077 establishing an in lieu fee option as envisioned as part of the ConnectMenlo process. Remaining work 
efforts related to community amenities include updating the list and clarifying the review and screening 
process. 
 
Attachment A transmits the Subcommittee’s Draft Community Amenities Proposal to update the list. The 
Subcommittee would like to share the draft list as an information item so community members, advisory 
body members, City Councilmembers, and others have an opportunity to review it and provide feedback 
over the coming weeks. The Subcommittee is interested in hearing if there are items that should or should 
not be included on the list moving forward with the understanding that items not on the list can be 
considered for community amenity ‘credit’ through a development agreement, and developers also have the 
option of paying the ‘in lieu fee’ instead of choosing items on the list. For reference, the existing list is 
included as Attachment B. 
 
No action will be taken at the City Council meeting June 28. At a future meeting, the draft list, including any 
applicable modifications, and the draft review and screening process will be agenized for City Council 
consideration and action. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 

AGENDA ITEM H-4

Page H-4.1



Staff Report #: 22-128-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Attachments 
A. Draft community amenities proposal – updated list 
B. Hyperlink – Approved communities amenities list: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/15009/6360---

Community-Amenities 
 

 
  
Report prepared by: 
Justin Murphy, Interim City Manager 
 

Page H-4.2

https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/15009/6360---Community-Amenities
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/15009/6360---Community-Amenities


6/22/22 DRAFT Community Amenities Proposal 
City Council subcommittee (Councilmember Taylor and Mayor Nash) 

Menlo Park Resolution No. 6360 approving the community amenities list developed through the 
ConnectMenlo process states: “The required community amenities are intended to address identified 
community needs that result from the effect of the increased development intensity on the 
surrounding community.”  Community amenities enhance the quality of life for existing Menlo Park 
residents located North of US 101 (particularly long-time Belle Haven residents) beyond available 
and reasonably expected City Services.   

I. Carbon-free Transit and Enhanced Transportation
o Sidewalks, lighting, and landscaping: Enhance sidewalks, landscaping, and lighting

to improve the overall walkability, safety, and aesthetics in the Belle Haven
neighborhood and on Haven Avenue.

o Transit: Create an EV shuttle system to connect Bayfront residents across Menlo
Park and to neighboring cities.

o Dumbarton Rail Crossing: Create a pedestrian and bicycle crossing of the
Dumbarton Rail corridor between US 101 and Chilco Street.

o Dumbarton Rail: Utilize the right-of-way for new transit line between Redwood City
and Menlo Park in the near term with stations and a new pedestrian/bike path.

II. Community-serving Retail (in or adjacent to Belle Haven)
o Grocery Store: A full-service grocery store providing a full range of goods, including

fresh fruits, vegetables and meat and dairy products.
o Restaurants: A range of dining options, focused on sit-down restaurants serving

residents and neighborhood employees.
o Pharmacy: A full-service pharmacy that fills prescriptions and offers convenience

goods.
o Bank: A bank or credit union branch.

III. Energy, Technology, Utilities, and Communication Infrastructure in the Belle Haven
neighborhood

o Underground power lines: Underground overhead electric and communications lines
along Newbridge Street, Pierce Road, Terminal Avenue, and Chilco Street.

o Telecommunications infrastructure: Improve existing Bayfront residents’ access to
high quality, high speed broadband services.

o Soundwalls: Construct soundwalls with landscaping to reduce noise, provide cleaner
air, and improve aesthetics.

• between US 101 and Kelly Park
• between US 101 and the 1100 block of Willow Road

IV. Enhanced Quality of Life
o Affordable Ownership Housing: Provide affordable ownership housing above and

beyond City minimum requirements for affordable housing with a clear preference for
existing long-term residents of Belle Haven.

o Anti-displacement Initiative: Fund programs to prevent displacement of current
residents of Belle Haven and Haven Avenue.

o Open space: Convert undeveloped properties to new parks in the Belle Haven
neighborhood.

o Sustainably fund a Bayfront Taskforce (as a non Brown Act body) to focus on High
Quality Local Education, Environmental Justice, and Community Amenities.

ATTACHMENT A

Page H-4.3


	20220628 City Council regular agenda
	E1-20220628 CC-Minutes
	E2-20220628 CC-AB 361
	1-AB 361 reso
	2-Att A-Reso XXX-AB361 compliance

	E3-20220628 CC-APTIM contract extension
	1-SR-APTIM contract extension
	2-Att A-Agree amend and original agree
	3-Att C-Menlo Park Extension Proposal 2022-2023 Final

	E4-20220628 CC-OBAG3
	1-SR  OBAG3 Council Resolutions_v2
	2-Att A_Resolution_Middle
	3-Att B_Resolution_ECR
	4-Att C-ECR Project Locations Map draft3

	E5-20220628 CC-Menlo Uptown PUE Abandonment
	1-SR -Menlo Uptown PUE Abandonment
	2-Att A Resolution
	3-Ex A to Att A - Uptown_PUE_Site_Plan_v3

	E6-20220628 CC-2022-23 Investment Policy
	The Staff Report No. 22-122-CC for Adopt a resolution approving the fiscal year 2022-23 investment policy for the City and the former Community Development Agency of Menlo Park will be available on June 24, 2022.

	F1-20220628 CC-Landscaping Assessment District FY 22-23
	1-SR-Landscaping Assessment District FY 22-23
	2-Att A - Reso
	3-Att B Item G5

	F1-Pres
	F2-20220628 CC-Cert of zoning initiative signatures
	1-City clerk certification of zoning initiative signatures
	2-Att A-June 15 2022 letter from March Church and the Petition Result Breakdown
	3-Att B -Ballot title and summary letter with attachment

	F3-20220628 CC-Zoning Initiative
	1-SR Zoning Initiative
	2-Ordinance Adopting Zoning Initiative
	3-Ex A Ordinance Adopting Zoning Initiative
	4-Att B Resolution re Placing Zoning Initiative on November 8 2022 Ballot
	5-Ex A Resolution re Placing Zoning Initiative on November 8 2022 Ballot
	6-Ex B Resolution 2022 Election calendar

	G1-20220628 CC-2022-23 budget adopt
	The Staff Report No. 22-123-CC for Adopt resolutions for fiscal year 2022-23: budget and capital improvement plan; establish appropriations limit; establish a consecutive 1 percent utility users’ tax rate through June 2023; establish the salary schedu...

	G1-Pres
	G2-20220628 CC-Direction on aquatics agree
	G2-Pres
	H1-20220628 cc-CC agenda topics
	1-SR Agenda topics
	2-Att A topics

	H2-20220628 CC-RIPS Subcommittee Update June 2022
	1-SR RIPS Subcommittee Update JUNE 2022
	City MEMORANDUM - RIPS Subcommittee Update JUNE 2022

	H3-20220628 CC-Rate Assistance Extension
	1-SR Rate Assistance Extension
	2-Att A 6638-Rate assist program extension2

	H4-20220628 CC-Community Amenities Subcommittee Update June 2022
	1-SR Community Amenities Subcommittee Update June 2022
	2-Att A-Community Amenities subcommittee 062222 DRAFT


